BANK OF AMERICA CORP /DE/ Form 10-K February 28, 2008 Table of Contents

UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT

PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)

OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

(Mark One)

[ü] ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007

or

[] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission file number:

1-6523

Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in its Charter:

Bank of America Corporation

State or Other Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Organization:

Delaware

IRS Employer Identification No.:

56-0906609

Address of Principal Executive Offices:

Bank of America Corporate Center

100 N. Tryon Street

Charlotte, North Carolina 28255

Registrant s telephone number, including area code:

(704) 386-5681

SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12(b) OF THE ACT:

Title of each class Common Stock

	London Stock Tokyo Stock
Depositary Shares, Each Representing a 1/1000 th interest in a share of 6.204% Non-Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series D Depositary Shares, Each Representing a 1/1,000 th interest in a share of	New York Sto
Floating Rate Non-Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series E	New York Sto
Depositary Shares, Each Representing a 1/1,000 th interest in a share of	New TOIK SIL
6.625% Non-Cumulative Preferred Stock. Series I	New York Sto
Depositary Shares, Each Representing a 1/1,000th interest in a share of	
7.25% Non-Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series J	New York Sto
7.25% Non-Cumulative Perpetual Convertible Preferred Stock, Series L	New York Sto
Minimum Return Index EAGLES SM , due June 1, 2010, Linked to the	
+Nasdaq-100 Index®	American Sto
Minimum Return Index EAGLES [®] , due June 28, 2010, Linked to the S&P	• • •
500 [®] Index	American Sto
Minimum Return Return Linked Notes, due June 24, 2010, Linked to the Nikkei 225 Index	American Sto
Minimum Return Basket FAGLES SM , due August 2, 2010, Linked to a	American Si

Minimum Return Basket EAGLESSM, due August 2, 2010, Linked to a Basket of Energy Stocks

Name of each exchange on which registered New York Stock Exchange London Stock Exchange Tokyo Stock Exchange

New York Stock Exchange

New York Stock Exchange

New York Stock Exchange

New York Stock Exchange New York Stock Exchange

American Stock Exchange

American Stock Exchange

American Stock Exchange

American Stock Exchange

Minimum Return Index EAGLES®, due August 28, 2009, Linked to the	
Russell 2000 [®] Index	American Stock Exchange
Minimum Return Index EAGLES®, due September 25, 2009, Linked to the	_
Dow Jones Industrial Average SM	American Stock Exchange
Minimum Return Index EAGLES®, due October 29, 2010, Linked to the	_
Nasdaq-100 Index®	American Stock Exchange
1.50% Index CYCLES [™] , due November 26, 2010, Linked to the S&P	
500 [®] Index	American Stock Exchange
	_

Title of each class 1.00% Index CYCLES[™], due December 28, 2010, Linked to the S&P MidCap 400 Index Return Linked Notes due June 28, 2010, Linked to the Nikkei 225 Index 1.00% Index CYCLES[™], due January 28, 2011, Linked to a Basket of Health Care Stocks Minimum Return Index EAGLES®, due January 28, 2011, Linked to the Russell 2000® Index 0.25% Cash-Settled Exchangeable Notes, due January 26, 2010, Linked to the Nasdaq-100 Index® 1.25% Index CYCLES[™], due February 24, 2010, Linked to the S&P 500[®] Index Minimum Return Index EAGLES®, due March 27, 2009, Linked to the Nasdaq-100 Index® 1.75% Basket CYCLES™, due April 30, 2009, Linked to a Basket of Three Indices 1.00% Basket CYCLESTM, due May 27, 2010, Linked to a 70/30 Basket of Four Indices and an Exchange Traded Fund Minimum Return Index EAGLES®, due June 25, 2010, Linked to the Dow Jones Industrial AverageSM 1.50% Basket CYCLES[™], due July 29, 2011, Linked to an 80/20 Basket of Four Indices and an Exchange Traded Fund Minimum Return Index EAGLES®, due August 28, 2009, Linked to the AMEX Biotechnology IndexSM 1.25% Index CYCLES™, due August 25, 2010, Linked to the Dow Jones Industrial AverageSM 1.25% Basket CYCLES[™], due September 27, 2011, Linked to a Basket of Four Indices Minimum Return Basket EAGLESSM, due September 29, 2010, Linked to a Basket of Energy Stocks Minimum Return Index EAGLES®, due October 29, 2010, Linked to the S&P 500[®] Index Minimum Return Index EAGLES®, due November 23, 2010, Linked to the Nasdaq-100 Index® Minimum Return Index EAGLES®, due November 24, 2010, Linked to the CBOE China Index 1.25% Basket CYCLES[™], due December 27, 2010, Linked to a 70/30 Basket of Four Indices and an Exchange Traded Fund 1.50% Index CYCLES[™], due December 28, 2011, Linked to a Basket of Health Care Stocks 6 1/2% Subordinated InterNotesSM, due 2032 5¹/2% Subordinated InterNotesSM, due 2033 57/8% Subordinated InterNotesSM, due 2033 6% Subordinated InterNotesSM, due 2034 Minimum Return Index EAGLES, due March 25, 2011, Linked to the Dow Jones Industrial Average 1.625% Index CYCLES, due March 23, 2010, Linked to the Nikkei 225 Index 1.75% Index CYCLES, due April 28, 2011, Linked to the S&P 500 Index Return Linked Notes, due August 26, 2010, Linked to a Basket of Three Indices Return Linked Notes, due June 27, 2011, Linked to an 80/20 Basket of Four Indices and an Exchange Traded Fund Minimum Return Index EAGLES, due July 29, 2010, Linked to the S&P 500 Index Return Linked Notes, due January 28, 2011, Linked to a Basket of Two Indices Minimum Return Index EAGLES, due August 26, 2010, Linked to the Dow Jones Industrial Average Return Linked Notes, due August 25, 2011, Linked to the Dow Jones EURO STOXX 50 Index Minimum Return Index EAGLES, due October 3, 2011, Linked to the S&P 500 Index

Name of each exchange on which registered American Stock Exchange New York Stock Exchange New York Stock Exchange New York Stock Exchange New York Stock Exchange American Stock Exchange

Minimum Return Index EAGLES, due October 28, 2011, Linked	
to the AMEX Biotechnology Index	American Stock Exchange
Return Linked Notes, due October 27, 2011, Linked to a Basket	
of Three Indices	American Stock Exchange
Return Linked Notes, due November 22, 2010, Linked to a	
Basket of Two Indices	American Stock Exchange
Minimum Return Index EAGLES, due November 23, 2011,	
Linked to a Basket of Five Indices	American Stock Exchange
Minimum Return Index EAGLES, due December 27, 2011,	
Linked to the Dow Jones Industrial average	American Stock Exchange
0.25% Senior Notes Optionally Exchangeable Into a Basket of	_
Three Common Stocks, due February 2012	American Stock Exchange
Return Linked Notes, due December 29, 2011 Linked to a	Ũ
Basket of Three Indices	American Stock Exchange
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12	(g) of the Act: None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. Yes ü No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act. Yes No ü

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes \ddot{u} No

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of large accelerated filer, accelerated filer and smaller reporting company in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer ü

Accelerated filer

Non-accelerated filer (do not Smaller reporting company check if a smaller reporting

company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes No ü

The aggregate market value of the registrant s common stock (Common Stock) held by non-affiliates is approximately \$215,286,616,664 (based on the June 29, 2007 closing price of Common Stock of \$48.89 per share as reported on the New York Stock Exchange). As of February 25, 2008, there were 4,442,228,781 shares of Common Stock outstanding.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Document of the Registrant Portions of the 2008 Proxy Statement Form 10-K Reference Locations PART III

Part I

Bank of America Corporation and Subsidiaries

Item 1. Business

General

Bank of America Corporation (Bank of America or the Corporation) is a Delaware corporation, a bank holding company and a financial holding company under the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act. Our principal executive offices are located in the Bank of America Corporate Center, Charlotte, North Carolina 28255.

Through our banking subsidiaries (the Banks) and various nonbanking subsidiaries throughout the United States and in selected international markets, we provide a diversified range of banking and nonbanking financial services and products through three business segments: *Global Consumer and Small Business Banking, Global Corporate and Investment Banking* and *Global Wealth and Investment Management*. We currently operate in 32 states, the District of Columbia and more than 30 foreign countries. The Bank of America footprint covers more than 82 percent of the U.S. population and 44 percent of the country s wealthy households. In the United States, we serve approximately 59 million consumer and small business relationships with more than 6,100 retail banking offices, more than 18,500 ATMs and approximately 24 million active on-line users. We have banking centers in 13 of the 15 fastest growing states and hold the top market share in 6 of those states. Bank of America is the number one Small Business Administration lender and has relationships with 99 percent of the U.S. Fortune 500 Companies and 83 percent of the Fortune Global 500 Companies.

Additional information relating to our businesses and our subsidiaries is included in the information set forth in pages 19 through 35 of Item 7, Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and *Note 22* Business Segment Information of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this report.

Bank of America s website is *www.bankofamerica.com*. Our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 are available on our website at *http://investor.bankofamerica.com* under the heading SEC Filings as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with, or furnish it to, the Securities and Exchange Commission (the SEC). In addition, we make available on *http://investor.bankofamerica.com* under the heading Corporate Governance: (i) our Code of Ethics and Insider Trading Policy; (ii) our Corporate Governance Guidelines; and (iii) the charters of each of Bank of America s Board committees, and we also intend to disclose any amendments to our Code of Ethics, or waivers of our Code of Ethics on behalf of our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer or Chief Accounting Officer, on our website. All of these corporate governance materials are also available free of charge in print to stockholders who request them in writing to: Bank of America Corporation, Attention: Shareholder Relations Department, 101 South Tryon Street, NC1-002-29-01, Charlotte, North Carolina 28255.

Competition

Bank of America and our subsidiaries operate in a highly competitive environment. Our competitors include banks, thrifts, credit unions, investment banking firms, investment advisory firms, brokerage firms, investment companies, insurance companies, mortgage banking companies, credit card issuers, mutual fund companies and e-commerce and other Internet-based companies. We compete with some of these competitors globally and with others on a regional or product basis. Competition is based on a number of factors including customer service, quality and range of products and services offered, price, reputation, interest rates on loans and deposits, lending limits and customer convenience.

More specifically, our consumer banking business competes with banks, thrifts, credit unions, finance companies and other nonbank organizations offering financial services. Our commercial lending business competes with local, regional and international banks and nonbank financial organizations, some of which are larger than certain of our nonbanking subsidiaries and the Banks. In the investment banking, investment advisory and brokerage businesses, our nonbanking subsidiaries compete with U.S. and international banking and investment banking firms, investment advisory firms, brokerage firms, investment companies, other organizations offering similar services and other investment alternatives available to investors, some of which are larger than our subsidiaries. Our mortgage banking units compete with banks, thrifts, government agencies, mortgage brokers and other nonbank organizations offering mortgage banking services. Our card business competes in the U.S. and internationally with banks, as well as monoline and retail card product companies. In the trust business, the Banks compete with other banks, thrifts, insurance agents, financial counselors and other fiduciaries for personal trust business and with other banks, investment counselors and insurance companies for institutional funds.

Bank of America also competes actively for funds. A primary source of funds for the Banks is deposits, and competition for deposits includes other deposit-taking organizations, such as banks, thrifts and credit unions, as well as money market mutual funds. In addition, we compete for funding in

Table of Contents

the domestic and international short-term and long-term debt securities capital markets.

Our ability to expand into additional states remains subject to various federal and state laws. See Government Supervision and Regulation General below for a more detailed discussion of interstate banking and branching legislation and certain state legislation.

Employees

As of December 31, 2007, there were approximately 210,000 full-time equivalent employees within Bank of America and our subsidiaries. Of these employees, 116,000 were employed within *Global Consumer and Small Business Banking*, 21,000 were employed within *Global Corporate and Investment Banking* and 14,000 were employed within *Global Wealth and Investment Management*. The remainder were employed elsewhere within our company including various staff and support functions.

None of our domestic employees are subject to a collective bargaining agreement. Management considers our employee relations to be good.

Acquisition and Disposition Activity

As part of our operations, we regularly evaluate the potential acquisition of, and hold discussions with, various financial institutions and other businesses of a type eligible for financial holding company ownership or control. In addition, we regularly analyze the values of, and submit bids for, the acquisition of customer-based funds and other liabilities and assets of such financial institutions and other businesses. We also regularly consider the potential disposition of certain of our assets, branches, subsidiaries or lines of businesses. As a general rule, we publicly announce any material acquisitions or dispositions when a definitive agreement has been reached.

On October 1, 2007, the Corporation completed the acquisition of ABN AMRO North America Holding Company, parent of LaSalle Bank Corporation. On July 1, 2007, the Corporation completed the acquisition of U.S. Trust Corporation. Additional information on our acquisitions and mergers is included under *Note 2 Merger and Restructuring Activity* of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 which is incorporated herein by reference.

Government Supervision and Regulation

The following discussion describes elements of an extensive regulatory framework applicable to bank holding companies, financial holding companies and banks and specific information about Bank of America and our subsidiaries. Federal regulation of banks, bank holding companies and financial holding companies is intended primarily for the protection of depositors and the Deposit Insurance Fund rather than for the protection of stockholders and creditors.

General

As a registered bank holding company and financial holding company, Bank of America is subject to the supervision of, and regular inspection by, the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the Federal Reserve Board or FRB). The Banks are organized as national banking associations, which are subject to regulation, supervision and examination by the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (the Comptroller or OCC), the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the FDIC), the Federal Reserve Board, other federal and state regulatory agencies, and with respect to Bank of America s operations in the United Kingdom, the Financial Services Authority (the FSA). In addition to banking laws, regulations and regulatory agencies, Bank of America and our subsidiaries and affiliates are subject to various other laws and regulations and supervision and examination by other regulatory agencies, all of which directly or indirectly affect the operations and management of Bank of America and our ability to make distributions to stockholders.

A financial holding company, and the companies under its control, are permitted to engage in activities considered financial in nature as defined by the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act and Federal Reserve Board interpretations (including, without limitation, insurance and securities activities), and therefore may engage in a broader range of activities than permitted for bank holding companies and their subsidiaries. A financial holding company may engage directly or indirectly in activities considered financial in nature, either de novo or by acquisition, provided the financial holding company gives the Federal Reserve Board after-the-fact notice of the new activities. The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act also permits national banks, such as the Banks, to engage in activities considered financial in

nature through a financial subsidiary, subject to certain conditions and limitations and with the approval of the OCC.

Bank holding companies (including bank holding companies that also are financial holding companies) also are required to obtain the prior approval of the Federal Reserve Board before acquiring more than five percent of any class of voting stock of any non-affiliated bank. Pursuant to the Riegle-Neal Interstate Banking and Branching Efficiency Act of 1994 (the Interstate Banking and Branching Act), a bank holding company may acquire banks located in states other than its home state without regard to the permissibility of such acquisitions under state law, but subject to any state requirement that the bank has been organized and operating for a minimum period of time, not to exceed five years, and the requirement that the bank holding company, after the proposed acquisition, controls no more than 10 percent of the total amount of deposits of insured depository institutions in the United States and no more than 30 percent or such lesser or greater amount set by state law of such deposits in that state. Subject to certain restrictions, the Interstate Banking and Branching Act also permits a bank to open new branches in a state in which it does not already have banking operations if such state enacts a law permitting de novo branching.

Changes in Regulations

Proposals to change the laws and regulations governing the banking industry are frequently introduced in Congress, in the state legislatures and before the various bank regulatory agencies. The likelihood and timing of any proposals or legislation and the impact they might have on Bank of America and our subsidiaries cannot be determined at this time.

Capital and Operational Requirements

The Federal Reserve Board, the OCC and the FDIC have issued substantially similar risk-based and leverage capital guidelines applicable to United States banking organizations. In addition, these regulatory agencies may from time to time require that a banking organization maintain capital above the minimum levels, whether because of its financial condition or actual or anticipated growth. The Federal Reserve Board risk-based guidelines define a three-tier capital framework. Tier 1 capital includes common shareholders equity, trust securities, minority interests and qualifying preferred stock, less goodwill and other adjustments. Tier 2 capital consists of preferred stock not qualifying as Tier 1 capital, mandatory convertible debt, limited amounts of subordinated debt, other qualifying term debt, the allowance for credit losses up to 1.25 percent of risk-weighted assets and other adjustments. Tier 3 capital includes subordinated debt that is unsecured, fully paid, has an original maturity of at least two years, is not redeemable before maturity without prior approval by the Federal Reserve Board and includes a lock-in clause precluding payment of either interest or principal if the payment would cause the issuing bank s risk-based capital ratio to fall or remain below the required minimum. The sum of Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital less investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries represents our qualifying total capital. Risk-based capital ratios are calculated by dividing Tier 1 and total capital by risk-weighted assets. Assets and off-balance sheet exposures are assigned to one of four categories of risk-weights, based primarily on relative credit risk. The minimum Tier 1 capital ratio is four percent and the minimum total capital ratio s eight percent. Our Tier 1 and total risk-based capital ratios under these guidelines at December 31, 2007 were 6.87 percent and 11.02 percent. At December 31, 2007, we had no subordinated debt that qualified as Tier 3 capital.

The leverage ratio is determined by dividing Tier 1 capital by adjusted quarterly average total assets, after certain adjustments. Well-capitalized bank holding companies must have a minimum Tier 1 leverage ratio of three percent and are not subject to an FRB directive to maintain higher capital levels. Our leverage ratio at December 31, 2007 was 5.04 percent, which exceeded our leverage ratio requirement.

The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of 1991 (FDICIA), among other things, identifies five capital categories for insured depository institutions (well capitalized, adequately capitalized, undercapitalized, significantly undercapitalized and critically undercapitalized) and requires the respective federal regulatory agencies to implement systems for prompt corrective action for insured depository institutions that do not meet minimum capital requirements within such categories. FDICIA imposes progressively more restrictive constraints on operations, management and capital distributions, depending on the category in which an institution is classified. Failure to meet the capital guidelines could also subject a banking institution to capital raising requirements. An undercapitalized bank must develop a capital restoration plan and its parent holding company must guarantee that bank s compliance with the plan. The liability of the parent holding company under any such guarantee is limited to the lesser of five percent of the bank s assets at the time it became undercapitalized or the amount needed to comply with the plan. Furthermore, in the event of the bankruptcy of the parent holding company, such guarantee would take priority over the parent s general unsecured creditors. In addition, FDICIA requires the various regulatory agencies to prescribe certain non-capital standards for safety and soundness relating generally to operations and management, asset quality and executive compensation and permits regulatory action against a financial institution that does not meet such

The various regulatory agencies have adopted substantially similar regulations that define the five capital categories identified by FDICIA, using the total risk-based capital, Tier 1 risk-based capital and leverage capital ratios as the relevant capital measures. Such regulations establish various degrees of corrective action to be taken when an institution is considered undercapitalized. Under the regulations, a well capitalized institution must have a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of at least six percent, a total risk-based capital ratio of at least ten percent and a leverage ratio of at least five percent and not be subject to a capital directive order. Under these guidelines, each of the Banks was considered well capitalized as of December 31, 2007.

Regulators also must take into consideration: (a) concentrations of credit risk; (b) interest rate risk; and (c) risks from non-traditional activities, as well as an institution s ability to manage those risks, when determining the adequacy of an institution s capital. This evaluation will be made as a part of the institution s regular safety and soundness examination. In addition, Bank of America, and any Bank with significant trading activity, must incorporate a measure for market risk in their regulatory capital calculations.

Distributions

Our funds for cash distributions to our stockholders are derived from a variety of sources, including cash and temporary investments. The primary source of such funds, and funds used to pay principal and interest on our indebtedness, is dividends received from the Banks. Each of the Banks is subject to various regulatory policies and requirements relating to the payment of dividends, including requirements to maintain capital above regulatory minimums. The appropriate federal regulatory authority is

authorized to determine under certain circumstances relating to the financial condition of a bank or bank holding company that the payment of dividends would be an unsafe or unsound practice and to prohibit payment thereof.

In addition, the ability of Bank of America and the Banks to pay dividends may be affected by the various minimum capital requirements and the capital and non-capital standards established under FDICIA, as described above. The right of Bank of America, our stockholders and our creditors to participate in any distribution of the assets or earnings of its subsidiaries is further subject to the prior claims of creditors of the respective subsidiaries.

Source of Strength

According to Federal Reserve Board policy, bank holding companies are expected to act as a source of financial strength to each subsidiary bank and to commit resources to support each such subsidiary. This support may be required at times when a bank holding company may not be able to provide such support. Similarly, under the cross-guarantee provisions of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act, in the event of a loss suffered or anticipated by the FDIC either as a result of default of a banking subsidiary or related to FDIC assistance provided to a subsidiary in danger of default the other Banks may be assessed for the FDIC s loss, subject to certain exceptions.

Additional Information

See also the following additional information which is incorporated herein by reference: Net Interest Income (under the captions Financial Highlights Net Interest Income and Supplemental Financial Data in Item 7, Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (the MD&A) and Tables I, II and XIII of the Statistical Tables); Securities (under the caption Balance Sheet Analysis Debt Securities and Interest Rate Risk Management for Nontrading Activities Securities in the MD&A and *Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Principles and Note 5 Securities* of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplemental Data (the Notes));

Outstanding Loans and Leases (under the caption Balance Sheet Analysis Loans and Leases; Net of Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses and Credit Risk Management in the MD&A, Table III of the Statistical Tables, and *Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Principles and Note 6 Outstanding Loans and Leases* of the Notes); Deposits (under the caption Balance Sheet Analysis Deposits and Liquidity Risk and Capital Management Liquidity Risk in the MD&A and *Note 11 Deposits* of the Notes); Short-Term Borrowings (under the caption Balance Sheet Analysis Commercial Paper and other Short-term Borrowings and Liquidity Risk and Capital Management Liquidity Risk in the MD&A, Table IX of the Statistical Tables and *Note 12 Short-term Borrowings and Long-term Debt* of the Notes); Trading Account Assets and Liabilities (under the caption Balance Sheet Analysis Trading Account Assets , Balance Sheet Analysis Trading Account Liabilities and Market Risk Management Trading Risk Management in the MD&A and *Note 3 Trading Account Assets and Liabilities* of the Notes); Market Risk Management (under the caption Market Risk Management in the MD&A); Liquidity Risk Management (under the caption Liquidity Risk and Capital Management in the MD&A); Operational Risk Management (under the caption Operational Risk Management in the MD&A); and Performance by Geographic Area (under *Note 24 Performance by Geographical Area* of the Notes).

Item 1A. Risk Factors

The following discusses some of the key risk factors that could affect Bank of America s business and operations. Other factors besides those discussed below or elsewhere in this report also could adversely affect our business and operations, and these risk factors should not be considered a complete list of potential risks that may affect Bank of America.

Business, economic and political conditions. Our businesses and earnings are affected by general business, economic and political conditions in the United States and abroad. Given the concentration of our business activities in the United States, we are particularly exposed to downturns in the United States economy. For example, in a poor economic environment there is a greater likelihood that more of our customers or counterparties could become delinquent on their loans or other obligations to us, which, in turn, could result in a higher level of charge-offs and provision for credit losses, all of which would adversely affect our earnings. General business and economic conditions that could affect us include the level and volatility of short-term and long-term interest rates, inflation, fluctuations in both debt and equity capital markets, liquidity of the global financial markets, the availability and cost of credit, investor confidence, and the strength of the United States economy and the local economies in which we operate. Geopolitical conditions can also affect our earnings. Acts or threats of terrorism, actions taken by the United States or other governments in response to acts or threats of terrorism and/or military conflicts, could affect business and economic conditions in the United States and abroad.

In the second half of 2007, certain credit markets experienced difficult conditions and volatility. These conditions resulted in less liquidity, greater volatility, widening of credit spreads and a lack of price transparency. The Corporation s *Global Corporate and Investment Banking* business operates in these markets, either directly or indirectly, through exposures in securities, loans, derivatives and other commitments. While it is difficult to predict how long these conditions will exist and which markets, products or other businesses of the Corporation will ultimately be affected, these factors could continue to adversely impact the Corporation s results of operations.

Access to funds from subsidiaries. The Corporation is a separate and distinct legal entity from our banking and nonbanking subsidiaries. We therefore depend on dividends, distributions and other payments from our banking and nonbanking subsidiaries to fund dividend payments on the common stock and our preferred stock and to fund all payments on our other obligations, including debt obligations. Many of our subsidiaries are subject to laws that authorize regulatory bodies to block or reduce the flow of funds from those subsidiaries to the Corporation. Regulatory action of that kind could impede access to funds we need to make payments on our obligations or dividend payments. In addition, the Corporation s right to participate in a distribution of assets upon a subsidiary s liquidation or reorganization is subject to the prior claims of the subsidiary s creditors.

Changes in accounting standards. Our accounting policies and methods are fundamental to how we record and report our financial condition and results of operations. From time to time the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) changes the financial accounting and reporting standards that govern the preparation of our financial statements. These changes can be hard to predict and can materially impact how we record and report our financial condition and results of operations. In some cases, we could be required to apply a new or revised standard retroactively, resulting in the Corporation restating prior period financial statements.

Competition. We operate in a highly competitive environment that could experience intensified competition as continued merger activity in

the financial services industry produces larger, better-capitalized companies that are capable of offering a wider array of financial products and services at more competitive prices. In addition, technological advances and the growth of e-commerce have made it possible for non-depository institutions to offer products and services that traditionally were banking products, and for financial institutions to compete with technology companies in providing electronic and Internet-based financial solutions. Many of our competitors have fewer regulatory constraints and some have lower cost structures than we do. Increased competition may affect our results by creating pressure to lower prices on our products and services and reducing market share.

Credit risk. When we loan money, commit to loan money or enter into a letter of credit or other contract with a counterparty, we incur credit risk, or the risk of losses if our borrowers do not repay their loans or our counterparties fail to perform according to the terms of their contracts. A number of our products expose us to credit risk, including loans, leases and lending commitments, derivatives, trading account assets and assets held-for-sale. As one of the nation s largest lenders, the credit quality of our portfolio can have a significant impact on our earnings. We estimate and establish reserves for credit risks and potential credit losses inherent in our credit exposure (including unfunded credit commitments). This process, which is critical to our financial results and condition, requires difficult, subjective and complex judgments, including forecasts of economic conditions and how these economic predictions might impair the ability of our borrowers to repay their loans. As is the case with any such assessments, there is always the chance that we will fail to identify the proper factors or that we will fail to accurately estimate the impacts of factors that we identify.

For a further discussion of credit risk and our credit risk management policies and procedures, see Credit Risk Management in the MD&A.

Governmental fiscal and monetary policy. Our businesses and earnings are affected by domestic and international monetary policy. For example, the Federal Reserve Board regulates the supply of money and credit in the United States and its policies determine in large part our cost of funds for lending, investing and capital raising activities and the return we earn on those loans and investments, both of which affect our net

interest margin. The actions of the Federal Reserve Board also can materially affect the value of financial instruments we hold, such as debt securities and mortgage servicing rights and its policies also can affect our borrowers, potentially increasing the risk that they may fail to repay their loans. Our businesses and earnings also are affected by the fiscal or other policies that are adopted by various regulatory authorities of the United States, non-U.S. governments and international agencies. Changes in domestic and international monetary policy are beyond our control and hard to predict.

Liquidity risk. Liquidity is essential to our businesses. Our liquidity could be impaired by an inability to access the capital markets or by unforeseen outflows of cash. This situation may arise due to circumstances that we may be unable to control, such as a general market disruption or an operational problem that affects third parties or us. Our credit ratings are important to our liquidity. A reduction in our credit ratings could adversely affect our liquidity and competitive position, increase our borrowing costs, limit our access to the capital markets or trigger unfavorable contractual obligations.

For a further discussion of our liquidity position and the policies and procedures we use to manage our liquidity risks, see Liquidity Risk and Capital Management in the MD&A.

Litigation risks. We face significant legal risks in our businesses, and the volume of claims and amount of damages and penalties claimed

in litigation and regulatory proceedings against financial institutions remain high. Substantial legal liability or significant regulatory action against Bank of America could have material adverse financial effects or cause significant reputational harm to Bank of America, which in turn could seriously harm our business prospects.

For a further discussion of litigation risks, see Litigation and Regulatory Matters in Note 13 Commitments and Contingencies of the Notes.

Market risk. We are directly and indirectly affected by changes in market conditions. Market risk generally represents the risk that values of assets and liabilities or revenues will be adversely affected by changes in market conditions. For example, changes in interest rates could adversely affect our net interest margin the difference between the yield we earn on our assets and the interest rate we pay for deposits and other sources of funding which could in turn affect our net interest income and earnings. Market risk is inherent in the financial instruments associated with our operations and activities including loans, deposits, securities, short-term borrowings, long-term debt, trading account assets and liabilities, and derivatives. Just a few of the market conditions that may shift from time to time, thereby exposing us to market risk, include fluctuations in interest and currency exchange rates, equity and futures prices, changes in market perception or actual credit quality of either the issuer or its country of origin. Accordingly, depending on the instruments or activities impacted, market risks can have wide ranging, complex adverse effects on our results from operations and our overall financial condition.

For a further discussion of market risk and our market risk management policies and procedures, see Market Risk Management in the MD&A.

Merger risks. There are significant risks and uncertainties associated with mergers. For example, we may fail to realize the growth opportunities and cost savings anticipated to be derived from the merger. In addition, it is possible that the integration process could result in the loss of key employees, or that the disruption of ongoing business from the merger could adversely affect our ability to maintain relationships with clients or suppliers. We have an active acquisition program and there is a risk that integration difficulties may cause us not to realize expected benefits from the transactions and affect our results. We will be subject to similar risks and difficulties in connection with future acquisitions, as well as decisions to downsize, sell or close units or otherwise change the business mix of the Corporation.

Non-U.S. operations; trading in non-U.S. securities. We do business throughout the world, including in developing regions of the world commonly known as emerging markets. Our businesses and revenues derived from non-U.S. operations are subject to risk of loss from currency fluctuations, social instability, changes in governmental policies or policies of central banks, expropriation, nationalization, confiscation of assets, unfavorable political and diplomatic developments and changes in legislation relating to non-U.S. ownership. We also invest in the securities of corporations located in non-U.S. jurisdictions, including emerging markets. Revenues from the trading of non-U.S. securities also may be subject to negative fluctuations as a result of the above factors. The impact of these fluctuations could be magnified, because generally non-U.S. trading markets, particularly in emerging market countries, are smaller, less liquid and more volatile than U.S. trading markets.

Operational risks. The potential for operational risk exposure exists throughout our organization. Integral to our performance is the continued efficacy of our technical systems, operational infrastructure, relationships

with third parties and the vast array of associates and key executives in our day-to-day and ongoing operations. Failure by any or all of these resources subjects us to risks that may vary in size, scale and scope. This includes but is not limited to operational or technical failures, unlawful tampering with our technical systems, terrorist activities, ineffectiveness or exposure due to interruption in third party support, as well as the loss of key individuals or failure on the part of the key individuals to perform properly.

For further discussion of operating risks, see Operational Risk Management in the MD&A.

Products and services. Our business model is based on a diversified mix of businesses that provides a broad range of financial products and services, delivered through multiple distribution channels. Our success depends, in part, on our ability to adapt our products and services to evolving industry standards. There is increasing pressure by competition to provide products and services at lower prices. This can reduce our net interest margin and revenues from our fee-based products and services. In addition, the widespread adoption of new technologies, including internet services, could require us to incur substantial expenditures to modify or adapt our existing products and services. We might not be successful in developing and introducing new products and services, responding or adapting to changes in consumer spending and saving habits, achieving market acceptance of our products and services, or developing and maintaining loyal customers.

Regulatory considerations. Bank of America, the Banks and many of our nonbank subsidiaries are heavily regulated by bank regulatory agencies at the federal and state levels. This regulatory oversight is established to protect depositors, federal deposit insurance funds and the banking system as a whole, not security holders. Bank of America and its nonbanking subsidiaries are also heavily regulated by securities regulators, domestically and internationally. This regulation is designed to protect investors in securities we sell or underwrite. Congress and state legislatures and foreign, federal and state regulatory agencies continually review laws, regulations and policies for possible changes. Changes to statutes, regulations or regulatory policies, including interpretation or implementation of statutes, regulations or policies, could affect us in substantial and unpredictable ways including limiting the types of financial services and products we may offer and increasing the ability of nonbanks to offer competing financial services and products.

Table of Contents

Reputational risks. Our ability to attract and retain customers and employees could be adversely affected to the extent our reputation is damaged. Our actual or perceived failure to address various issues could give rise to reputational risk that could cause harm to Bank of America and our business prospects. These issues include, but are not limited to, appropriately addressing potential conflicts of interest; legal and regulatory requirements; ethical issues; money-laundering; privacy; properly maintaining customer and associate personal information; record keeping; sales and trading practices; and the proper identification of the legal, reputational, credit, liquidity and market risks inherent in our products. Failure to appropriately address these issues could also give rise to additional legal risks, which, in turn, could increase the size and number of litigation claims and damages asserted or subject us to enforcement actions, fines and penalties and cause us to incur related costs and expenses.

Risk management processes and strategies. We seek to monitor and control our risk exposure through a variety of separate but complementary financial, credit, operational, compliance and legal reporting systems. While we employ a broad and diversified set of risk monitoring and risk mitigation techniques, those techniques and the judgments that accompany their application cannot anticipate every economic and finan-

cial outcome or the specifics and timing of such outcomes. Accordingly, our ability to successfully identify and manage risks facing us is an important factor that can significantly impact our results. For a further discussion of our risk management policies and procedures, see Managing Risk in the MD&A.

Additional risks and uncertainties. We are a diversified financial services company. In addition to banking, we provide investment, mortgage, investment banking, credit card and consumer finance services. Although we believe our diversity helps lessen the effect when downturns affect any one segment of our industry, it also means our earnings could be subject to different risks and uncertainties than the ones discussed herein. If any of the risks that we face actually occur, irrespective of whether those risks are described in this section or elsewhere in this report, our business, financial condition and operating results could be materially adversely affected.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

There are no unresolved written comments that were received from the Securities and Exchange Commission s staff 180 days or more before the end of Bank of America s fiscal year relating to our periodic or current reports filed under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

Item 2. Properties

As of December 31, 2007, Bank of America s principal offices and primarily all of our business segments were located in the 60-story Bank of America Corporate Center in Charlotte, North Carolina, which is owned by one of our subsidiaries. We occupy approximately 592,000 square feet and lease approximately 609,000 square feet to third parties at market rates, which represents substantially all of the space in this facility. We occupy approximately 932,000 square feet of space at 100 Federal Street in Boston, Massachusetts, which is the headquarters for one of our primary business segments, *Global Wealth and Investment Management*. The 37-story building is owned by one of our subsidiaries which also leases approximately 321,000 square feet to third parties. We also lease or own a significant amount of space worldwide. As of December 31, 2007, Bank of America and our subsidiaries owned or leased approximately 25,200 locations in 41 states, the District of Columbia and more than 30 foreign countries.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

See Litigation and Regulatory Matters in Note 13 Commitments and Contingencies of the Notes beginning on page 122 for Bank of America s litigation disclosure which is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 4. Submission of Matters To A Vote of Security Holders

There were no matters submitted to a vote of stockholders during the quarter ended December 31, 2007.

Item 4A. Executive Officers of The Registrant

Pursuant to the Instructions to Form 10-K and Item 401(b) of Regulation S-K, the name, age and position of each current executive officer of Bank of America are listed below along with such officer s business experience. Officers are appointed annually by the Board of Directors at the meeting of directors immediately following the annual meeting of stockholders.

Keith T. Banks, 52, President, Global Wealth and Investment Management. Mr. Banks was named to his present position in October 2007. From August 2000 to April 2004, he served as Chief Executive Officer and Chief Investment Officer of FleetBoston Financial Corporation s asset management organization; and from April 2004 to October 2007, he

served as President and Chief Investment Officer of Columbia Management, Bank of America s asset management organization. He first became an officer in 1981. He also serves as President, Global Wealth and Investment Management and a director of Bank of America, N.A., FIA Card Services, N.A., LaSalle Bank, N.A., LaSalle Bank Midwest, N.A. and United States Trust Company, N.A.

Amy Woods Brinkley, age 52, Chief Risk Officer. Ms. Brinkley was named to her present position in April 2002. From July 2001 to April 2002, she served as Chairman, Credit Policy and Deputy Corporate Risk Management Executive; and from August 1999 to July 2001, she served as President, Consumer Products. She first became an officer in 1979. She also serves as Chief Risk Officer and a director of Bank of America, N.A., FIA Card Services, N.A., LaSalle Bank, N.A., LaSalle Bank Midwest, N.A. and United States Trust Company, N.A.

Barbara J. Desoer, age 55, Global Technology and Operations Executive. Ms. Desoer was named to her present position in August 2004. From July 2001 to August 2004, she served as President, Consumer Products; and from September 1999 to July 2001, she served as Director of

Marketing. She first became an officer in 1977. She also serves as Global Technology and Operations Executive and a director of Bank of America, N.A., FIA Card Services, N.A., LaSalle Bank, N.A., LaSalle Bank Midwest, N.A. and United States Trust Company, N.A.

Kenneth D. Lewis, age 60, Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President. Mr. Lewis was named Chief Executive Officer in April 2001, President in July 2004 and Chairman in February 2005. From April 2001 to April 2004, he served as Chairman; from January 1999 to April 2004, he served as President; and from October 1999 to April 2001, he served as Chief Operating Officer. He first became an officer in 1971. Mr. Lewis also serves as a director of the Corporation and as Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, President and a director of Bank of America, N.A., FIA Card Services, N.A., LaSalle Bank, N.A., LaSalle Bank Midwest, N.A. and United States Trust Company, N.A.

Liam E. McGee, age 53, President, Global Consumer and Small Business Banking. Mr. McGee was named to his present position in August 2004. From August 2001 to August 2004, he served as President, Global Consumer Banking; from August 2000 to August 2001, he served as President, Bank of America California; and from August 1998 to August 2000, he served as President, Southern California Region. He first became an officer in 1990. He also serves as President, Global Consumer and Small Business Banking and a director of Bank of America, N.A., FIA Card Services, N.A., LaSalle Bank, N.A., LaSalle Bank Midwest, N.A. and United States Trust Company, N.A.

Brian T. Moynihan, age 48, President, Global Corporate and Investment Banking. Mr. Moynihan was named to his present position in October 2007. From April 2004 to October 2007, he served as President, Global Wealth and Investment Management. Previously he held the following positions at FleetBoston Financial Corporation: from 1999 to April 2004, he served as Executive Vice President with responsibility for Brokerage and Wealth Management from 2000, and Regional Commercial Financial Services and Investment Management from May 2003. He first became an officer in 1993. He also serves as President, Global Corporate and Investment Banking and a director of Bank of America, N.A., FIA Card Services, N.A., LaSalle Bank, N.A., LaSalle Bank Midwest, N.A. and United States Trust Company, N.A.

Joe L. Price, age 47, Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Price was named to his present position in January 2007. From June 2003 to December 2006, he served as GCIB Risk Management Executive; from July 2002 to May 2003 he served as Senior Vice President Corporate Strategy and President, Consumer Special Assets; from November 1999 to July 2002 he

served as President, Consumer Finance; from August 1997 to October 1999 he served as Corporate Risk Evaluation Executive and General Auditor; from June 1995 to July 1997 he served as Controller; and from April 1993 to May 1995 he served as Accounting Policy and Finance Executive.

He first became an officer in 1993. He also serves as Chief Financial Officer and a director of Bank of America, N.A., FIA Card Services, N.A., LaSalle Bank, N.A., LaSalle Bank Midwest, N.A. and United States Trust Company, N.A.

Part II

Bank of America Corporation and Subsidiaries

Item 5. Market for Registrant s Common Equity and Related Stock Holder Matters

The principal market on which the Common Stock is traded is the New York Stock Exchange. The Common Stock is also listed on the London Stock Exchange, and certain shares are listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange. The following table sets forth the high and low closing sales prices of the Common Stock on the New York Stock Exchange for the periods indicated:

	Quarter	High	Low
2006	first	\$ 47.08	43.09
	second	50.47	45.48
	third	53.57	47.98
	fourth	54.90	51.66
2007	first	54.05	49.46
	second	51.82	48.80
	third	51.87	47.00
	fourth	52.71	41.10

As of February 20, 2008, there were 263,761 registered shareholders of Common Stock. During 2006 and 2007, Bank of America paid dividends on the Common Stock on a quarterly basis. The following table sets forth dividends paid per share of Common Stock for the periods indicated:

	Quarter	Dividend
2006	first	\$.50
	second	.50
	third	.56
	fourth	.56
2007	first	.56
	second	.56
	third	.64
	fourth	.64

For additional information regarding the Corporation s ability to pay dividends, see the discussion under the heading Government Supervision and Regulation Distributions in this report and *Note 15 Regulatory Requirements and Restrictions* of the Notes on page 127 which is incorporated herein by reference.

For information on the Corporation s equity compensation plans, see Item 12 on page 153 of this report and *Note 17* Stock-Based Compensation Plans of the Notes on page 133, both of which are incorporated herein by reference.

The table below presents share repurchase activity for each quarterly period in 2007, each month within the fourth quarter of 2007 and the year ended December 31, 2007, including total common shares repurchased under announced programs, weighted average per share price and the remaining buy back authority under announced programs. For additional information on shareholders equity and earnings per common share, see *Note 14* Shareholders Equity and Earnings Per Common Share of the Notes on page 125 which is incorporated herein by reference.

(Dollars in millions, except per share information; shares in	Common Shares	•	l Average Per Share	Remaining Buyl	Dack Authority (2)
thousands)	Repurchased (1)		Price	Amounts	Shares
Three months ended March 31, 2007	48,000	\$	52.23	\$ 16,366	215,088
Three months ended June 30, 2007	13,450		50.91	15,681	201,638
Three months ended September 30, 2007	9,580		49.47	13,605	192,058
October 1-31, 2007	1,000		47.35	13,558	191,058
November 1-30, 2007	1,700		45.98	13,480	189,358
December 1-31, 2007				13,480	189,358
Three months ended December 31, 2007	2,700		46.49		
Year ended December 31, 2007	73,730		51.42		

⁽¹⁾ Reduced shareholders equity by \$3.8 billion and increased diluted earnings per common share by approximately \$0.02 in 2007. These repurchases were partially offset by the issuance of approximately 53.5 million shares of common stock under employee plans, which increased shareholders equity by \$2.5 billion, net of \$10 million of deferred compensation related to restricted stock awards, and decreased diluted earnings per common share by approximately \$0.01 in 2007.

(2) On January 24, 2007, the Board of Directors (the Board) authorized a stock repurchase program of up to 200 million shares of the Corporation s common stock at an aggregate cost not to exceed \$14.0 billion and is limited to a period of 12 to 18 months. On April 26, 2006, the Board authorized a stock repurchase program of up to 200 million shares of the Corporation s common stock at an aggregate cost not to exceed \$12.0 billion and is limited to a period of 12 to 18 months. This repurchase plan was completed during the third quarter of 2007.

The Corporation did not have any unregistered sales of its equity securities in fiscal year 2007.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

See Table 5 in the MD&A on page 16 and Table XII of the Statistical Tables on page 82 which are incorporated herein by reference.

Item 7. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Table of Contents	Page
Recent Events	10
Merger Overview	11
2007 Economic Overview	11
Performance Overview	12
Financial Highlights	12
Balance Sheet Analysis	14
Supplemental Financial Data	17
Business Segment Operations	19
Global Consumer and Small Business Banking	21
Global Corporate and Investment Banking	25
Global Wealth and Investment Management	31
All Other	34
Off- and On-Balance Sheet Arrangements	35
Obligations and Commitments	38
Managing Risk	40
Strategic Risk Management	41
Liquidity Risk and Capital Management	41
Credit Risk Management	44
Consumer Portfolio Credit Risk Management	45
Commercial Portfolio Credit Risk Management	49
<u>Foreign Portfolio</u>	56
Provision for Credit Losses	58
Allowance for Credit Losses	58
Market Risk Management	61
Trading Risk Management	62
Interest Rate Risk Management for Nontrading Activities	65
Mortgage Banking Risk Management	68
Operational Risk Management	68
Recent Accounting and Reporting Developments	68
Complex Accounting Estimates	68
2006 Compared to 2005	71
Overview	71
Business Segment Operations	72
Statistical Tables	73
Glossary	85
Throughout the MD&A, we use certain acronyms and	

abbreviations which are defined in the Glossary beginning on page 85.

Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Bank of America Corporation and Subsidiaries

This report contains certain statements that are forward-looking within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions that are difficult to predict. Actual outcomes and results may differ materially from those expressed in, or implied by, our forward-looking statements. Words such as expects, anticipates, believes, estimates and other similar expressions or future or conditional verbs such as will, should, would and could are intended to identify such forward-looking statements. Readers of the Annual Report of Bank of America Corporation and its subsidiaries (the Corporation) should not rely solely on the forward-looking statements are representative only as of the date they are made, and the Corporation undertakes no obligation to update any forward-looking statement.

Possible events or factors that could cause results or performance to differ materially from those expressed in our forward-looking statements include the following: changes in general economic conditions and economic conditions in the geographic regions and industries in which the Corporation operates which may affect, among other things, the level of nonperforming assets, charge-offs and provision expense; changes in the interest rate environment and market liquidity which may reduce interest margins, impact funding sources and affect the ability to originate and distribute financial products in the primary and secondary markets; changes in foreign exchange rates; adverse movements and volatility in debt and equity capital markets; changes in market rates and prices which may adversely impact the value of financial products including securities, loans, deposits, debt and derivative financial instruments, and other similar financial instruments; political conditions and related actions by the United States abroad which may adversely affect the Corporation s businesses and economic conditions as a whole; liabilities resulting from litigation and regulatory investigations, including costs, expenses, settlements and judgments; changes in domestic or foreign tax laws, rules and regulations as well as court, Internal Revenue Service or other governmental agencies interpretations thereof; various monetary and fiscal policies and regulations, including those determined by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System, the Office of the Comptroller of Currency, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, state regulators and the Financial Services Authority; changes in accounting standards, rules and interpretations; competition with other local, regional and international banks, thrifts, credit unions and other nonbank financial institutions; ability to grow core businesses; ability to develop and introduce new banking-related products, services and enhancements, and gain market acceptance of such products; mergers and acquisitions and their integration into the Corporation; decisions to downsize, sell or close units or otherwise change the business mix of the Corporation; and management s ability to manage these and other risks.

The Corporation, headquartered in Charlotte, North Carolina, operates in 32 states, the District of Columbia and more than 30 foreign countries. The Corporation provides a diversified range of banking and

nonbanking financial services and products domestically and internationally through three business segments: Global Consumer and Small Business Banking (GCSBB), Global Corporate and Investment Banking (GCIB), and Global Wealth and Investment Management (GWIM).

At December 31, 2007, the Corporation had \$1.7 trillion in assets and approximately 210,000 full-time equivalent employees. Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements referred to in the MD&A are incorporated by reference into the MD&A. Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to current period presentation.

Recent Events

2007 Market Dislocation

During the second half of 2007, extreme dislocations emerged in the financial markets, including the leveraged finance, subprime mortgage, and commercial paper markets. These dislocations were further compounded by the decoupling of typical correlations in the various markets in which we do business. Furthermore, in the fourth quarter of 2007, the credit ratings of certain structured securities (e.g., CDOs) were downgraded which among other things triggered further widening of credit spreads for these types of securities. We have been an active participant in the CDO market and maintain ongoing exposure to these securities and have incurred losses associated with these exposures. For more information regarding *Capital Markets and Advisory Services (CMAS)* results including CDOs, leveraged finance and related ongoing exposure, see the *CMAS* discussion beginning on page 27.

In addition, the market dislocation impacted the credit ratings of structured investment vehicles (SIVs) in the market place. *GWIM* manages certain cash funds which have invested in SIV transactions. We have entered into capital commitments to support these funds and have incurred losses associated with these commitments including losses on certain securities purchased earlier from these funds at fair value. For more information on our cash fund support, see the *GWIM* discussion beginning on page 31.

Table of Contents

In 2008, we continue to have exposure to those items noted above, and depending upon market conditions, we may experience additional losses.

Current Business Environment

The financial conditions mentioned above continue to negatively affect the economy and the financial services sector in 2008. The slowdown of the economy, significant decline in consumer real estate prices, and the continued and rapid deterioration in the housing sector have affected our home equity portfolio and will, in all likelihood, impact other areas of our consumer portfolio. We expect that certain industry sectors, in particular those that are dependent on the housing sector, and certain geographic regions will experience further stress. For more information on the impact of the current business environment on credit, see the Credit Risk Management discussion beginning on page 44.

The subprime mortgage dislocation has also impacted the ratings of certain monoline insurance providers (monolines) which has affected the

pricing of certain municipal securities and the liquidity of the short term public finance markets. We have direct and indirect exposure to monolines and as a result are continuing to monitor this exposure as the markets evolve. For more information related to our monoline exposure, see the Industry Concentrations discussion on page 54.

The above conditions together with uncertainty in energy costs and the overall economic slowdown, which may ultimately lead to recessionary conditions, will affect other markets in which we do business and will adversely impact our results in 2008. The degree of the impact is dependent upon the duration and severity of the aforementioned conditions in this rapidly changing business and interest rate environment. For more information on interest rate sensitivity, see the Interest Rate Risk Management for Nontrading Activities discussion on page 65.

Other Recent Events

In January 2008, we announced changes in our *CMAS* business within *GCIB* which better align the strategy of this business with *GCIB* s broader integrated platform. We will continue to provide corporate, commercial and sponsored clients with debt and equity capital raising services, strategic advice, and a full range of corporate banking capabilities. However, we will reduce activities in certain structured products (e.g., CDOs) and will resize the international platform to emphasize debt, cash management, and selected trading services, including rates and foreign exchange. This realignment will result in the reduction of 650 front office personnel with additional infrastructure headcount reduction to follow. We also plan to sell our equity prime brokerage business. This is in addition to our announcement in October 2007 to eliminate approximately 3,000 positions within various businesses, which includes reductions in *GCIB* as part of our *GCIB* business strategic review to enhance the operating platform, reductions in the wholesale mortgage-related business included in *GCSBB* and reductions in other related infrastructure positions.

In August of 2007, we made a \$2.0 billion investment in Countrywide Financial Corporation (Countrywide), the largest mortgage lender in the U.S., in the form of Series B non-voting convertible preferred securities yielding 7.25 percent. In January 2008, we announced a definitive agreement to purchase all outstanding shares of Countrywide for approximately \$4.0 billion in common stock. The acquisition would make us the nation s leading mortgage lender and loan servicer. The closing of this transaction is subject to closing conditions and regulatory approvals and is expected to close early in the third quarter of 2008.

In January 2008, the Board of Directors (the Board) declared a regular quarterly cash dividend on common stock of \$0.64 per share, payable on March 28, 2008 to common shareholders of record on March 7, 2008. In October 2007, the Board declared a regular quarterly cash dividend on common stock of \$0.64 per share which was paid on December 28, 2007 to common shareholders of record on December 7, 2007. In July 2007, the Board increased the quarterly cash dividend on common stock 14 percent from \$0.56 to \$0.64 per share.

In January 2008, we issued 240 thousand shares of Bank of America Corporation Fixed-to-Floating Rate Non-Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series K with a par value of \$0.01 per share for \$6.0 billion. The fixed rate is 8.00 percent through January 29, 2018 and then adjusts to three-month LIBOR plus 363 basis points (bps) thereafter. In addition, we issued 6.9 million shares of Bank of America Corporation 7.25% Non-Cumulative Perpetual Convertible Preferred Stock, Series L with a par value of \$0.01 per share for \$6.9 billion. In November and December of 2007, we issued 41 thousand shares of Bank of America Corporation 7.25% Non-Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series J with a par value of \$0.01 per share for \$1.0 billion. In September 2007, we issued 22 thousand shares of Bank of America Corporation 6.625% Non-Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series I with a par value of \$0.01 per share for \$500 million.

In December 2007, we completed the sale of Marsico Capital Management, LLC (Marsico), a 100 percent owned investment manager, to Thomas F. Marsico, founder and chief executive officer of Marsico, and realized a pre-tax gain of approximately \$1.5 billion.

Merger Overview

On October 1, 2007, we acquired all the outstanding shares of ABN AMRO North America Holding Company, parent of LaSalle Bank Corporation (LaSalle), for \$21.0 billion in cash. With this acquisition, we significantly expanded our presence in metropolitan Chicago, Illinois and Michigan, by adding LaSalle s commercial banking clients, retail customers and banking centers.

On July 1, 2007, we acquired all the outstanding shares of U.S. Trust Corporation for \$3.3 billion in cash. U.S. Trust Corporation focuses exclusively on managing wealth for high net-worth and ultra high net-worth individuals and families. The acquisition significantly increases the size and capabilities of our wealth management business and positions it as one of the largest financial services companies managing private wealth in the U.S.

On January 1, 2006, we acquired 100 percent of the outstanding stock of MBNA Corporation (MBNA) for \$34.6 billion. The acquisition expanded our customer base and opportunity to deepen customer relationships across the full breadth of the Corporation by delivering innovative deposit, lending and investment products and services to MBNA s customer base. Additionally, the acquisition allowed us to significantly increase our affinity relationships through MBNA s credit card operations and sell these credit cards through our delivery channels including the retail branch network.

For more information related to these mergers, see *Note 2 Merger and Restructuring Activity* to the Corporation's Consolidated Financial Statements.

2007 Economic Overview

In 2007, notwithstanding significant declines in housing, soaring oil prices and tremendous turmoil in financial markets, real Gross Domestic Product (GDP) grew 2.2 percent. Growth softened significantly in the fourth quarter. Consumer spending remained resilient, as increases in employment and wages offset the negative influences of declining home prices. Fueled by another year of strong exports and a slowdown in imports, the U.S. trade deficit fell sharply, lifting U.S. domestic production. However, declines in residential construction subtracted nearly a full percentage point from GDP growth, more than offsetting the boost provided by international trade. Corporate profits declined modestly in the second half of the year from all-time record highs. Global economies recorded their fourth consecutive year of rapid expansion, driven by sustained robust growth in China, India and other emerging market economies. Growth in Europe and Japan moderated in the second half of the year. Higher energy prices pushed up inflation throughout the year. However, excluding food and energy, core inflation receded in the second half of the year, in lagged response to the decleration of nominal spending growth. A sharp rise in defaults on subprime mortgages and worries about the potential fallout from the faltering unprecedented capital losses stemming from sharp declines in the value of structured credit products based on subprime debt deepened the financial crisis. In response, the FRB eased short-term interest rates, reduced the discount rate relative to its federal funds rate target and in December created a new facility for auctioning short-term funds through the discount window of the Federal Reserve Banks. The fourth quarter ended on a weak note, as consumer spending moderated, businesses reduced production, employment slowed and the unemployment rate rose.

Performance Overview

Net income was \$15.0 billion, or \$3.30 per diluted common share in 2007, decreases of 29 percent and 28 percent from \$21.1 billion, or \$4.59 per diluted common share in 2006.

Table 1 Business Segment Total Revenue and Net Income

	Total Revenue ⁽¹⁾			Net Income	
(Dollars in millions)	2007	2006	2007	2006	
Global Consumer and Small Business Banking ⁽²⁾	\$ 47,682	\$ 44,926	\$ 9,430	\$ 11,378	
Global Corporate and Investment Banking	13,417	21,161	538	6,032	
Global Wealth and Investment Management	7,923	7,357	2,095	2,223	
All Other ⁽²⁾	(954)	360	2,919	1,500	
Total FTE basis	68,068	73,804	14,982	21,133	
FTE adjustment	(1,749)	(1,224)			
Total Consolidated	\$ 66,319	\$ 72,580	\$ 14,982	\$ 21,133	

⁽¹⁾ Total revenue is net of interest expense, and is on a FTE basis for the business segments and *All Other*. For more information on a FTE basis, see Supplemental Financial Data beginning on page 17.

⁽²⁾ GCSBB is presented on a managed basis with a corresponding offset recorded in All Other.

Global Consumer and Small Business Banking

Net income decreased \$1.9 billion, or 17 percent, to \$9.4 billion in 2007 compared to 2006. Managed net revenue rose \$2.8 billion, or six percent, to \$47.7 billion driven by increases in both noninterest and net interest income. Noninterest income increased \$2.1 billion, or 13 percent, to \$18.9 billion driven by higher card, service charge and mortgage banking income. Net interest income increased \$612 million, or two percent, to \$28.8 billion due to the impacts of organic growth and the LaSalle acquisition on average loans and leases, and deposits. These increases in revenues were more than offset by the increase in provision for credit losses of \$4.4 billion, or 51 percent, to \$12.9 billion. This increase reflects portfolio growth and seasoning, increases from the unusually low loss levels experienced in 2006 post bankruptcy reform, the impact of housing market weakness on the home equity portfolio, and growth and deterioration in the small business portfolio. Noninterest expense increased \$1.7 billion, or nine percent, mainly due to increases in personnel and technology-related costs. For more information on *GCSBB*, see page 21.

Global Corporate and Investment Banking

Net income decreased \$5.5 billion, or 91 percent, to \$538 million, and total revenue decreased \$7.7 billion, or 37 percent, to \$13.4 billion in 2007 compared to 2006. These decreases were driven by \$5.6 billion in losses resulting from our CDO exposure and other trading losses. These decreases were partially offset by an increase in net interest income, primarily market-based, of \$1.3 billion, or 14 percent. The provision for credit losses increased \$643 million driven by the absence of 2006 releases of reserves, higher net charge-offs and an increase in reserves during 2007 reflecting the impact of the weak housing market particularly on the homebuilder loan portfolio. Noninterest expense increased \$347 million, or three percent, mainly due to an increase in expenses related to the addition of LaSalle partially offset by a reduction in *CMAS* performance-based incentive compensation. For more information on *GCIB*, see page 25.

Global Wealth and Investment Management

Net income decreased \$128 million, or six percent, to \$2.1 billion in 2007 compared to 2006 as an increase in noninterest expense was partially offset by an increase in total revenue. Total revenue grew \$566 million, or eight percent, to \$7.9 billion driven by higher noninterest income of \$380 million. Noninterest income increased due to growth in investment and brokerage services income of \$827 million. The increase was due to higher AUM primarily attributable to the impact of the U.S. Trust Corpo-

ration acquisition, net client inflows and favorable market conditions combined with an increase in brokerage activity. This increase was partially offset by a decrease in all other income of \$447 million due to losses of \$382 million associated with the support provided to certain cash funds. Noninterest expense increased \$768 million driven by the addition of U.S. Trust Corporation, higher revenue-related expenses and marketing costs.

AUM increased \$100.6 billion to \$643.5 billion at December 31, 2007 compared to December 31, 2006 reflecting the acquisition of U.S. Trust Corporation, net inflows and market appreciation which was partially offset by the sale of Marsico. For more information on *GWIM*, see page 31.

All Other

Net income increased \$1.4 billion to \$2.9 billion in 2007 compared to 2006. Excluding the securitization offset, total revenue increased \$283 million resulting from an increase in noninterest income of \$1.6 billion partially offset by a decrease in net interest income of \$1.3 billion. The increase in noninterest income was driven by the \$1.5 billion gain from the sale of Marsico and an increase of \$873 million in equity investment income, partially offset by losses of \$394 million on securities after they were purchased from certain cash funds managed within *GWIM* at fair value. In addition, net interest income, noninterest income and noninterest expense decreased due to certain international operations that were sold in late 2006 and the beginning of 2007. Merger and restructuring charges decreased \$395 million. For more information on *All Other*, see page 34.

Financial Highlights

Net Interest Income

Net interest income on a FTE basis increased \$367 million to \$36.2 billion for 2007 compared to 2006. The increase was driven by the contribution from market-based net interest income related to our *CMAS* business, higher levels of consumer and commercial loans, the impact of the LaSalle acquisition, and a one-time tax benefit from restructuring our existing non-U.S. based commercial aircraft leasing business. These increases were partially offset by spread compression, increased hedge costs and the impact of divestitures of certain foreign operations in late 2006 and the beginning of 2007. The net interest yield on a FTE basis decreased 22 bps to 2.60 percent for 2007 compared to 2006, and was driven by spread compression, and the impact of the funding of the LaSalle merger, partially offset by an improvement in market-based yield

related to our CMAS business. For more information on net interest income on a FTE basis, see Tables I and II beginning on page 73.

Noninterest Income

Table 2 Noninterest Income

(Dollars in millions)	2007	2006
Card income	\$ 14,077	\$ 14,290
Service charges	8,908	8,224
Investment and brokerage services	5,147	4,456
Investment banking income	2,345	2,317
Equity investment income	4,064	3,189
Trading account profits (losses)	(5,131)	3,166
Mortgage banking income	902	541
Gains (losses) on sales of debt securities	180	(443)
Other income	1,394	2,249
Total noninterest income	\$ 31,886	\$ 37,989
Noninterest income decreased \$6.1 billion to \$31.9 billion in 2007 compared to 2006.	\$ 31,000	\$ 37,969

Card income on a held basis decreased \$213 million primarily due to the impact of higher credit losses on excess servicing income resulting
from seasoning in the securitized portfolio and increases from the unusually low loss levels experienced in 2006 post bankruptcy reform. This
decrease was partially offset by increases in cash advance fees and debit card interchange income.

Service charges grew \$684 million resulting from new account growth in deposit accounts and the beneficial impact of the LaSalle merger.

- Investment and brokerage services increased \$691 million due primarily to organic growth in AUM, brokerage activity and the U.S. Trust Corporation acquisition.
- Equity investment income increased \$875 million driven by the \$600 million gain on the sale of private equity funds to Conversus Capital and the increase in income received on strategic investments.
- Trading account profits (losses) were \$(5.1) billion in 2007 compared to \$3.2 billion in 2006. The decrease in trading account profits (losses) was
 driven by losses of \$4.9 billion, out of a total of \$5.6 billion in losses, associated with CDO exposure and the impact of the market disruptions on
 various parts of our CMAS businesses in the second half of the year. For more information on the impact of these events refer to the GCIB
 discussion beginning on page 25.
- Mortgage banking income increased \$361 million due to the favorable performance of the MSRs partially offset by the impact of widening credit spreads on income from mortgage production. Mortgage banking also benefited from the adoption of the fair value option.
- Gains (losses) on sales of debt securities were \$180 million for 2007 compared to \$(443) million for 2006. The losses in the prior year were largely a result of the sale of \$43.7 billion of mortgage-backed debt securities in the third quarter of 2006.
- Other income decreased \$855 million as the \$1.5 billion gain from the sale of Marsico was more than offset by fourth quarter losses of \$752 million, out of a total of \$5.6 billion in losses associated with our CDO exposure, losses of \$394 million on securities after they were purchased from certain cash funds at fair value, losses of \$382 million associated with the support provided to certain cash funds managed within *GWIM*, and the absence of a \$720 million gain on the sale of our Brazilian operations recognized in 2006.

Provision for Credit Losses

The provision for credit losses increased \$3.4 billion to \$8.4 billion in 2007 compared to 2006 due to higher net charge-offs, reserve additions and the absence of 2006 commercial reserve releases. Higher net charge-offs of \$1.9 billion were primarily driven by seasoning of the consumer portfolios, seasoning and deterioration in the small business and home equity portfolios as well as lower commercial recoveries. Reserves were increased in the home equity and homebuilder loan portfolios on continued weakness in the housing market. Reserves were also added for small business portfolio seasoning and deterioration as well as growth in the consumer portfolios. These increases were partially offset by reductions in reserves from the sale of the Argentina portfolio in the first quarter of 2007. For more information on credit quality, see Provision for Credit Losses beginning on page 58.

Noninterest Expense

Table 3 Noninterest Expense

(Dollars in millions)	2007	2006
Personnel	\$ 18,753	\$ 18,211
Occupancy	3,038	2,826
Equipment	1,391	1,329
Marketing	2,356	2,336
Professional fees	1,174	1,078
Amortization of intangibles	1,676	1,755
Data processing	1,962	1,732
Telecommunications	1,013	945
Other general operating	5,237	4,580
Merger and restructuring charges	410	805
Total noninterest expense	\$ 37,010	\$ 35,597

Noninterest expense increased \$1.4 billion to \$37.0 billion in 2007 compared to 2006, primarily due to increases in personnel expense and other general operating expense partially offset by a decrease in merger and restructuring charges. Personnel expense increased \$542 million due to the acquisitions of LaSalle and U.S. Trust Corporation partially offset by a reduction in performance-based incentive compensation within *GCIB*. Other general operating expense increased by \$657 million and was impacted by our acquisitions and various other items including litigation- related costs. Merger and restructuring charges decreased \$395 million mainly due to the declining integration costs associated with the MBNA acquisition partially offset by costs associated with the integration of U.S. Trust Corporation and LaSalle.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense was \$5.9 billion in 2007 compared to \$10.8 billion in 2006, resulting in an effective tax rate of 28.4 percent in 2007 and 33.9 percent in 2006. The decrease in the effective tax rate was primarily due to lower pre-tax income, a one-time tax benefit from restructuring our existing non-U.S. based commercial aircraft leasing business and an increase in the relative percentage of our earnings taxed solely outside of the U.S. In addition, the 2007 effective tax rate excludes the impact of a \$175 million charge in 2006 resulting from a change in tax legislation. For more information on income tax expense, see *Note 18 Income Taxes* to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Balance Sheet Analysis

Table 4 Selected Balance Sheet Data

	December 31		Average Balance		
(Dollars in millions)	2007	2006	2007	2006	
Assets					
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell	\$ 129,552	\$ 135,478	\$ 155,828	\$ 175,334	
Trading account assets	162,064	153,052	187,287	145,321	
Debt securities	214,056	192,846	186,466	225,219	
Loans and leases, net of allowance for loan and lease losses	864,756	697,474	766,329	643,259	
All other assets	345,318	280,887	306,163	277,548	
Total assets	\$ 1,715,746	\$ 1,459,737	\$ 1,602,073	\$ 1,466,681	
Liabilities					
Deposits	\$ 805,177	\$ 693,497	\$717,182	\$ 672,995	
Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase	221,435	217,527	253,481	286,903	
Trading account liabilities	77,342	67,670	82,721	64,689	
Commercial paper and other short-term borrowings	191,089	141,300	171,333	124,229	
Long-term debt	197,508	146,000	169,855	130,124	
All other liabilities	76,392	58,471	70,839	57,278	
Total liabilities	1,568,943	1,324,465	1,465,411	1,336,218	
Shareholders equity	146,803	135,272	136,662	130,463	
Total liabilities and shareholders equity	\$ 1,715,746	\$ 1,459,737	\$ 1,602,073	\$ 1,466,681	

At December 31, 2007, total assets were \$1.7 trillion, an increase of \$256.0 billion, or 18 percent, from December 31, 2006. Growth in period end total assets was due to an increase in loans and leases, AFS debt securities and all other assets. The increase in loans and leases was attributable to organic growth and the LaSalle merger. The increases in AFS debt securities and all other assets were driven by the LaSalle merger. The fair value of the assets acquired in the LaSalle merger was approximately \$120 billion. All other assets also increased due to higher loans held-for-sale and the fair market value adjustment associated with our investment in China Construction Bank (CCB).

Average total assets in 2007 increased \$135.4 billion, or nine percent, from 2006 primarily due to the increase in average loans and leases driven by the same factors as described above. Average trading account assets also increased during 2007 reflective of growth in the underlying business in the first half of 2007. These increases were partially offset by a decrease in AFS debt securities. The acquisition of LaSalle occurred in the fourth quarter of 2007 minimizing its impact on the average balance sheet.

At December 31, 2007, total liabilities were \$1.6 trillion, an increase of \$244.5 billion, or 18 percent, from December 31, 2006. Average total liabilities in 2007 increased \$129.2 billion, or 10 percent, from 2006. The increase in period end and average total liabilities was attributable to increases in deposits and long-term debt, which were utilized to support the growth in overall assets. In addition, the increase in period end and average total liabilities was due to the funding of, and the assumption of liabilities associated with, the LaSalle merger. The fair value of the liabilities assumed in the LaSalle merger was approximately \$100 billion.

Trading Account Assets

Trading account assets consist primarily of fixed income securities (including government and corporate debt), equity and convertible instruments. The average balance increased \$42.0 billion to \$187.3 billion in 2007, due to growth in client-driven market-making activities in interest rate, credit and equity products but was negatively impacted by the market disruptions in the second half of 2007. For additional information, see Market Risk Management beginning on page 61.

Debt Securities

AFS debt securities include fixed income securities such as mortgage-backed securities, foreign debt, ABS, municipal debt, U.S. Government agencies and corporate debt. We use the AFS portfolio primarily to manage interest rate risk and liquidity risk and to take advantage of market conditions that create more economically attractive returns on these investments. The average balance in the debt securities portfolio decreased \$38.8 billion from 2006 due to the third quarter 2006 sale of \$43.7 billion of mortgage-backed securities as well as maturities and paydowns. The period end balances were also impacted by the addition of LaSalle. For additional information on our AFS debt securities portfolio, see Market Risk Management Securities on page 66 and *Note 5 Securities* to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Loans and Leases, Net of Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses

Average loans and leases, net of allowance for loan and lease losses, was \$766.3 billion in 2007, an increase of 19 percent from 2006. The average consumer loan and lease portfolio increased \$88.3 billion primarily due to higher retained mortgage production. The average commercial loan and lease portfolio increased \$35.4 billion primarily due to organic growth. The average commercial and, to a lesser extent, consumer loans and leases increased due to the addition of loans acquired as a result of the LaSalle merger. For a more detailed discussion of the loan portfolio and the allowance for credit losses, see Credit Risk Management beginning on page 44, *Note 6 Outstanding Loans and Leases* and *Note 7 Allowance for Credit Losses* to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

All Other Assets

Period end all other assets increased \$64.4 billion at December 31, 2007, an increase of 23 percent from December 31, 2006, driven primarily by an increase of \$15.9 billion in loans held-for-sale and a pre-tax \$13.4 billion fair value adjustment associated with our CCB investment. Additionally, the increase in all other assets was impacted by the LaSalle merger.

Deposits

Average deposits increased \$44.2 billion to \$717.2 billion in 2007 compared to 2006 due to a \$31.3 billion increase in average domestic interest-bearing deposits and a \$16.6 billion increase in average foreign interest-bearing deposits. We categorize our deposits as core or market-based deposits. Core deposits are generally customer-based and represent a stable, low-cost funding source that usually reacts more slowly to interest rate changes than market-based deposits. Core deposits include savings, NOW and money market accounts, consumer CDs and IRAs, and noninterest-bearing deposits. Core deposits exclude negotiable CDs, public funds, other domestic time deposits and foreign interest-bearing deposits. Average core deposits increased \$19.3 billion to \$593.9 billion in 2007, a three percent increase from the prior year. The increase was attributable to growth in our average consumer CDs and IRAs due to a shift from noninterest-bearing and lower yielding deposits and \$16.6 billion in foreign interest-bearing deposits and \$8.4 billion in negotiable CDs, public funds and other time deposits related to funding of \$16.6 billion in foreign interest-bearing deposits and \$8.4 billion in negotiable CDs, public funds and other time deposits related to funding of growth in core and market-based assets. The increase in deposits was also impacted by the assumption of deposits, primarily money market, consumer CDs, and other domestic time deposits associated with the LaSalle merger.

Trading Account Liabilities

Trading account liabilities consist primarily of short positions in fixed income securities (including government and corporate debt), equity and convertible instruments. The average balance increased \$18.0 billion to

\$82.7 billion in 2007, which was due to growth in client-driven market- making activities in equity products, partially offset by a reduction in usage targets for a variety of client activities.

Commercial Paper and Other Short-term Borrowings

Commercial paper and other short-term borrowings provide a funding source to supplement deposits in our ALM strategy. The average balance increased \$47.1 billion to \$171.3 billion in 2007, mainly due to increased commercial paper and Federal Home Loan Bank advances to fund core asset growth, primarily in the ALM portfolio and the funding of the LaSalle acquisition.

Long-term Debt

Average long-term debt increased \$39.7 billion to \$169.9 billion. The increase resulted from the funding of core asset growth, and the funding of, and assumption of liabilities associated with, the LaSalle merger. For additional information, see *Note 12 Short-term Borrowings and Long-term Debt* to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Shareholders Equity

Period end and average shareholders equity increased \$11.5 billion and \$6.2 billion due to net income, increased net gains in accumulated OCI, including an \$8.4 billion, net-of-tax, fair value adjustment relating to our investment in CCB, common stock issued in connection with employee benefit plans, and preferred stock issued. These increases were partially offset by dividend payments, share repurchases and the adoption of certain new accounting standards.

Table 5 Five Year Summary of Selected Financial Data

(Dollars in millions, except per share					
information)	2007	2006	2005	2004	2003
Income statement	2007	2000	2000	2004	2000
Net interest income	\$ 34,433	\$ 34,591	\$ 30,737	\$ 27,960	\$ 20,505
Noninterest income	31,886	37,989	26,438	22,729	18,270
Total revenue, net of interest expense	66,319	72,580	57,175	50,689	38,775
Provision for credit losses	8,385	5,010	4,014	2,769	2,839
Noninterest expense, before merger and	0,305	5,010	4,014	2,709	2,039
restructuring charges	36,600	34,792	28,269	26,394	20,155
	410	34,792 805	20,209	20,394	20,155
Merger and restructuring charges	-				15 701
Income before income taxes	20,924	31,973	24,480	20,908	15,781
Income tax expense	5,942	10,840	8,015	6,961	5,019
Net income	14,982	21,133	16,465	13,947	10,762
Average common shares issued and					
outstanding (in thousands)	4,423,579	4,526,637	4,008,688	3,758,507	2,973,407
Average diluted common shares issued and					
outstanding (in thousands)	4,480,254	4,595,896	4,068,140	3,823,943	3,030,356
Performance ratios					
Return on average assets	0.94%	1.44%	1.30%	1.34%	1.44%
Return on average common shareholders					
equity	11.08	16.27	16.51	16.47	21.50
Return on average tangible shareholders equity					
(1)	22.25	32.80	30.19	28.93	27.84
Total ending equity to total ending assets	8.56	9.27	7.86	9.03	6.76
Total average equity to total average assets	8.53	8.90	7.86	8.12	6.69
Dividend payout	72.26	45.66	46.61	46.31	39.76
Per common share data					
Earnings	\$ 3.35	\$ 4.66	\$ 4.10	\$ 3.71	\$ 3.62
Diluted earnings	3.30	4.59	4.04	3.64	3.55
Dividends paid	2.40	2.12	1.90	1.70	1.44
Book value	32.09	29.70	25.32	24.70	16.86
Market price per share of common stock					
Closing	\$ 41.26	\$ 53.39	\$ 46.15	\$ 46.99	\$ 40.22
High closing	54.05	54.90	47.08	47.44	41.77
Low closing	41.10	43.09	41.57	38.96	32.82
Market capitalization	\$ 183,107	\$ 238,021	\$ 184,586	\$ 190,147	\$ 115,926
Average balance sheet	φ ισσ,τστ	φ 200,021	φ 101,000	φ 100,111	φ 110,020
Total loans and leases	\$ 776,154	\$ 652,417	\$ 537,218	\$ 472,617	\$ 356,220
Total assets	1,602,073	1,466,681	1,269,892	1,044,631	749,104
Total deposits	717,182	672,995	632,432	551,559	406,233
Long-term debt	169,855	130,124	97,709	92,303	67,077
Common shareholders equity	133,555	129,773	99,590	84,584	50,035
Total shareholders equity		130,463			
Asset Quality	136,662	130,403	99,861	84,815	50,091
Allowance for credit losses ⁽²⁾	\$ 12,106	\$ 9,413	\$ 8,440	\$ 9.028	\$ 6,579
	φ 12,100	φ 9,413	\$ 8,440	φ 9,020	\$ 0,579
Nonperforming assets measured at historical	5 0 4 0	4 050	4 000	0.455	0.004
cost	5,948	1,856	1,603	2,455	3,021
Allowance for loan and lease losses as a					
percentage of total loans and					
leases outstanding measured at historical cost					
(3)	1.33%	1.28%	1.40%	1.65%	1.66%
Allowance for loan and lease losses as a	207	505	532	390	215
percentage of total nonperforming					

loans and leases measured at historical cost Net charge-offs Net charge-offs as a percentage of average loans and leases outstanding	\$	6,480	\$	4,539	\$	4,562	\$	3,113	\$	3,106
measured at historical cost ⁽³⁾ Nonperforming loans and leases as a percentage of total loans and leases		0.84%		0.70%		0.85%		0.66%		0.87%
outstanding measured at historical cost ⁽³⁾ Nonperforming assets as a percentage of total Ioans, leases and foreclosed		0.64		0.25		0.26		0.42		0.77
properties ⁽³⁾ Ratio of the allowance for loan and lease losses at December 31 to net		0.68		0.26		0.28		0.47		0.81
charge-offs Capital ratios (period end) Risk-based capital:		1.79		1.99		1.76		2.77		1.98
Tier 1		6.87%		8.64%		8.25%		8.20%		8.02%
Total		11.02		11.88		11.08		11.73		12.05
Tier 1 Leverage		5.04		6.36		5.91		5.89		5.86
⁽¹⁾ Tangible shareholders equity is a non-GAAP	measi	ire. For addi	tional i	nformation of	n RO	[F and a cor	respoi	ndina recona	ciliation	of tangible

⁽¹⁾Tangible shareholders equity is a non-GAAP measure. For additional information on ROTE and a corresponding reconciliation of tangible shareholders equity to a GAAP financial measure, see Supplemental Financial Data beginning on page 17.

⁽²⁾ Includes the allowance for loan and lease losses, and the reserve for unfunded lending commitments.

⁽³⁾ Ratios do not include loans measured at fair value in accordance with SFAS 159 at and for the year ended December 31, 2007. Loans measured at fair value were \$4.59 billion at December 31, 2007.

Supplemental Financial Data

Table 6 provides a reconciliation of the supplemental financial data mentioned below with financial measures defined by GAAP. Other companies may define or calculate supplemental financial data differently.

Operating Basis Presentation

In managing our business, we may at times look at performance excluding certain nonrecurring items. For example, as an alternative to net income, we view results on an operating basis, which represents net income excluding merger and restructuring charges. The operating basis of presentation is not defined by GAAP. We believe that the exclusion of merger and restructuring charges, which represent events outside our normal operations, provides a meaningful year-to-year comparison and is more reflective of normalized operations.

Net Interest Income FTE Basis

In addition, we view net interest income and related ratios and analysis (i.e., efficiency ratio, net interest yield and operating leverage) on a FTE basis. Although this is a non-GAAP measure, we believe managing the business with net interest income on a FTE basis provides a more accurate picture of the interest margin for comparative purposes. To derive the FTE basis, net interest income is adjusted to reflect tax-exempt income on an equivalent before-tax basis with a corresponding increase in income tax expense. For purposes of this calculation, we use the federal statutory tax rate of 35 percent. This measure ensures comparability of net interest income arising from taxable and tax-exempt sources.

Performance Measures

As mentioned above, certain performance measures including the efficiency ratio, net interest yield and operating leverage utilize net interest income (and thus total revenue) on a FTE basis. The efficiency ratio measures the costs expended to generate a dollar of revenue, and net interest yield evaluates how many basis points we are earning over the cost of funds. Operating leverage measures the total percentage revenue growth minus the total percentage expense growth for the corresponding period. During our annual integrated planning process, we set operating leverage and efficiency targets for the Corporation and each line of business. We believe the use of these non-GAAP measures provides additional clarity in assessing our results. Targets vary by year and by business, and are based on a variety of factors including maturity of the business, investment appetite, competitive environment, market factors, and other items (e.g., risk appetite). The aforementioned performance measures and ratios, return on average assets and dividend payout ratio, as well as those measures discussed more fully below, are presented in Table 6.

Return on Average Common Shareholders Equity and Return on Average Tangible Shareholders Equity

We also evaluate our business based upon ROE and ROTE measures. ROE and ROTE utilize non-GAAP allocation methodologies. ROE measures the earnings contribution of a unit as a percentage of the shareholders equity allocated to that unit. ROTE measures our earnings contribution as a percentage of shareholders equity reduced by goodwill. These measures are used to evaluate our use of equity (i.e., capital) at the individual unit level and are integral components in the analytics for resource allocation. In addition, profitability, relationship, and investment models all use ROE as key measures to support our overall growth goal.

Table 6 Supplemental Financial Data and Reconciliations to GAAP Financial Measures

(Dollars in millions)	2007	2006	2005	2004	2003
Operating basis	¢ 15.040	¢ 01 040	¢ 10 740	¢ 14.050	¢ 10.700
Operating earnings	\$ 15,240	\$ 21,640	\$ 16,740	\$ 14,358	\$ 10,762
Return on average assets	0.95% 11.27	1.48% 16.66	1.32% 16.79	1.37% 16.96	1.44% 21.50
Return on average common shareholders equity Return on average tangible shareholders equity	22.64	33.59	30.70	29.79	27.84
Operating efficiency ratio (FTE basis)	53.77	47.14	48.73	51.35	51.13
Dividend payout ratio	71.02	44.59	45.84	44.98	39.76
Operating leverage (FTE basis)	(12.97)	44.39	5.74	(0.55)	(0.41)
FTE basis data	(12.57)	4.15	5.74	(0.00)	(0.41)
Net interest income	\$ 36,182	\$ 35,815	\$ 31,569	\$ 28,677	\$ 21,149
Total revenue, net of interest expense	68,068	73,804	58,007	φ 20,077 51,406	39,419
Net interest yield	2.60%	2.82%	2.84%	3.17%	3.26%
Efficiency ratio	54.37	48.23	49.44	52.55	51.13
Reconciliation of net income to operating earnings	0 1101	10.20	10.111	02.00	01.10
Net income	\$ 14,982	\$ 21,133	\$ 16,465	\$ 13,947	\$ 10,762
Merger and restructuring charges	410	805	412	618	+
Related income tax benefit	(152)	(298)	(137)	(207)	
Operating earnings	\$ 15,240	\$ 21,640	\$ 16,740	\$ 14,358	\$ 10,762
Reconciliation of average shareholders equity to	¥ -) -	·)	· · · · ·	¥ ,	, .
average tangible shareholders equity					
Average shareholders equity	\$ 136,662	\$ 130,463	\$ 99,861	\$ 84,815	\$ 50,091
Average goodwill	(69,333)	(66,040)	(45,331)	(36,612)	(11,440)
Average tangible shareholders equity	\$ 67,329	\$ 64,423	\$ 54,530	\$ 48,203	\$ 38,651
Reconciliation of return on average assets to operating					
return on average assets					
Return on average assets	0.94%	1.44%	1.30%	1.34%	1.44%
Effect of merger and restructuring charges, net-of-tax	0.01	0.04	0.02	0.03	
Operating return on average assets	0.95%	1.48%	1.32%	1.37%	1.44%
Reconciliation of return on average common					
shareholders equity to operating return on average					
common shareholders equity					
Return on average common shareholders equity	11.08%	16.27%	16.51%	16.47%	21.50%
Effect of merger and restructuring charges, net-of-tax	0.19	0.39	0.28	0.49	
Operating return on average common shareholders equity	11.27%	16.66%	16.79%	16.96%	21.50%
Reconciliation of return on average tangible					
shareholders equity to operating return on average					
tangible shareholders equity	00.050/	00.000/	00.100/	00.000/	07.040/
Return on average tangible shareholders equity	22.25%	32.80%	30.19%	28.93%	27.84%
Effect of merger and restructuring charges, net-of-tax Operating return on average tangible shareholders equity	0.39 22.64%	0.79 33.59%	0.51 30.70%	0.86 29.79%	27.84%
Reconciliation of efficiency ratio to operating efficiency	22.04%	33.39%	30.70%	29.79%	27.84%
ratio (FTE basis)					
Efficiency ratio	54.37%	48.23%	49.44%	52.55%	51.13%
Effect of merger and restructuring charges	(0.60)	(1.09)	(0.71)	(1.20)	51.1576
Operating efficiency ratio	53.77%	47.14%	48.73%	51.35%	51.13%
Reconciliation of dividend payout ratio to operating	00.11/0	47.1470	40.7070	01.0070	01.1070
dividend payout ratio					
Dividend payout ratio	72.26%	45.66%	46.61%	46.31%	39.76%
Effect of merger and restructuring charges, net-of-tax	(1.24)	(1.07)	(0.77)	(1.33)	00070
Operating dividend payout ratio	71.02%	44.59%	45.84%	44.98%	39.76%
Reconciliation of operating leverage to operating basis	- /-				
operating leverage (FTE basis)					
Operating leverage	(11.74)%	3.12%	6.67%	(3.62)%	(0.41)%
Effect of merger and restructuring charges	(1.23)	1.03	(0.93)	`3.07 [´]	. ,

Operating leverage	(12.97)%	4.15%	5.74%	(0.55)%	(0.41)%

Table 7 Core Net Interest Income Managed Basis

(Dollars in millions) Net interest income ⁽¹⁾	2007	2006	2005
As reported	\$ 36,182	\$ 35,815	\$ 31,569
Impact of market-based net interest income ⁽²⁾	(2,716)	(1,660)	(1,975)
Core net interest income	33,466	34,155	29,594
Impact of securitizations ⁽³⁾	7,841	7,045	323
Core net interest income managed basis	\$ 41,307	\$ 41,200	\$ 29,917
Average earning assets			
As reported	\$ 1,390,192	\$ 1,269,144	\$ 1,111,994
Impact of market-based earning assets (2)	(412,326)	(370,187)	(323,361)
Core average earning assets	977,866	898,957	788,633
Impact of securitizations	103,371	98,152	9,033
Core average earning assets managed basis	\$ 1,081,237	\$ 997,109	\$ 797,666
Net interest yield contribution (1)		. ,	
As reported	2.60%	2.82%	2.84%
Impact of market-based activities (2)	0.82	0.98	0.91
Core net interest yield on earning assets	3.42	3.80	3.75
Impact of securitizations	0.40	0.33	
Core net interest yield on earning assets managed basis	3.82%	4.13%	3.75%

⁽²⁾ Represents the impact of market-based amounts included in the *CMAS* business within *GCIB* and excludes \$70 million of net interest income on loans for which the fair value option has been elected.

⁽³⁾ Represents the impact of securitizations utilizing actual bond costs. This is different from the business segment view which utilizes funds transfer pricing methodologies.

Core Net Interest Income Managed Basis

We manage core net interest income managed basis, which adjusts reported net interest income on a FTE basis for the impact of market-based activities and certain securitizations, net of retained securities. As discussed in the *GCIB* business segment section beginning on page 25, we evaluate our market-based results and strategies on a total market-based revenue approach by combining net interest income and noninterest income for *CMAS*. We also adjust for loans that we originated and subsequently sold into certain securitizations. These securitizations include off-balance sheet loans and leases, primarily credit card securitizations where servicing is retained by the Corporation, but excludes first mortgage securitizations. Noninterest income, rather than net interest income and provision for credit losses, is recorded for assets that have been securitized as we are compensated for servicing the securitized assets and record servicing income and gains or losses on securitizations, where appropriate. We believe the use of this non-GAAP presentation provides additional clarity in managing our results. An analysis of core net interest income managed basis, core average earning assets managed basis and core net interest yield on earning assets managed basis, which adjusts for the impact of these two non-core items from reported net interest income on a FTE basis, is shown in the table above.

Core net interest income on a managed basis increased \$107 million in 2007 compared to 2006. The increase was driven by higher levels of consumer and commercial loans, the impact of the LaSalle acquisition, and a one-time tax benefit from restructuring our existing non-U.S. based commercial aircraft leasing business. These increases were partially offset by spread compression, increased hedge costs and the impact of divestitures of certain foreign operations in late 2006 and the beginning of 2007.

On a managed basis, core average earning assets increased \$84.1 billion in 2007 compared to 2006 due to higher levels of consumer and commercial managed loans and increased levels from ALM activities partially offset by a decrease in average balances from the divestitures mentioned above.

Core net interest yield on a managed basis decreased 31 bps to 3.82 percent compared to 2006 and was driven by spread compression, higher costs of deposits, the impact of the funding of the LaSalle merger and the sale of certain foreign operations.

Business Segment Operations

Segment Description

We report the results of our operations through three business segments: *GCSBB, GCIB* and *GWIM*, with the remaining operations recorded in *All Other.* Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to current period presentation. For more information on our basis of presentation, selected financial information for the business segments and reconciliations to consolidated total revenue, net income and period end total asset amounts, see *Note 22 Business Segment Information* to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Basis of Presentation

We prepare and evaluate segment results using certain non-GAAP methodologies and performance measures, many of which are discussed in Supplemental Financial Data beginning on page 17. We begin by evaluating the operating results of the businesses which by definition excludes merger and restructuring charges. The segment results also reflect certain revenue and expense methodologies which are utilized to determine net income. The net interest income of the businesses includes the results of a funds transfer pricing process that matches assets and liabilities with similar interest rate sensitivity and maturity characteristics.

The management accounting reporting process derives segment and business results by utilizing allocation methodologies for revenue, expense and capital. The net income derived for the businesses is dependent upon revenue and cost allocations using an activity-based costing model, funds transfer pricing, and other methodologies and assumptions management believes are appropriate to reflect the results of the business.

Our ALM activities maintain an overall interest rate risk management strategy that incorporates the use of interest rate contracts to manage fluctuations in earnings that are caused by interest rate volatility. Our goal is to manage interest rate sensitivity so that movements in interest rates do not significantly adversely affect net interest income. The results of the business segments will fluctuate based on the performance of corporate ALM activities. Some ALM activities are recorded in the businesses (*e.g., Deposits*) such as external product pricing decisions, including deposit pricing strategies, as well as the effects of our internal funds transfer pricing process. The net effects of other ALM activities are reported in each of our segments under *ALM/Other*. In addition, certain residual impacts of the funds transfer pricing process are retained in *All Other*.

Certain expenses not directly attributable to a specific business segment are allocated to the segments based on pre-determined means. The most significant of these expenses include data processing costs, item processing costs and certain centralized or shared functions. Data

processing costs are allocated to the segments based on equipment usage. Item processing costs are allocated to the segments based on the volume of items processed for each segment. The costs of certain centralized or shared functions are allocated based on methodologies which reflect utilization.

Equity is allocated to business segments and related businesses using a risk-adjusted methodology incorporating each unit s credit, market, interest rate and operational risk components. The Corporation as a whole benefits from risk diversification across the different businesses. This benefit is reflected as a reduction to allocated equity for each segment and is recorded in *ALM/Other*. The nature of these risks is discussed further beginning on page 40. Average equity is allocated to the business segments and related businesses, and is impacted by the portion of goodwill that is specifically assigned to the businesses and the unallocated portion of goodwill that resides in *ALM/Other*.

Global Consumer and Small Business Banking

			2007		
					ALM/
			Card	Consumer	
(Dollars in millions)	Total (1)	Deposits	Services (1)	Real Estate (2)	Other
Net interest income ⁽³⁾	\$ 28,809	\$ 9,423	\$ 16,562	\$ 2,281	\$ 543
Noninterest income:					
Card income	10,189	2,155	8,028	6	
Service charges	6,008	6,003		5	
Mortgage banking income	1,333			1,333	
All other income	1,343	(4)	943	54	350
Total noninterest income	18,873	8,154	8,971	1,398	350
Total revenue, net of interest expense	47,682	17,577	25,533	3,679	893
Provision for credit losses ⁽⁴⁾	12,929	256	11,317	1,041	315
Noninterest expense	20,060	9,106	8,294	2,033	627
Income (loss) before income taxes	14,693	8,215	5,922	605	(49)
Income tax expense (benefit) (3)	5,263	2,988	2,210	234	(169)
Net income	\$ 9,430	\$ 5,227	\$ 3,712	\$ 371	\$ 120
Net interest yield ⁽³⁾	8.15%	2.97%	7.87%	2.04%	n/m
Return on average equity (5)	14.94	33.61	8.43	9.00	n/m
Efficiency ratio (3)	42.07	51.81	32.49	55.24	n/m
Period end total assets ⁶⁾	\$ 442,987	\$ 358,626	\$ 257,000	\$ 133,324	n/m

			2006		
					ALM/
			Card	Consumer	
(Dollars in millions)	Total (1)	Deposits	Services (1)	Real Estate (2)	Other
Net interest income ⁽³⁾	\$ 28,197	\$ 9,405	\$ 16,357	\$ 1,994	\$ 441
Noninterest income:					
Card income	9,374	1,907	7,460	7	
Service charges	5,342	5,338		4	
Mortgage banking income	877			877	
All other income	1,136	1	819	27	289
Total noninterest income	16,729	7,246	8,279	915	289
Total revenue, net of interest expense	44,926	16,651	24,636	2,909	730
Provision for credit losses ⁽⁴⁾	8,534	165	8,089	63	217
Noninterest expense	18,375	8,783	7,519	1,718	355
Income before income taxes	18,017	7,703	9,028	1,128	158
Income tax expense (3)	6,639	2,840	3,328	416	55
Net income	\$ 11,378	\$ 4,863	\$ 5,700	\$ 712	\$ 103
Net interest yield ⁽³⁾	8.20%	2.93%	8.52%	2.19%	n/m
Return on average equity (5)	18.11	33.42	12.90	22.18	n/m
Efficiency ratio (3)	40.90	52.75	30.52	59.06	n/m
Period end total assets ⁶⁾	\$ 399,373	\$ 339,717	\$ 235,106	\$ 101,175	n/m
(1) Presented on a managed basis specifically Card Services					

⁽¹⁾ Presented on a managed basis, specifically *Card Services*.

⁽²⁾ Effective January 1, 2007, *GCSBB* combined the former *Mortgage* and *Home Equity* businesses into *Consumer Real Estate*. ⁽³⁾ FTE basis

⁽⁴⁾ Represents provision for credit losses on held loans combined with realized credit losses associated with the securitized loan portfolio.

 $^{(5)}$ Average allocated equity for *GCSBB* was \$63.1 billion and \$62.8 billion in 2007 and 2006. $^{(6)}$ Total assets include asset allocations to match liabilities (i.e., deposits). n/m = not meaningful

	Decem	nber 31	Average Balance		
(Dollars in millions)	2007	2006	2007	2006	
Total loans and leases	\$ 359,946	\$ 307,661	\$ 327,810	\$ 288,131	
Total earning assets ⁽¹⁾	383,384	343,338	353,591	344,013	
Total assets (1)	442,987	399,373	408,034	396,559	
Total deposits	344,850	329,195	328,918	332,242	
(1) Total earning assets and total assets include asset allocations to match liabilities (i.e.	denosite)				

⁽¹⁾Total earning assets and total assets include asset allocations to match liabilities (i.e., deposits).

The strategy for GCSBB is to attract, retain and deepen customer relationships. We achieve this strategy through our ability to offer a wide range of products and services through a franchise that stretches coast to coast through 32 states and the District of Columbia. We also provide credit card products to customers in Canada. Ireland. Spain and the United Kingdom. In the U.S., we serve approximately 59 million consumer and small business relationships utilizing our network of 6,149 banking centers, 18,753 domestic branded ATMs, and telephone and Internet channels. Within GCSBB, there are three primary businesses: Deposits, Card Services, and Consumer Real Estate. In addition, ALM/Other includes the results of ALM activities and other consumer-related businesses (e.g., insurance). GCSBB, specifically Card Services, is presented on a managed basis. For a reconciliation of managed GCSBB to held GCSBB, see Note 22 Business Segment Information to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

During 2007, Visa Inc. filed a registration statement with the SEC with respect to a proposed IPO. Subject to market conditions and other factors, Visa Inc. expects the IPO to occur in the first half of 2008. We expect to record a gain associated with the IPO. In addition, we expect that a portion of the proceeds from the IPO will be used by Visa Inc. to fund liabilities arising from litigation which would allow us to record an offset to the litigation liabilities that we recorded in the fourth guarter of 2007 as discussed below.

Net income decreased \$1.9 billion, or 17 percent, to \$9.4 billion compared to 2006 as increases in noninterest income and net interest income were more than offset by increases in provision for credit losses and noninterest expense.

Net interest income increased \$612 million, or two percent, to \$28.8 billion due to the impacts of organic growth and the LaSalle acquisition on average loans and leases, and deposits compared to 2006. Noninterest income increased \$2.1 billion, or 13 percent, to \$18.9 billion compared to the same period in 2006, mainly due to increases in card income, service charges and mortgage banking income.

Provision for credit losses increased \$4.4 billion, or 51 percent, to \$12.9 billion compared to 2006. This increase primarily resulted from a \$3.2 billion increase in Card Services and a \$978 million increase in Consumer Real Estate. For further discussion of the increase in provision for credit losses related to Card Services and Consumer Real Estate, see their respective discussions.

Noninterest expense increased \$1.7 billion, or nine percent, to \$20.1 billion largely due to increases in personnel-related expenses, Visa-related litigation costs, equally allocated to Card Services and Treasury Services on a management accounting basis, and technology related costs. For additional information on Visa-related litigation, see Note 13 Commitments and Contingencies to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Deposits

Deposits provides a comprehensive range of products to consumers and small businesses. Our products include traditional savings accounts, money market savings accounts, CDs and IRAs, and noninterest and

interest-bearing checking accounts. Debit card results are also included in Deposits.

Deposit products provide a relatively stable source of funding and liquidity. We earn net interest spread revenues from investing this liquidity in earning assets through client-facing lending activity and our ALM activities. The revenue is allocated to the deposit products using our funds transfer pricing process which takes into account the interest rates and maturity characteristics of the deposits. Deposits also generate fees such as account service fees, non-sufficient fund fees, overdraft charges and ATM fees, while debit cards generate merchant interchange fees based on purchase volume.

Excluding accounts obtained through acquisitions, we added approximately 2.3 million net new retail checking accounts in 2007. These additions resulted from continued improvement in sales and service results in the Banking Center Channel and Online, and the success of such products as Keep the Change[™], Risk Free CDs, Balance Rewards and Affinity.

We continue to migrate qualifying affluent customers and their related deposit balances from *GCSBB* to *GWIM*. In 2007, a total of \$11.4 billion of deposits were migrated from *GCSBB* to *GWIM* compared to \$10.7 billion in 2006. After migration, the associated net interest income, service charges and noninterest expense are recorded in *GWIM*.

Net income increased \$364 million, or seven percent, to \$5.2 billion compared to 2006 as an increase in noninterest income was partially offset by an increase in noninterest expense. Net interest income remained relatively flat at \$9.4 billion compared to 2006 as the addition of LaSalle and higher deposit spreads resulting from disciplined pricing were offset by the impact of lower balances. Average deposits decreased \$3.2 billion, or one percent, largely due to the migration of customer relationships and related balances to *GWIM*, partially offset by the acquisition of LaSalle. The increase in noninterest income was driven by higher service charges of \$665 million, or 12 percent, primarily as a result of new demand deposit account growth and the addition of LaSalle. Additionally, debit card revenue growth of \$248 million, or 13 percent, was due to a higher number of checking accounts, increased usage, the addition of LaSalle and market penetration (i.e., increase in the number of existing account holders with debit cards).

Noninterest expense increased \$323 million, or four percent, to \$9.1 billion compared to 2006, primarily due to the addition of LaSalle, and to higher account and transaction volumes.

Card Services

Card Services, which excludes the results of debit cards (included in *Deposits*), provides a broad offering of products, including U.S. Consumer and Business Card, Unsecured Lending, and International Card. We offer a variety of co-branded and affinity credit card products and have become the leading issuer of credit cards through endorsed marketing in the U.S. and Europe. During 2007, Merchant Services was transferred to *Treasury Services* within *GCIB*. Previously their results were reported in *Card Services*. Prior period amounts have been reclassified.

The Corporation reports its *GCSBB* results, specifically *Card Services*, on a managed basis, which is consistent with the way that management evaluates the results of *GCSBB*. Managed basis assumes that securitized loans were not sold and presents earnings on these loans in a manner similar to the way loans that have not been sold (i.e., held loans) are presented. Loan securitization is an alternative funding process that is used by the Corporation to diversify funding sources. Loan securitization removes loans from the Consolidated Balance Sheet through the sale of loans to an off-balance sheet QSPE which is excluded from the Corporation s Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with GAAP.

Securitized loans continue to be serviced by the business and are subject to the same underwriting standards and ongoing monitoring as held loans. In addition, excess servicing income is exposed to similar credit risk and repricing of interest rates as held loans.

Net income decreased \$2.0 billion, or 35 percent, to \$3.7 billion compared to 2006 as growth in noninterest income and net interest income was more than offset by higher provision for credit losses and noninterest expense. Net interest income increased \$205 million, or one percent, to \$16.6 billion as an increase in managed average loans and leases of \$18.5 billion was partially offset by spread compression.

Noninterest income increased \$692 million, or eight percent, to \$9.0 billion mainly due to higher cash advance fees related to organic loan growth in domestic credit card and unsecured lending. All other income increased \$124 million primarily due to higher foreign revenues.

Provision for credit losses increased \$3.2 billion, or 40 percent, to \$11.3 billion compared to 2006. The increase was primarily driven by higher managed net losses from portfolio seasoning and increases from unusually low loss levels experienced in 2006 post bankruptcy reform. The higher provision was also driven by reserve increases in our small business portfolio reflective of growth in the business and portfolio deterioration. In addition, higher provision was due to seasoning of the unsecured lending portfolio. These increases in provision were partially offset by a higher level of reserve reduction from the addition of higher loss profile accounts to the domestic credit card securitization trust.

Noninterest expense increased \$775 million, or 10 percent, to \$8.3 billion compared to 2006, largely due to increases in personnel-related expenses, *Card Services* allocation of the Visa-related litigation costs and technology related costs. For additional information on Visa-related litigation, see *Note 13 Commitments and Contingencies* to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Key Statistics

(Dollars in millions) Card Services Average total loans and leases:	2007	2006
Managed	\$ 209,774	\$ 191,314
Held	106,490	95,076
Period end total loans and leases:	,	
Managed	227,822	203,151
Held	124,855	101,286
Managed net losses (1):		
Amount	10,099	7,236
Percent	4.81%	3.78%
Credit Card ⁽²⁾		
Average total loans and leases:		
Managed	\$ 171,376	\$ 163,409
Held	70,242	72,979
Period end total loans and leases:		
Managed	183,691	170,489
Held	80,724	72,194
Managed net losses (1):		
Amount	8,214	6,375
Percent	4.79%	3.90%

⁽¹⁾ Represents net charge-offs on held loans combined with realized credit losses associated with the securitized loan portfolio.

⁽²⁾ Includes U.S. consumer card and foreign credit card. Does not include business card and unsecured lending.

The table above and the discussion below presents select key indicators for the Card Services and credit card portfolios.

Table of Contents

Managed *Card Services* net losses increased \$2.9 billion to \$10.1 billion, or 4.81 percent of average outstandings, compared to \$7.2 billion, or 3.78 percent (3.93 percent excluding the impact of SOP 03-3) in 2006. This increase was primarily driven by portfolio seasoning and increases from the unusually low loss levels experienced in 2006 post bankruptcy reform.

Managed *Card Services* total average loans and leases increased \$18.5 billion to \$209.8 billion compared to the same period in 2006, driven by growth in the unsecured lending, foreign and domestic card portfolios.

Managed credit card net losses increased \$1.8 billion to \$8.2 billion, or 4.79 percent of average credit card outstandings, compared to \$6.4 billion, or 3.90 percent (3.99 percent excluding the impact of SOP 03-3) in 2006. The increase was driven by portfolio seasoning and increases from the unusually low loss levels experienced in 2006 post bankruptcy reform.

Managed credit card total average loans and leases increased \$8.0 billion to \$171.4 billion compared to the same period in 2006. The increase was driven by growth in the foreign and domestic portfolios.

For more information on credit quality, see Consumer Portfolio Credit Risk Management beginning on page 45.

Consumer Real Estate

Consumer Real Estate generates revenue by providing an extensive line of consumer real estate products and services to customers nationwide. Consumer Real Estate products are available to our customers through a retail network of personal bankers located in 6,149 banking centers, mortgage loan officers in nearly 200 locations and through a sales force offering our customers direct telephone and online access to our products. Consumer Real Estate products include fixed and adjustable rate loans for home purchase and refinancing needs, reverse mortgages, lines of credit and home equity loans. Mortgage products are either sold into the secondary mortgage market to investors, while retaining the Bank of America customer relationships, or are held on our balance sheet for ALM purposes. Consumer Real Estate is not impacted by the Corporation s mortgage production retention decisions as Consumer Real Estate is compensated for the decision on a management accounting basis with a corresponding offset recorded in All Other.

The *Consumer Real Estate* business includes the origination, fulfillment, sale and servicing of first mortgage loan products, reverse mortgage products and home equity products. Servicing activities primarily include collecting cash for principal, interest and escrow payments from borrowers, disbursing customer draws for lines of credit and accounting for and remitting principal and interest payments to investors and escrow payments to third parties. Servicing income includes ancillary income derived in connection with these activities such as late fees.

Within *GCSBB*, the *Consumer Real Estate* first mortgage and home equity production were \$93.3 billion and \$69.2 billion for 2007 compared to \$76.9 billion and \$67.9 billion in 2006. During the second quarter of 2007, the Corporation completed the purchase of a reverse mortgage business which increased the Corporation s offerings of reverse mortgages.

Net income for *Consumer Real Estate* decreased \$341 million to \$371 million compared to 2006 as increases in mortgage banking income and net interest income were more than offset by higher provision for credit losses and an increase in noninterest expense. Net interest income grew \$287 million, or 14 percent, to \$2.3 billion and was driven by loan balances in our home equity business partially offset by spread compression. Average loans and leases increased \$20.7 billion, or 24 percent. The increase in mortgage banking income of \$456 million, or 52 percent, to \$1.3 billion was primarily due to the election under SFAS 159 to account for certain mortgage loans held-for-sale at fair value, favorable performance of the MSRs and increased production income partially offset by widening of credit spreads during the year.

Subsequent to the adoption of SFAS 159 on January 1, 2007, mortgage loan origination fees and costs are recognized in earnings when incurred. Previously, mortgage loan origination fees and costs would have been capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the loans and recognized as a reduction of mortgage banking income upon the sale of such loans. For more information on the adoption of SFAS 159 on mortgage banking income, see Mortgage Banking Risk Management on page 68.

Noninterest expense increased \$315 million, or 18 percent, to \$2.0 billion compared to 2006, driven by costs associated with increased volume and the increase in cost related to the adoption of SFAS 159 as discussed above.

Provision for credit losses increased \$978 million to \$1.0 billion compared to 2006. This increase was driven by higher losses inherent in the home equity portfolio reflective of portfolio seasoning and the impacts of the weak housing market, particularly in geographic areas which have experienced the most significant home price declines driving a reduction in collateral value.

The *Consumer Real Estate* servicing portfolio includes loans serviced for others, and originated and retained residential mortgages. The servicing portfolio at December 31, 2007 was \$516.9 billion, \$97.4 billion higher than at December 31, 2006, driven by production. Included in this amount was \$259.5 billion of residential first mortgage loans serviced for others.

At December 31, 2007, the residential first mortgage MSR balance was \$3.1 billion, an increase of \$184 million, or six percent, from December 31, 2006. This value represented 118 bps of the related unpaid principal balance, a seven bps decrease from December 31, 2006.

ALM/Other

ALM/Other is comprised primarily of the allocation of a portion of the Corporation s net interest income from ALM activities and the results of other consumer-related businesses (e.g., insurance).

Net income increased \$17 million compared to 2006 as higher contributions from ALM activities were offset by increases in provision for credit losses and noninterest expense. Provision for credit losses increased \$98 million to \$315 million compared to 2006. This increase was driven by higher losses inherent in the small business lending portfolio managed outside of *Card Services*. For more information on the Corporation s entire small business commercial domestic portfolio, see Commercial Portfolio Credit Risk Management beginning on page 49.

Global Corporate and Investment Banking

(Dollars in millions) Net interest income ⁽²⁾ Noninterest income: Service charges Investment and brokerage services Investment banking income Trading account profits (losses) All other income Total noninterest income	Total \$ 11,217 2,769 910 2,537 (5,164) 1,148 2,200	Business Lending \$ 5,020 507 1 (180) 824 1,152	2007 Capital Markets and Advisory Services ⁽¹⁾ \$ 2,786 134 867 2,537 (5,050) (971) (2,483)	Treasury Services \$ 3,814 2,128 42 63 1,092 3,325	ALM/ Other \$ (403) 3 203 206
Total revenue, net of interest expense	13,417	6,172	303	7,139	(197)
Provision for credit losses Noninterest expense Income (loss) before income taxes Income tax expense (benefit) ⁽²⁾ Net income (loss) Net interest yield ⁽²⁾ Return on average equity ⁽³⁾ Efficiency ratio ⁽²⁾ Period end total assets ⁴⁾	652 11,925 840 302 \$ 538 1.66% 1.19 88.88 \$ 776,107	647 2,158 3,367 1,246 \$ 2,121 2.00% 13.12 34.98 \$ 305,548	5,642 (5,339) (1,977) \$ (3,362) n/m (25.41)% n/m \$ 413,115	5 3,856 3,278 1,213 \$ 2,065 2.79% 26.31 54.02 \$ 180,369	269 (466) (180) \$ (286) n/m n/m n/m
(Dollars in millions) Net interest income ⁽²⁾ Noninterest income:	Total \$ 9,877	Business Lending \$ 4,575	2006 Capital Markets and Advisory Services \$ 1,660	Treasury Services \$3,878	ALM/ Other \$ (236)
Service charges Investment and brokerage services Investment banking income Trading account profits	2,648 942 2,476 2,967	501 15 55	121 893 2,476 2,847	2,026 33 52	1 13
All other income Total noninterest income Total revenue, net of interest expense	2,251 11,284 21,161	469 1,040 5,615	478 6,815 8,475	1,223 3,334 7,212	81 95 (141)
Provision for credit losses Noninterest expense Income (loss) before income taxes Income tax expense (benefit) ⁽²⁾ Net income (loss) Net interest yield ⁽²⁾ Return on average equity ⁽³⁾ Efficiency ratio ⁽²⁾	9 11,578 9,574 3,542 \$ 6,032 1.62% 14.33 54.71	(2) 2,047 3,570 1,321 \$ 2,249 1.98% 14.36 36.45	14 5,799 2,662 985 \$ 1,677 n/m 15.17% 68.42	(3) 3,561 3,654 1,352 \$ 2,302 2.86% 28.71 49.36	171 (312) (116) \$ (196) n/m n/m n/m
Period end total assets ⁴⁾	\$ 685,935	\$ 248,225	\$ 385,450	\$ 167,979	n/m

⁽¹⁾ CMAS revenue of \$303 million for 2007 consists of market-based revenue of \$233 million and \$70 million of net interest income on loans for which the fair value option has been elected.

(2) FTE basis

(3) Average allocated equity for *GCIB* was \$45.3 billion and \$42.1 billion for 2007 and 2006.
 (4) Total assets include asset allocations to match liabilities (i.e., deposits).
 n/m = not meaningful

	Decem	Average Balance		
(Dollars in millions)	2007	2006	2007	2006
Total loans and leases	\$ 324,198	\$ 242,700	\$ 274,015	\$ 232,623
Total trading-related assets	308,315	309,097	362,193	336,860
Total market-based earning assets (1)	359,730	348,717	412,326	370,187
Total earning assets (2)	673,552	599,326	676,500	609,100
Total assets (2)	776,107	685,935	770,360	691,414
Total deposits	246,788	212,028	220,724	194,972

⁽¹⁾Total market-based earning assets represents earning assets included in *CMAS* but excludes loans for which the fair value option has been elected.

⁽²⁾ Total earning assets and total assets include asset allocations to match liabilities (i.e., deposits).

GCIB provides a wide range of financial services to both our issuer and investor clients that range from business banking clients to large international corporate and institutional investor clients using a strategy to deliver value-added financial products and advisory solutions. *GCIB s* products and services are delivered from three primary businesses: *Business Lending, CMAS*, and *Treasury Services*, and are provided to our clients through a global team of client relationship managers and product partners. In addition, *ALM/Other* includes the results of ALM activities and other *GCIB* activities (e.g., Commercial Insurance business which was sold in the fourth quarter of 2007). Our clients are supported through offices in 22 countries that are divided into four distinct geographic regions: U.S. and Canada; Asia; Europe, Middle East, and Africa; and Latin America. For more information on our foreign operations, see Foreign Portfolio beginning on page 56.

Effective January 1, 2007, the Corporation adopted SFAS 159 and elected to account for loans and loan commitments to certain large corporate clients at fair value. For more information on the adoption of SFAS 159, see *Note 19 Fair Value Disclosures* to the Consolidated Financial Statements and see page 49 for a discussion of loans and loan commitments measured at fair value in accordance with SFAS 159. The results of loans and loan commitments to certain large corporate clients for which the Corporation elected the fair value option (including the associated risk mitigation tools) are recorded in *CMAS*.

Net income decreased \$5.5 billion, or 91 percent, to \$538 million and total revenue decreased \$7.7 billion, or 37 percent, to \$13.4 billion in 2007 compared to 2006. These decreases were driven by \$5.6 billion of losses resulting from our CDO exposure and other trading losses. Additionally, we experienced increases in provision for credit losses and noninterest expense, which were partially offset by an increase in net interest income.

Net interest income increased \$1.3 billion, or 14 percent, due to higher market-based net interest income of \$1.1 billion and the FTE impact of a one-time tax benefit from restructuring our existing non-U.S. based commercial aircraft leasing business. Additionally, the benefit of growth in average loans and leases of \$41.4 billion, or 18 percent, was partially offset by spread compression on core lending and deposit-related activities, and a change in the mix between interest-bearing and noninterest-bearing deposits as clients maintained lower noninterest-bearing compensating balances by shifting to interest bearing and/or higher yielding investment alternatives. The growth in average loans and average deposits was due to organic growth as well as the LaSalle merger.

Noninterest income decreased \$9.1 billion, or 81 percent, in 2007 compared to 2006, driven by declines in trading account profits (losses) of \$8.1 billion and all other income of \$1.1 billion. For more information on these decreases, see the *CMAS* discussion.

Provision for credit losses was \$652 million in 2007 compared to \$9 million in 2006. The increase was driven by the absence of 2006 releases of reserves, higher net charge-offs and an increase in reserves during 2007 reflecting the impact of the weak housing market particularly on the

homebuilder loan portfolio. Net charge-offs increased in the retail automotive and other dealer-related portfolios due to growth, seasoning and deterioration, as well as from a lower level of commercial recoveries.

Noninterest expense increased \$347 million, or three percent, mainly due to the addition of LaSalle and Visa-related litigation costs, equally allocated to *Treasury Services* and *Card Services* on a management accounting basis, partially offset by a reduction in performance-based incentive compensation in *CMAS*. For additional information on Visa- related litigation, see *Note 13 Commitments and Contingencies* to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Business Lending

Business Lending provides a wide range of lending-related products and services to our clients through client relationship teams along with various product partners. Products include commercial and corporate bank loans and commitment facilities which cover our business banking clients, middle market commercial clients and our large multinational corporate clients. Real estate lending products are issued primarily to public and private developers, homebuilders and commercial real estate firms. Leasing and asset-based lending products offer our clients innovative financing solutions. Products also include indirect consumer loans which allow us to offer financing through automotive, marine, motorcycle and recreational vehicle dealerships across the U.S. Business Lending also contains the results for the economic hedging of our risk to certain credit counterparties utilizing various risk mitigation tools.

Net income decreased \$128 million, or six percent, to \$2.1 billion in 2007 compared to 2006 as increases in net interest income and noninterest income were more than offset by increases in provision for credit losses and noninterest expense. Net interest income increased \$445 million, or 10 percent, driven by the FTE impact of approximately \$350 million related to a one-time tax benefit from restructuring our existing non-U.S. based commercial aircraft leasing business, and average loan growth of 14 percent. These increases were partially offset by the impact of spread compression on the loan portfolio. The increase in average loans and leases was attributable to growth in commercial loans, the LaSalle merger and increases in the indirect consumer loan portfolio related to bulk purchases of retail automotive loans. The increase in noninterest income of \$112 million, or 11 percent, was driven by improved economic hedging results of our exposures to certain large corporate clients and higher tax credits from community development activities partially offset by derivative fair value adjustments related to an option to purchase retail automotive loans.

Provision for credit losses was \$647 million in 2007 compared to negative \$2 million in 2006. The increase was driven by the absence of 2006 releases of reserves related to favorable commercial credit market conditions, higher net charge-offs and an increase in reserves during 2007 reflecting the impact of the weak housing market particularly on the homebuilder loan portfolio. Net charge-offs increased in 2007 as retail automotive and other dealer-related portfolio losses rose due to growth,

seasoning and deterioration, and the level of commercial recoveries declined.

Noninterest expense increased \$111 million, or five percent, primarily due to the LaSalle merger.

Capital Markets and Advisory Services

CMAS provides financial products, advisory services and financing globally to our institutional investor clients in support of their investing and trading activities. We also work with our commercial and corporate issuer clients to provide debt and equity underwriting and distribution capabilities, merger-related advisory services and risk management solutions using interest rate, equity, credit, currency and commodity derivatives, foreign exchange, fixed income and mortgage-related products. The business may take positions in these products and participate in market-making activities dealing in government securities, equity and equity-linked securities, high-grade and high-yield corporate debt securities, commercial paper, mortgage-backed securities and ABS. Underwriting debt and equity, securities research and certain market-based activities are executed through Banc of America Securities, LLC which is a primary dealer in the U.S.

In January 2008, we announced changes in our CMAS business which better align the strategy of this business with GCIB s broader integrated platform. We will continue to provide corporate, commercial and sponsored clients with debt and equity capital-raising services, strategic advice, and a full range of corporate banking capabilities. We will reduce activities in certain structured products (e.g., CDOs) and will resize the international platform to emphasize debt, cash management, and trading services, including rates and foreign exchange. The realignment will result in the reduction of front office personnel with additional infrastructure headcount reduction to follow. We also plan to sell our equity prime brokerage business.

CMAS evaluates its results using market-based revenue that is comprised of net interest income and noninterest income. The following table presents further detail regarding market-based revenue. Sales and trading revenue is segregated into fixed income from liquid products (primarily interest rate and commodity derivatives, foreign exchange contracts and public finance), credit products (primarily investment and noninvestment grade corporate debt obligations and credit derivatives), structured products (primarily CMBS, residential mortgage-backed securities, structured credit trading and CDOs), and equity income from equity-linked derivatives and cash equity activity.

(Dollars in millions)	2007	2006
Investment banking income		
Advisory fees	\$ 446	\$ 337
Debt underwriting	1,772	1,824
Equity underwriting	319	315
Total investment banking income	2,537	2,476
Sales and trading revenue		
Fixed income:		
Liquid products	2,111	2,158
Credit products	(537)	821
Structured products	(5,176)	1,449
Total fixed income	(3,602)	4,428
Equity income	1,298	1,571
Total sales and trading revenue	(2,304)	5,999
Total Capital Markets and Advisory Services		-,

market-based revenue (1)

\$8,475 (1) CMAS revenue of \$303 million for 2007 consists of market-based revenue of \$233 million and \$70 million of net interest income on loans for which the fair value option has been elected.

A variety of factors influence results including volume of activity, the degree in which we successfully anticipate market movements, and how our hedges perform in the various markets. During the second half of 2007, extreme dislocations emerged in the financial markets, including leveraged finance, subprime mortgage, and the commercial paper markets, and these dislocations were further compounded by the decoupling of typical correlations in the various markets in which we participate. These conditions created less liquidity, a flight to quality, greater volatility, widening of credit spreads and a lack of price transparency. Furthermore, in the fourth quarter of 2007, the credit ratings of certain structured securities (e.g., CDOs) were downgraded which among other things triggered further widening of credit spreads for this type of security. We have been an active

\$ 233

participant in the CDO market, maintain ongoing exposure to these securities and incurred losses associated with these exposures. Many of these conditions continued into 2008 and it is unclear how long these conditions and the overall economic slowdown may continue and what impact they will ultimately have on our results.

CMAS recognized a net loss of \$3.4 billion in 2007, a decrease of \$5.0 billion, compared to 2006 driven by a decrease in market-based revenue of \$8.2 billion. The decrease was driven by \$5.6 billion of losses resulting from our CDO exposure and other trading losses. Partially offsetting this decrease was a reduction in noninterest expense due to lower performance-based incentive compensation.

Investment banking income increased \$61 million to \$2.5 billion due to growth in advisory fees. This growth was driven by increased market activity primarily in the first half of the year partially offset by reduced debt underwriting fees that were affected by the market disruptions during the second half of the year which included the utilization of fees to distribute leveraged loan commitments.

Sales and trading revenue declined \$8.3 billion to a loss of \$2.3 billion in 2007. While structured products and credit products reported losses for 2007, liquid products and equities compared reasonably well with 2006 given the market conditions.

- Liquid products revenue decreased \$47 million as the negative impact of spread widening and correlations breaking down (e.g., correlation between certain municipal market indices and bond market swap spreads) were partially offset by the strength in interest rate products and foreign exchange contracts.
- Credit products losses were \$537 million, a decline in revenue of \$1.4 billion compared to 2006. Losses resulted from positions taken in the market as a result of customer market making activities as the widening of spreads during the second half of the year had a negative impact on these positions. In addition, certain indices became extremely volatile and diverged from other related indices and from single name credit risk (bonds, loans or derivatives) in our portfolio. This negatively impacted our hedging of portfolios of single name credits with derivatives based on these indices. One example of this divergence was the widening of the spread between the investment grade cash and the credit derivative markets. In addition, losses also resulted from positions taken in the market as the widening of spreads during the second half of the year had a negative impact on these positions.

We also incurred losses of \$292 million, net of \$471 million of fees, on leveraged loans, loan commitments and the Corporation s share of the leveraged forward calendar. Losses incurred on our leveraged exposure were not concentrated in any one type (senior secured, covenant light or subordinated/senior unsecured) and were generally due to wider new issuance credit spreads. Since the negotiated spreads were lower than the then current new issuance spread, a fair value loss

resulted. In several instances, commitments were either terminated by the client or interest rate concessions (e.g., an increase in the stated coupon) were obtained from the borrowers, thereby increasing the value of the loans, in each case negating the need for any writedown. At December 31, 2007, the Corporation s share of the leveraged finance forward calendar that consisted primarily of senior secured exposure was \$12.2 billion and our funded position held for distribution was \$6.1 billion. In addition, we had limited investment grade exposure that was in line with our normal exposure levels.

• Structured products losses were \$5.2 billion, with a decline in revenue of \$6.6 billion in 2007 compared to the prior year. The decrease was driven by \$5.6 billion of losses resulting from our CDO exposure, \$125 million of losses on CMBS funded debt and the forward calendar and \$875 million related to other structured products. See the detailed CDO exposure discussion to follow. Other structured products, including residential mortgage-backed securities and structured credit trading, were negatively impacted by spread widening due to the credit market disruptions during the second half of the year and by the breakdown of the expected hedge correlations. For example, the divergence in valuation of agency-based mortgage products, principally derivatives and forward sales contracts, used to economically hedge non-agency mortgage exposure resulted in losses on our residential mortgage-backed securities trading positions. At the end of the year, we held \$13.7 billion of funded CMBS debt of which \$6.9 billion were floating-rate acquisition

related financings to major, well known operating companies. In addition, we had a forward calendar of just over \$2.0 billion of which \$1.1 billion were floating-rate acquisition related financings.

• Equity products revenue decreased \$273 million primarily due to lower client activity in equity capital markets and equity derivatives combined with reduced trading results.

Collateralized Debt Obligation Exposure at December 31, 2007

CDO vehicles are special purpose entities that hold diversified pools of fixed income securities. CDO vehicles issue multiple tranches of debt securities, including commercial paper, mezzanine and equity securities.

We receive fees for structuring CDO vehicles and/or placing debt securities with third party investors as part of our structured credit products business. Our CDO exposure can be divided into funded and unfunded super senior liquidity commitment exposure, other super senior exposure (i.e., cash positions and derivative contracts), warehouse, and sales and trading positions. For more information on our CDO liquidity commitments refer to Collateralized Debt Obligations as part of Off- and On-Balance Sheet Arrangements beginning on page 35. Super senior exposure represents the most senior class of commercial paper or notes that are issued by the CDO vehicles. These financial instruments benefit from the subordination of all other securities, including AAA-rated securities, issued by the CDO vehicles.

The following table presents our super senior CDO exposure at December 31, 2007.

Super Senior Collateralized Debt Obligation Exposure

(Dollars in millions) Super senior liquidity	(Gross	Subpri	h	e Exposu Net of nsured moun t lo	Net Write-	Net osure ⁽³⁾		n-Subp	mber 31, rime Exp Net of Insured Amodumut/	oosure Net Vrite-	Net	Gross	Total Insured	CDO Expo Net of Insured Amountlo	osure Net Write- owns Bxpo	Net sure ⁽³⁾
Mezzanine CDOs-squared Total super		4,610 363 4,240	\$ (1,800))\$	2,810 \$ 363 4,240	(640) (5) (2,013)	\$ 2,170 358 2,227	\$ 3,053	\$	\$ 3,053	\$ (57)	\$ 2,996	\$ 7,663 363 4,240	\$ (1,800)	\$ 5,863 \$ 363 4,240	\$ (697) \$ (5) (2,013)	5,166 358 2,227
senior liquidity commitments ⁽⁴⁾		9,213	(1,800))	7,413	(2,658)	4,755	3,053		3,053	(57)	2,996	12,266	(1,800)	10,466	(2,715)	7,751
Other super senior exposure High grade Mezzanine CDOs-squared Total other super		4,010 1,547 1,685	(2,110) (410)		1,900 1,547 1,275	(233) (752) (316)	795	1,192	(734)	458		458	5,202 1,547 1,685	(2,844) (410)	2,358 1,547 1,275	(233) (752) (316)	2,125 795 959
senior exposure Total super senior CDO		7,242	(2,520))	4,722	(1,301)	3,421	1,192	(734)	458		458	8,434	(3,254)	5,180	(1,301)	3,879

exposure \$16,455 \$(4,320) \$12,135 \$(3,959) \$8,176 \$4,245 \$(734) \$3,511 \$(57) \$3,454 \$20,700 \$(5,054) \$15,646 \$(4,016) \$11,630 (1) Classified as subprime when subprime consumer real estate loans make up at least 35 percent of the ultimate underlying collateral. (2) Includes highly-rated CLO and CMBS super senior exposure.

⁽³⁾Net of insurance.

⁽⁴⁾ For additional information on our super senior liquidity exposure of \$12.3 billion, see the CDO discussion beginning on page 37.

At December 31, 2007, super senior exposure, net of writedowns, of \$11.6 billion in the form of cash positions, liquidity commitments, and derivative contracts consisted of net subprime super senior exposure of approximately \$8.2 billion and net non-subprime super senior exposure of \$3.5 billion. During 2007, we recorded losses of \$4.0 billion associated with our subprime super senior CDO exposure. The losses reduced trading account profits (losses) by approximately \$3.2 billion and other income by approximately \$750 million. In addition, we incurred approximately \$1.1 billion in losses related to subprime sales and trading positions, approximately \$300 million related to our CDO warehouse, and approximately \$200 million to cover counterparty risk on the insured CDOs. For more information on our super senior liquidity exposure, see the CDO discussion beginning on page 37.

Our net subprime super senior liquidity commitments were \$4.8 billion where we have recorded losses of \$2.7 billion. The collateral supporting the high grade exposure consisted of about 60 percent subprime of which approximately 65 percent was made up of 2006 and 2007 vintages while the remaining amount was comprised of higher quality vintages from 2005 and prior. The mezzanine exposure is collateralized with about 40 percent of subprime assets of which approximately 60 percent are of higher quality vintages from 2005 and prior. The CDOs-squared exposure is supported by approximately 75 percent of subprime collateral, the majority of which were later vintages.

Our net other subprime super senior exposure was \$3.4 billion where we have recorded losses of \$1.3 billion. Other subprime super senior exposure consists primarily of our cash and derivative positions including the unfunded commitments. The collateral underlying the high grade exposure is similar to our high grade collateral discussed above. The mezzanine exposure underlying collateral was heavily weighted to subprime with approximately 65 percent coming from later vintages while the

CDOs-squared collateral was made up of approximately 50 percent subprime assets comprised of later vintages.

We also had net non-subprime super senior CDO exposure of \$3.5 billion which primarily included highly-rated CLO and CMBS super senior exposures. The net non-subprime super senior exposure is comprised of \$3.0 billion of super senior liquidity commitment exposure and \$458 million of high grade other super senior exposure. We recorded losses of \$57 million associated with these exposures. These losses were primarily driven by spread widening rather than impairment of principal.

In addition to the table above, we also had CDO exposure with a market value of approximately \$815 million in our CDO warehouse of which \$314 million was classified as subprime, and CDO exposure of approximately \$1.0 billion related to our sales and trading activities of which \$279 million was classified as subprime. The subprime exposure related to our CDO warehouse and sales and trading activities is carried at approximately 30 percent of par value.

As mentioned above, during the fourth quarter, the credit ratings of certain CDO structures were downgraded which among other things triggered widening of credit spreads for this type of security. CDO-related markets experienced significant liquidity constraints impacting the availability and reliability of transparent pricing. We subsequently valued these CDO structures assuming they would terminate and looked through the structures to the underlying net asset values supported by the underlying securities. We were able to obtain security values using external pricing services for approximately 70 percent of the CDO exposure for which we used the average of all prices obtained by security. The majority of the remaining positions where no pricing quotes were available were valued using matrix pricing by aligning the value to securities that had similar vintage of underlying assets and ratings, using the lowest rating between the rating services. The remaining securities were valued using projected cash flows, similar to the valuation of an interest-only strip, based on

estimated average life, seniority level and vintage of underlying assets. We assigned a zero value to the CDO positions for which an event of default had been triggered. The value of cash held by the trustee for all CDO structures was also incorporated into the resulting net asset value.

At December 31, 2007, we held \$5.1 billion of purchased insurance on our CDO exposure of which 66 percent was provided by monolines in the form of CDS, total-return-swaps (TRS) or financial guarantees. The majority of this purchased insurance relates to the high grade super senior exposure. In the case of default we will first look to the underlying securities and then to recovery on purchased insurance. We valued these contracts by referencing the fair value of the CDO and subsequently adjusted these fair values downward by \$200 million due to counterparty credit risk. For more information on our credit exposure to monolines, see Industry Concentrations beginning on page 54.

Treasury Services

Treasury Services provides integrated working capital management and treasury solutions to clients worldwide through our network of proprietary offices and special clearing arrangements. Our clients include multinationals, middle-market companies, correspondent banks, commercial real estate firms and governments. Our products and services include treasury management, trade finance, foreign exchange, short-term credit facilities and short-term investing options. Net interest income is derived from interest-bearing and noninterest-bearing deposits, sweep investments, and other liability management products. Deposit products provide a relatively stable source of funding and liquidity. We earn net interest spread revenues from investing this liquidity in earning assets through client-facing lending activity and our ALM activities. The revenue is attributed to the deposit products using our funds transfer pricing process which takes into account the interest rates and maturity characteristics of the deposits. Noninterest income is generated from payment and receipt products, merchant services, wholesale card products, and trade services and is comprised largely of service charges which are net of market-based earnings credit rates applied against noninterest-bearing deposits. During 2007, Merchant Services was transferred to *Treasury Services*. Previously, these results were reported in *Card Services* in *GCSBB*. Prior period amounts have been reclassified.

Net income decreased \$237 million, or 10 percent, in 2007 compared to 2006 driven by the increase in noninterest expense combined with a decrease in revenue. Net interest income decreased \$64 million, or two percent, due to the negative impact of a change in the mix between interest-bearing and noninterest-bearing deposits as clients maintained lower noninterest-bearing compensating balances by shifting to interest-bearing and/or higher yielding investment alternatives, and spread compression resulting from the rate environment and competitive pricing. Partially offsetting this decrease was an increase in average deposits of \$7.3 billion due to organic growth as well as the LaSalle merger. Noninterest income was relatively flat at \$3.3 billion as the increase in service charges was more than offset by the decrease in all other income. Service charges increased \$102 million due to organic growth, including the impact of deposit product shifts mentioned above, providing a partial offset to lower net interest income. All other income decreased \$131 million due to the sale of a business related to our merchant services activities in the prior year. Noninterest expense increased \$295 million, or eight percent, mainly due to *Treasury Services* allocation of the Visa-related litigation costs and the addition of LaSalle.

ALM/Other

ALM/Other includes an allocation of a portion of the Corporation s net interest income from ALM activities as well as our Commercial Insurance business.

Net income decreased \$90 million, or 46 percent, in 2007 compared to 2006 mainly due to a decrease in net interest income of \$167 million, resulting from a lower contribution from the Corporation s ALM activities, and increased noninterest expense partially offset by an increase in all other income. All other income increased \$122 million due to the sale of our Commercial Insurance business in the fourth quarter of 2007. Noninterest expense increased \$98 million due to severance costs associated with the *GCIB* strategic review implemented in 2007 as well as increased occupancy costs.

Global Wealth and Investment Management

						2007		Premier	
(Dellara in millione)		Tatal	т.	U.S. rust ⁽¹⁾		olumbia		iking and	ALM/
(Dollars in millions) Net interest income ⁽²⁾	\$	Total 3.857			Mana \$	gement 15	s Inv	estments	Other \$151
Noninterest income:	Ф	3,057	Ф	1,036	Þ	15	φ	2,655	9 IOI
Investment and brokerage services		4,210		1,226		1,857		950	177
All other income		(144)		57		(366)		146	19
Total noninterest income		4,066		1,283		1,491		1,096	19
								,	347
Total revenue, net of interest expense		7,923		2,319		1,506		3,751	347
Provision for credit losses		14		(14)				27	1
Noninterest expense		4,635		1,592		1,196		1,700	147
Income before income taxes		3,274		741		310		2,024	199
Income tax expense ⁽²⁾		1,179		274		114		749	42
Net income	\$	2,095	\$	467	\$	196	\$	1,275	\$ 157
Net interest yield ⁽²⁾		3.06%		2.69%		n/m		2.70%	n/m
Return on average equity (3)		18.87		17.25		11.29%		72.44	n/m
Efficiency ratio (2)		58.50		68.67		79.39		45.31	n/m
Period end total assets ⁴⁾	\$ 1	57,157	\$ 5	51,044	\$	2,617	\$	113,329	n/m
					2	2006			
								Premier	
				U.S.	-	olumbia		nking and	ALM/
(Dollars in millions)		Total	Т	rust (1)	Mana	igement		/estments	Other
Net interest income ⁽²⁾	\$	3,671	\$	902	\$	(37)	\$	2,552	\$ 254
Noninterest income:									
Investment and brokerage services		3,383		914		1,532		778	159
All other income		303		80		44		125	54
Total noninterest income		3,686		994		1,576		903	213
Total revenue, net of interest expense		7,357		1,896		1,539		3,455	467
Provision for credit losses		(39)		(52)				12	1
Noninterest expense		3,867		1,233		1,014		1,560	60
Income before income taxes		3,529		715		525		1,883	406
Income tax expense ⁽²⁾		1,306		265		194		697	150
Net income	\$	2,223	\$	450	\$	331	\$	1.186	\$ 256
Net interest yield ⁽²⁾	Ψ	3.50%	Ψ	2.94%	Ψ	n/m	Ψ	2.98%	¢ 200 n/m
Return on average equity ⁽³⁾		22.28		30.43		20.42%		70.57	n/m
Efficiency ratio ⁽²⁾		52.57		65.04		65.88		45.15	n/m
Period end total assets ⁴⁾	\$ 1	25,287	\$	33.648	\$	3.082	\$	93,992	n/m
	ψι	20,201	ψι	50,040	Ψ	5,002	Ψ	55,552	11/111

(1) In July 2007, the operations of the acquired U.S. Trust Corporation were combined with the former *Private Bank* creating *U.S. Trust, Bank of America Private Wealth Management*. The results of the combined business were reported for periods beginning on July 1, 2007. Prior to July 1, 2007, the results solely reflect that of the former *Private Bank*.

(2) FTE basis

⁽³⁾ Average allocated equity for *GWIM* was \$11.1 billion and \$10.0 billion in 2007 and 2006.

⁽⁴⁾ Total assets include asset allocations to match liabilities (i.e., deposits).

n/m = not meaningful

	Decem	nber 31	Average Balance		
(Dollars in millions)	2007	2006	2007	2006	
Total loans and leases	\$ 84,600	\$ 65,535	\$ 73,469	\$ 60,910	
Total earning assets (1)	145,979	117,342	126,244	105,028	
Total assets (1)	157,157	125,287	135,319	112,557	
Total deposits	144,865	113,568	124,867	102,389	
(1) Total corning coasts and total coasts include coast allocations to match lightlitics (i.e.	donaoito)				

⁽¹⁾Total earning assets and total assets include asset allocations to match liabilities (i.e., deposits).

GWIM provides a wide offering of customized banking, investment and brokerage services tailored to meet the changing wealth management goals of our individual and institutional customer base. Our clients have access to a range of services offered through three primary businesses: *U.S. Trust, Bank of America Private Wealth Management (U.S. Trust); Columbia Management (Columbia)*; and *Premier Banking and Investments (PB&I)*. In addition, *ALM/Other* primarily includes the results of ALM activities.

In December of 2007, we completed the sale of Marsico and realized a pre-tax gain on this transaction of approximately \$1.5 billion recognized in *All Other*. The business results prior to the closing of the Marsico sale are reflected within the *Columbia* business.

Net income decreased \$128 million, or six percent, to \$2.1 billion in 2007, due mainly to losses associated with the support provided to certain cash funds managed within *Columbia* and an increase in noninterest expense.

Net interest income increased \$186 million, or five percent, to \$3.9 billion driven by the impact of the U.S. Trust Corporation acquisition and organic growth in average deposit and loan balances. The growth in balances was partially offset by spread compression and a shift in the deposit product mix. *GWIM* deposit growth benefited from the migration of customer relationships and related balances from *GCSBB*, organic growth and the U.S. Trust Corporation acquisition. A more detailed discussion regarding migrated customer relationships and related balances is provided in the *PB&I* discussion.

Noninterest income increased \$380 million, or 10 percent, to \$4.1 billion driven by an increase in investment and brokerage services of \$827 million, or 24 percent. This increase was due to higher AUM primarily attributable to the impact of the U.S. Trust Corporation acquisition, net client inflows and favorable market conditions combined with an increase in brokerage activity. Partially offsetting this increase was a decrease in all other income due to losses associated with the support provided to certain cash funds managed within *Columbia*.

Noninterest expense increased \$768 million, or 20 percent, to \$4.6 billion driven by the addition of U.S. Trust Corporation, higher revenue-related expenses and increased marketing costs.

Client Assets

The following table presents client assets which consist of AUM, client brokerage assets and assets in custody.

Client Assets

	December 31		
(Dollars in millions)	2007	2006	
Assets under management	\$ 643,531	\$ 542,977	
Client brokerage assets (1)	222,661	203,799	
Assets in custody	167,575	107,902	
Less: Client brokerage assets and assets in custody included in assets under			
management	(87,071)	(67,509)	
Total net client assets	\$ 946,696	\$ 787,169	

⁽¹⁾ Client brokerage assets include non-discretionary brokerage and fee-based assets.

AUM increased \$100.6 billion, or 19 percent, to \$643.5 billion as of December 31, 2007 compared to 2006, driven by the U.S. Trust Corporation acquisition, which contributed \$115.6 billion, as well as net inflows and market appreciation partially offset by the sale of Marsico, which resulted in a decrease of \$60.9 billion. As of December 31, 2007, client brokerage assets increased by \$18.9 billion, or nine percent, to \$222.7 billion compared to the same period in 2006, driven by increased brokerage activity. Assets in custody increased \$59.7 billion, or 55 percent, to \$167.6 billion compared to the same period in 2006, driven mainly by U.S. Trust Corporation which contributed \$45.0 billion.

U.S. Trust, Bank of America Private Wealth Management

In July 2007, we completed the acquisition of U.S. Trust Corporation for \$3.3 billion in cash combining it with *The Private Bank* and its ultra-wealthy extension, *Family Wealth Advisors*, to form *U.S. Trust*. The results of the combined business were reported for periods beginning on July 1, 2007. Prior to July 1, 2007, the results solely reflect that of the former *Private Bank*. *U.S. Trust* provides comprehensive wealth management solutions to wealthy and ultra-wealthy clients with investable assets of more than \$3 million. In addition, *U.S. Trust* provides resources and customized solutions to meet clients wealth structuring, investment management, trust and banking services as well as specialty asset management services (oil and gas, real estate, farm and ranch, timberland, private businesses and tax advisory). Clients also benefit from access to resources available through the Corporation including capital markets products, large and complex financing solutions, and its extensive banking platform.

Net income increased \$17 million, or four percent, compared to 2006, to \$467 million due to higher total revenue partially offset by increases in noninterest expense and provision for credit losses. Net interest income increased \$134 million due to the acquisition of U.S. Trust Corporation and organic growth in average loans and leases and average deposits. This increase was partially offset by spread compression and the shift in deposit product mix. Growth in noninterest income was driven by a \$312 million increase in investment and brokerage services related to acquisitions and organic growth. Noninterest expense increased \$359 million to \$1.6 billion driven by acquisitions and higher personnel-related expenses.

Columbia Management

Columbia is an asset management business serving the needs of both institutional clients and individual customers. *Columbia* provides asset management products and services, including mutual funds and separate accounts. *Columbia* mutual fund offerings provide a broad array of investment strategies and products including equity, fixed income (taxable and nontaxable) and money market (taxable and nontaxable) funds. *Columbia* distributes its products and services directly to institutional clients, and distributes to individuals through *U.S. Trust, PB&I* and nonproprietary channels including other brokerage firms.

In December 2007, we completed the sale of Marsico and realized a pre-tax gain on this transaction of approximately \$1.5 billion recognized in *All Other*. The business results prior to the closing of the Marsico sale are reflected within the *Columbia* business.

Net income decreased \$135 million, or 41 percent, to \$196 million driven by a decrease of \$410 million in all other income. This decrease was due primarily to losses associated with the support provided to certain cash funds. Partially offsetting this decrease was higher investment and brokerage services income of \$325 million driven by the contribution from the U.S. Trust Corporation acquisition, net client inflows and favorable market conditions.

We provided support to certain cash funds managed within *Columbia*. The funds for which we provided support typically invest in high quality, short-term securities with a weighted average maturity of 90 days or less, including a limited number of securities issued by SIVs. Due to market disruptions, certain SIV investments were downgraded by the rating agencies and experienced a decline in fair value. We entered into capital commitments which required the Corporation to provide up to \$565 million in cash to the funds in the event the net asset value per unit of a fund declines below certain thresholds. The capital commitments expire no later than the third quarter of 2010. At December 31, 2007, losses of \$382 million had been recognized and \$183 million is still outstanding associated with this capital commitment.

Additionally, we purchased SIV investments from the funds at their fair value of \$561 million. Losses of \$394 million on these investments were recorded within *All Other* due to declines in fair value subsequent to the purchase of such securities.

We may from time to time, but are under no obligation to, provide additional support to funds managed within *Columbia*. Future support, if any, may take the form of additional capital commitments to the funds or the purchase of assets from the funds.

We are not the primary beneficiary of the cash funds and do not consolidate the cash funds managed within *Columbia* because the subordinated support provided by the Corporation will not absorb a majority of the variability created by the assets of the funds. The cash funds had total AUM of approximately \$189 billion at December 31, 2007.

Premier Banking and Investments

PB&I includes *Banc of America Investments*, our full-service retail brokerage business and our *Premier Banking* channel. *PB&I* brings personalized banking and investment expertise through priority service with client-dedicated teams. *PB&I* provides a high-touch client experience through a network of approximately 5,600 client facing associates to our affluent customers with a personal wealth profile that includes investable assets plus a mortgage that exceeds \$500,000 or at least \$100,000 of investable assets.

PB&I includes the impact of migrating qualifying affluent customers, including their related deposit balances, from *GCSBB* to our *PB&I* model. After migration, the associated net interest income, service charges and noninterest expense is recorded in *PB&I*. The growth reported in the financial results of *PB&I* includes both the impact of migration, as well as the impact of incremental organic growth from providing a broader array of financial products and services to *PB&I* customers. For 2007 and 2006, a total of \$11.4 billion and \$10.7 billion of deposits were migrated from *GCSBB* to *PB&I*.

Net income increased \$89 million, or eight percent, to \$1.3 billion compared to the same period in 2006 due to an increase in total revenues. Net interest income increased \$103 million, or four percent, to \$2.7 billion driven by higher average deposit and loan balances partially offset by a shift of the product mix in the deposit portfolio and spread compression. Noninterest income increased \$193 million, or 21 percent, to \$1.1 billion driven by higher investment and brokerage services income. Noninterest expense increased \$140 million, or nine percent, to \$1.7 billion primarily due to increases in personnel-related expense driven by the expansion of client facing associates and higher incentives.

The growth in *PB&I* revenues was nine percent, of which approximately seven percent was attributable to the impact of migration and two percent reflected incremental organic growth.

ALM/Other

ALM/Other primarily includes the results of ALM activities.

Net income decreased \$99 million, or 39 percent, to \$157 million compared to 2006. The decrease was driven by a \$103 million decrease in net interest income due to a reduction in the contribution from ALM activities and an increase in noninterest expense of \$87 million.

All Other

		2007					2006		
	Reported Basis	 ritization			Reported	Secu	ıritization		
(Dollars in millions)	(1)	Offset (2)	As A	djusted	Basis ⁽¹⁾		Offset (2)	As A	djusted
Net interest income ⁽³⁾	\$ (7,701)	\$ 8,027	\$	326	\$ (5,930)	\$	7,593	\$	1,663
Noninterest income:									
Card income	2,816	(3,356)		(540)	3,795		(4,566)		(771)
Equity investment income	3,745			3,745	2,872				2,872
Gains (losses) on sales of debt securities	180			180	(475)				(475)
All other income	6	288		294	9 8		335		`433 [´]
Total noninterest income	6,747	(3,068)		3,679	6,290		(4,231)		2,059
Total revenue, net of interest expense	(954)	4,959		4,005	360		3,362		3,722
Provision for credit losses	(5,210)	4,959		(251)	(3,494)		3,362		(132)
Merger and restructuring charges (4)	410			410	805				805
All other noninterest expense	(20)			(20)	972				972
Income before income taxes	3,866			3,866	2,077				2,077
Income tax expense (3)	947			947	577				577
Net income	\$ 2,919	\$	\$	2,919	\$ 1,500	\$		\$	1,500

⁽¹⁾ Provision for credit losses represents the provision for credit losses in *All Other* combined with the *GCSBB* securitization offset.

⁽²⁾ The securitization offset on net interest income is on a funds transfer pricing methodology consistent with the way funding costs are allocated to the businesses.

(3) FTE basis

⁽⁴⁾ For more information on merger and restructuring charges, see *Note 2 Merger and Restructuring Activity* to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

GCSBB is reported on a managed basis which includes a securitization impact adjustment which has the effect of assuming that loans that have been securitized were not sold and presenting these loans in a manner similar to the way loans that have not been sold are presented. *All Other s* results include a corresponding securitization offset which removes the impact of these securitized loans in order to present the consolidated results on a GAAP basis (i.e., held basis). See the *GCSBB* section beginning on page 21 for information on the *GCSBB* managed results. The following *All Other* discussion focuses on the results on an as adjusted basis excluding the securitization offset. For additional information, see *Note 22 Business Segment Information* to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

In addition to the securitization offset discussed above, All Other includes our Equity Investments businesses and Other.

Equity Investments includes Principal Investing, Corporate Investments and Strategic Investments. Principal Investing is comprised of a diversified portfolio of investments in privately-held and publicly-traded companies at all stages of their life cycle from start-up to buyout. These investments are made either directly in a company or held through a fund and are accounted for at fair value. In addition, Principal Investing has unfunded equity commitments related to some of these investments. For more information on these commitments, see *Note 13 Commitments and Contingencies* to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Corporate Investments primarily includes investments in publicly-traded equity securities and funds which are accounted for as AFS marketable equity securities. Strategic Investments includes investments of \$16.4 billion in CCB, \$2.6 billion in Grupo Financiero Santander, S.A. (Santander), \$2.6 billion Banco Itaú and other investments. Beginning in the fourth quarter of 2007, the shares of CCB are accounted for as AFS marketable equity securities and carried at fair value with a corresponding net-of-tax offset to accumulated OCI. Prior to the fourth quarter of 2007, these shares were accounted for at cost as they are non-transferable until October 2008. We also hold an option to increase our ownership interest in CCB to 19.1 percent. Additional shares received upon exercise of this option are restricted through August 2011. This option expires in February 2011. The strike price of the option is based on the IPO price that steps up on an annual basis and is currently at 103 percent of the IPO price. The

strike price of the option is capped at 118 percent of the IPO price depending when the option is exercised. Our investment in Santander is accounted for under the equity method of accounting. The restricted shares of Banco Itaú are currently carried at cost but, similar to CCB, will be

accounted for as AFS marketable equity securities and carried at fair value with an offset net-of-tax to accumulated OCI beginning in the second quarter of 2008. Income associated with *Equity Investments* is recorded in equity investment income.

Other includes the residual impact of the allowance for credit losses and the cost allocation processes, merger and restructuring charges, intersegment eliminations, and the results of certain businesses that are expected to be or have been sold or are in the process of being liquidated. *Other* also includes certain amounts associated with ALM activities, including the residual impact of funds transfer pricing allocation methodologies, amounts associated with the change in the value of derivatives used as economic hedges of interest rate and foreign exchange rate fluctuations that do not qualify for SFAS 133 hedge accounting treatment, foreign exchange rate fluctuations related to SFAS 52 revaluation of foreign denominated debt issuances, certain gains (losses) on sales of whole mortgage loans, and gains (losses) on sales of debt securities. *Other* also includes adjustments to noninterest income and income tax expense to remove the FTE impact of items (primarily low-income housing tax credits) that have been grossed up within noninterest income to a FTE amount in the business segments.

Net income increased \$1.4 billion to \$2.9 billion primarily due to an increase in noninterest income combined with decreases in all other noninterest expense, merger and restructuring charges and provision for credit losses partially offset by a decrease in net interest income.

Net interest income decreased \$1.3 billion resulting largely from the absence of net interest income due to the sale of the Latin American operations and Hong Kong-based retail and commercial banking business which were included in our 2006 results. Net interest income was also adversely impacted by the implementation of new accounting guidance (FSP 13-2) which decreased net interest income by approximately \$230 million.

Noninterest income increased \$1.6 billion driven by the \$1.5 billion gain from the sale of Marsico. In addition, noninterest income increased

due to higher equity investment income and the absence of a loss of \$496 million on the sale of mortgage-backed debt securities which occurred in the prior year. Partially offsetting these items was a \$720 million gain on the sale of our Brazilian operations in 2006 and losses in 2007 of \$394 million on securities after they were purchased at fair value from certain cash funds managed within *GWIM*. In addition, all noninterest income line items were impacted by the absence of noninterest income due to the sale of the Latin American operations and Hong Kong-based retail and commercial banking business which were included in our 2006 results.

The following table presents the components of *All Other s* equity investment income and a reconciliation to the total consolidated equity investment income for 2007 and 2006.

Components of Equity Investment Income

(Dollars in millions)	2007	2006
Principal Investing	\$ 2,217	\$ 1,894
Corporate and Strategic Investments	1,528	978
Total equity investment income included in All Other	3,745	2,872
Total equity investment income included in the business segments	319	317
Total consolidated equity investment income	\$ 4,064	\$ 3,189

Equity investment income increased \$873 million primarily due to the \$600 million gain on the sale of private equity funds to Conversus Capital and an increase of \$533 million in dividends from CCB, including a special dividend of \$184 million prior to CCB s 2007 share listing. Partially offsetting these increases was a \$341 million gain in 2006 recorded on the liquidation of a strategic European investment.

Provision for credit losses decreased \$119 million to negative \$251 million compared to negative \$132 million in 2006, mainly due to reserve reductions from the sale of our Argentina portfolio during the first quarter of 2007 and improved performance of the remaining portfolios from certain consumer finance businesses that we have previously exited.

Merger and restructuring charges decreased \$395 million to \$410 million compared to \$805 million for 2006 due to declining integration costs associated with the MBNA acquisition offset by costs associated with the integration of U.S. Trust Corporation and LaSalle. For additional information on merger and restructuring charges, see *Note 2 Merger and Restructuring Activity* to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The decrease in all other noninterest expense of \$992 million was largely driven by the absence of operating costs after the sale of the Latin America operations and Hong Kong-based retail and commercial banking business which were included in our 2006 results.

Off- and On-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In the ordinary course of business, we support our customers financing needs by facilitating their access to the commercial paper market. In addition, we utilize certain financing arrangements to meet our balance sheet management, funding and liquidity needs. For additional information on our liquidity risk, see Liquidity Risk and Capital Management beginning on page 41. These activities utilize SPEs, typically in the form of corporations, limited liability companies, or trusts, which raise funds by issuing short-term commercial paper or similar instruments to third party investors. These SPEs typically hold various types of financial assets whose cash flows are the primary source of repayment for the liabilities of the SPEs. Investors have recourse to the assets in the SPE and often benefit from other credit enhancements, such as overcollateralization in the form of excess assets in the SPE, liquidity facilities, and other arrangements. As a result, the SPEs can typically obtain a favorable credit rating from the rating agencies, resulting in lower financing costs for our customers.

Table 8 Special Purpose Entities Liquidity Exposure ⁽¹⁾

	December 31, 2007						
	VIEs			Q	SPEs		
(Dollars in millions)	Consolidated (2) Unconsolidated		Unconsolidated		Total		
Corporation-sponsored multi-seller conduits Municipal bond trusts and corporate SPEs Collateralized debt obligation vehicles ⁽³⁾ Asset acquisition conduits	\$ 16,984 7,359 3,240 1,623	\$	47,335 3,120 9,026 6,399	\$	7,251	\$ 64,319 17,730 12,266 8,022	
Customer-sponsored conduits			1,724			1,724	
Total liquidity exposure	\$ 29,206	\$	67,604	\$	7,251	\$ 104,061	
			December 31, 2006				
		VIEs		QSPEs			
	Consolidated						
(Dollars in millions)	(2)	Unconsolidated		Unconsolidated		Total	
Corporation-sponsored multi-seller conduits	\$ 11,515	\$	29,836	\$		\$ 41,351	
Municipal bond trusts and corporate SPEs	272		48		7,593	7,913	
Collateralized debt obligation vehicles			7,658			7,658	
Asset acquisition conduits	1,083		5,952			7,035	
Customer-sponsored conduits			4,586			4,586	
Total liquidity exposure	\$ 12,870	\$	48,080	\$	7,593	\$ 68,543	

⁽¹⁾ Note 9 Variable Interest Entities to the Consolidated Financial Statements is related to this table but only reflects those entities in which we hold a significant variable interest.

⁽²⁾We consolidate VIEs when we are the primary beneficiary that will absorb the majority of the expected losses or expected residual returns of the VIEs or both.

⁽³⁾ For additional information on our CDO exposures and related writedowns at December 31, 2007, see the CDO discussion beginning on page 28.

We have liquidity agreements, SBLCs or other arrangements with the SPEs, as described below, under which we are obligated to provide funding in the event of a market disruption or other specified event or otherwise provide credit support to the entities (hereinafter referred to as liquidity exposure). We manage our credit risk and any market risk on these arrangements by subjecting them to our normal underwriting and risk management processes. Our credit ratings and changes thereto will affect the borrowing cost and liquidity of these SPEs. In addition, significant changes in counterparty asset valuation and credit standing may also affect the ability of the SPEs to issue commercial paper. The contractual or notional amount of these commitments as presented in Table 8, represents our maximum possible funding obligation and is not, in management s view, representative of expected losses or funding requirements. From time to time, we may purchase commercial paper issued by these SPEs in connection with market-making activities or for investment purposes. During the second half of 2007, there were instances in which the a result, at December 31, 2007, we held \$6.6 billion of commercial paper on the Corporation s Consolidated Balance Sheet that was issued in connection with our liquidity obligations to unconsolidated CDOs summarized in the table above. At December 31, 2006, we held \$123 million of commercial paper issued by the SPEs included in the table above.

The table above presents our liquidity exposure to these consolidated and unconsolidated SPEs, which include VIEs and QSPEs. VIEs are SPEs which lack sufficient equity at risk or whose equity investors do not have a controlling financial interest. QSPEs are SPEs whose activities are strictly limited to holding and servicing financial assets. Some, but not all, of the liquidity commitments to VIEs are considered to be significant variable interests and are disclosed in *Note 9 Variable Interest Entities* to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Those liquidity commitments that are not significant variable interests are not required to be included in *Note 9 Variable Interest Entities* to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

At December 31, 2007 the Corporation s total liquidity exposure to SPEs was \$104.1 billion, an increase of \$35.5 billion from December 31, 2006. The increase was primarily due to increases in corporation-sponsored multi-seller conduits and municipal bond trusts and corporate SPEs. The increase of \$23.0 billion in corporation-sponsored multi-seller conduits was primarily due to organic growth in the business. The increase of \$9.8 billion in municipal bond trusts and corporate SPEs was mainly due to the acquisition of LaSalle.

Corporation-Sponsored Multi-Seller Conduits

We administer three multi-seller conduits which provide a low-cost funding alternative to our customers by facilitating their access to the commercial paper market. Our customers sell or otherwise transfer assets to the conduits, which in turn issue high-grade, short-term commercial paper that is collateralized by the underlying assets. We receive fees for providing combinations of liquidity and SBLCs or similar loss protection commitments to the conduits. These commitments represent significant variable interests in the SPEs, which are discussed in more detail in *Note 9 Variable Interest Entities* to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Third parties participate in a small number of the liquidity facilities on a pari passu basis with the Corporation.

At December 31, 2007, our liquidity commitments to the conduits were collateralized by various classes of assets. Assets held in the conduits incorporate features such as overcollateralization and cash reserves which are designed to provide credit support at a level that is equivalent to an investment grade as determined in accordance with internal risk rating guidelines. During 2007, there were no material write-downs or downgrades of assets.

We are the primary beneficiary of one conduit which is included in our Consolidated Financial Statements. At December 31, 2007, our liquidity commitments to this conduit were collateralized by credit card loans (21 percent), auto loans (14 percent), equipment loans (13 percent), and student loans (eight percent). None of these assets are subprime residential mortgages. In addition, 29 percent of our commitments were

collateralized by projected cash flows from long-term contracts (e.g., television broadcast contracts, stadium revenues and royalty payments) which, as mentioned above, incorporate features that provide credit support at a level equivalent to an investment grade. At December 31, 2007, the weighted average life of assets in the consolidated conduit was 5.4 years and the weighted average maturity of commercial paper issued by this conduit was 40 days. Assets of the Corporation are not available to pay creditors of the consolidated conduit except to the extent the Corporation may be obligated to perform under the liquidity commitments and SBLCs. Assets of the consolidated conduit are not available to pay creditors of the Corporation.

We do not consolidate the other two conduits as we do not expect to absorb a majority of the variability of the conduits. At December 31, 2007, our liquidity commitments to the unconsolidated conduits were collateralized by student loans (27 percent), credit card loans and trade receivables (10 percent each), and auto loans (eight percent). Less than one percent of these assets are subprime residential mortgages. In addition, 29 percent of our commitments were collateralized by the conduits short-term lending arrangements with investment funds, primarily real estate funds, which as mentioned above, incorporate features that provide credit support at a level equivalent to an investment grade. Amounts advanced under these arrangements will be repaid when the investment funds issue capital calls to their qualified equity investors. At December 31, 2007, the weighted average life of assets in the unconsolidated conduits was 2.6 years and the weighted average maturity of commercial paper issued by these conduits was 36 days.

The liquidity commitments and SBLCs provided to unconsolidated conduits are included in Table 10 in the Obligations and Commitments section beginning on page 38. We have no other contractual obligations to the unconsolidated conduits, nor do we intend to provide noncontractual or other forms of support.

On a combined basis, the unconsolidated conduits issued approximately \$27 million of capital notes and equity interests to third parties. This represents the maximum amount of loss that would be absorbed by the third party investors. Based on an analysis of projected cash flows, we have determined that the Corporation will not absorb a majority of the variability created by the assets of the conduits.

Despite the market disruptions in the second half of 2007, the conduits did not experience any material difficulties in issuing commercial paper. The Corporation did not purchase any commercial paper issued by the conduits other than incidentally and in its role as commercial paper dealer.

Municipal Bond Trusts and Corporate SPEs

We have provided a total of \$17.7 billion and \$7.9 billion in liquidity support to municipal bond trusts and corporate SPEs at December 31, 2007 and 2006. We administer municipal bond trusts that hold highly-rated, long-term, fixed-rate municipal bonds, some of which are callable prior to maturity, for which we provided liquidity support of \$13.4 billion and \$2.6 billion at December 31, 2007 and 2006. In addition, we administer several conduits to which we provided \$4.3 billion and \$5.3 billion of liquidity support at December 31, 2007 and 2006.

As it relates to the municipal bond trusts the weighted average remaining life of the bonds at December 31, 2007 was 20.8 years. Substantially all of the bonds are rated AAA or AA and some of the bonds benefit from being wrapped by monolines. There were no material write-downs or downgrades of assets or issuers during 2007. The trusts obtain financing by issuing floating-rate trust certificates that reprice on a weekly basis to third party investors. The floating-rate investors have the right to

tender the certificates at any time upon seven days notice. We serve as remarketing agent and liquidity provider for the trusts. Should we be unable to remarket the tendered certificates, we are generally obligated to purchase them at par. We are not obligated to purchase the certificate if a bond s credit rating declines below investment grade or in the event of certain defaults or bankruptcy of the issuer and/or insurer. The total notional amount of floating-rate certificates for which we provide liquidity support was \$13.4 billion and \$2.6 billion at December 31, 2007 and 2006. Some of these trusts are QSPEs. We consolidate those trusts that are not QSPEs if we hold the residual interest or otherwise expect to absorb a majority of the variability of the trusts. We have \$6.1 billion of liquidity commitments to unconsolidated trusts at December 31, 2007, which are included in Table 10 in the Obligations and Commitments section beginning on page 38.

Assets of the other corporate conduits consisted primarily of high-grade, long-term municipal, corporate, and mortgage-backed securities which had a weighted average remaining life of approximately 7.5 years at December 31, 2007. Substantially all of the securities are rated AAA or AA and some of the bonds benefit from being wrapped by monolines. There were no material write-downs or downgrades of assets or insurers during 2007. These conduits, which are QSPEs, obtain funding by issuing commercial paper to third party investors. At December 31, 2007, the weighted average maturity of the commercial paper was 25 days. We have entered into derivative contracts which provide interest rate, currency and a pre-specified amount of credit protection to the entities in exchange for the commercial paper rate. In addition, we may be obligated to purchase assets from the vehicles if the assets or insurers are downgraded. If an asset s rating declines below a certain investment quality as evidenced by its credit rating or defaults, we are no longer exposed to the risk of loss. Due to the market disruptions during the second half of 2007, these conduits began to experience difficulties in issuing commercial paper as credit spreads widened. On occasion, including in the first quarter of 2008, we held some of the issued commercial paper when marketing attempts were unsuccessful. In the event that we are unable to remarket the conduits commercial paper such that it no longer qualifies as a QSPE, we would consolidate the conduit which may have an adverse impact on the fair value of the related derivative contracts. At December 31, 2007 we did not hold any commercial paper issued by the conduits.

We have no other contractual obligations to the unconsolidated bond trusts and conduits described above, nor do we intend to provide noncontractual or other forms of support.

Derivative activity related to these entities is included in *Note 4 Derivatives* to the Consolidated Financial Statements. For more information on QSPEs, see *Note 9 Variable Interest Entities* to the Consolidated Financial Statements. For additional information on our monoline exposure, see Industry Concentrations beginning on page 54.

Collateralized Debt Obligation Vehicles

CDOs are SPEs that hold diversified pools of fixed income securities. They issue multiple tranches of debt securities, including commercial paper and equity securities. We receive fees for structuring the CDOs and/or placing debt securities with third party investors. We provided total liquidity support of \$12.3 billion and \$7.7 billion at December 31, 2007 and 2006 consisting of \$10.0 billion and \$2.1 billion of written put options and \$2.3 billion and \$5.5 billion of other forms of liquidity support.

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, we provided liquidity support in the form of written put options on \$10.0 billion and \$2.1 billion of commercial paper issued by CDOs, including \$3.2 billion issued by a consolidated CDO at December 31, 2007. No third parties provide similar

commitments to these CDOs. The commercial paper is the most senior class of securities issued by the CDOs and benefits from the subordination of all other securities, including AAA-rated securities. The amount that is principally backed by subprime residential mortgage exposure (net of insurance and prior to writedowns) totaled \$7.4 billion. This amount included approximately \$2.8 billion of high grade ABS, \$4.2 billion of CDOs-squared, of which \$3.2 billion were consolidated, and \$363 million of mezzanine ABS.

The commercial paper subject to the put options is the most senior class of securities issued by the CDOs and benefits from the subordination of all other securities, including AAA-rated securities. We are obligated under the written put options to provide funding to the CDOs by purchasing the commercial paper at predetermined contractual yields in the event of a severe disruption in the short-term funding market as evidenced by the inability of the CDOs to issue commercial paper at spreads below a predetermined rate.

Prior to the second half of 2007, we believed that the likelihood of our experiencing an economic loss as the result of our obligations under the written put options was remote. However, due to severe market disruptions during the second half of 2007, the CDOs holding the put options began to experience difficulties in issuing commercial paper. Shortly thereafter, a significant portion of the assets held in these CDOs were downgraded or threatened with downgrade by the rating agencies. As a result of these factors, we began to purchase commercial paper that could not be issued to third parties at less than the contractual yield specified in our liquidity obligations. See *Note 13 Commitments and Contingencies* to the Consolidated Financial Statements for more information on the written put options. These written put options are recorded as derivatives on the Consolidated Balance Sheet and are carried at fair value with changes in fair value recorded in trading account profits (losses). Derivative activity related to these entities is included in *Note 4 Derivatives* to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

We also administer a CDO conduit that obtains funds by issuing commercial paper to third party investors. The conduit held \$2.3 billion and \$5.5 billion of assets at December 31, 2007 and 2006 consisting of super senior tranches of debt securities issued by other CDOs, none of which are principally backed by subprime residential mortgages at December 31, 2007. We provide liquidity support equal to the amount of assets in this conduit which obligates us to purchase the commercial paper at a predetermined contractual yield in the event of a severe disruption in the short-term funding market as evidenced by the inability of the conduit to issue commercial paper at spreads below a predetermined rate. In addition, we are obligated to purchase assets from the conduit or absorb market losses on the sale of assets in the event of a downgrade or decline in credit quality of the assets. Our \$2.3 billion liquidity commitment to the conduit at December 31, 2007 is included in Table 10 in the Obligations and Commitments section. We are the sole provider of liquidity to the CDO vehicle.

During the fourth quarter of 2007, as contractually allowed in our role as conduit administrator, the Corporation removed certain assets from the CDO conduit due to a decline in credit quality. The CDO conduit also began to experience difficulties in issuing commercial paper due to market disruptions during the second half of 2007, and we began to purchase commercial paper that could not be issued to third parties at less than the contractual yield specified in our liquidity obligations.

At December 31, 2007, we held \$6.6 billion of commercial paper on the balance sheet that was issued by unconsolidated CDO vehicles of which \$5.0 billion related to the written put options and \$1.6 billion related to other liquidity support. We also held AFS debt securities in

consolidated CDO vehicles with a fair value of \$2.8 billion that were principally related to certain assets that were removed from the CDO conduit, as discussed above. We recorded losses of \$3.2 billion, net of insurance, in trading account profits (losses) in 2007 of which \$2.7 billion related to written put options and \$519 million related to other liquidity support. These losses are included in the \$4.0 billion of net writedowns on super senior CDO exposure which is discussed in more detail beginning on page 28.

Asset Acquisition Conduits

We administer two unconsolidated conduits which acquire assets on behalf of our customers. The return on the assets held in the conduits, which consist principally of liquid exchange-traded securities and some leveraged loans, is passed through to our customers through a series of derivative contracts. We consolidate a third conduit which holds subordinated debt securities for our benefit. These conduits obtain funding through the issuance of commercial paper and subordinated certificates to third party investors. Repayment of the commercial paper and certificates is assured by derivative contracts between the Corporation and the conduits, and we are reimbursed through the derivative contracts with our customers. Our performance under the derivatives is collateralized by the underlying assets. Derivative activity related to these entities is included in *Note 4 Derivatives* to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Despite the market disruptions in the second half of 2007, the conduits did not experience any material difficulties in issuing commercial paper. The Corporation did not hold a significant amount of commercial paper issued by the conduits at any time during 2007. At December 31, 2007, the weighted average life of commercial paper issued by the conduits was 34 days.

We have no other contractual obligations to the conduits described above, nor do we intend to provide noncontractual or other forms of support.

Customer-Sponsored Conduits

We provide liquidity facilities to conduits that are sponsored by our customers and which provide them with direct access to the commercial paper market. We are typically one of several liquidity providers for a customer s conduit. We do not provide SBLCs or other forms of credit enhancement to these conduits. Assets of these conduits consist primarily of auto loans, student loans and credit card receivables. The liquidity commitments benefit from structural protections which vary depending upon the program, but given these protections, the exposures are viewed to be of investment grade quality.

These commitments are included in Table 10 in the Obligations and Commitments section. As we typically provide less than 20 percent of the total liquidity commitments to these conduits and do not provide other forms of support, we have concluded that we do not hold a significant variable interest in the conduits and they are not included in our discussion of VIEs in *Note 9 Variable Interest Entities* to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Obligations and Commitments

We have contractual obligations to make future payments on debt and lease agreements. Additionally, in the normal course of business, we enter into contractual arrangements whereby we commit to future purchases of products or services from unaffiliated parties. Obligations that are legally binding agreements whereby we agree to purchase products or services with a specific minimum quantity defined at a fixed, minimum or variable price over a specified period of time are defined as purchase obligations.

Included in purchase obligations are vendor contracts of \$4.9 billion, commitments to purchase securities of \$3.7 billion and commitments to purchase loans of \$27.1 billion. The most significant of our vendor contracts include communication services, processing services and software contracts. Other long-term liabilities include our contractual funding obligations related to the Qualified Pension Plans, Nonqualified Pension Plans and Postretirement Health and Life Plans (the Plans). Obligations to the Plans are based on the current and projected obligations of the Plans, performance of the Plans assets and any participant contributions, if applicable. During 2007 and 2006, we contributed \$243 million and \$2.6 billion to the Plans, and we expect to make at least \$206 million of con-

tributions during 2008. The following table does not include UTBs of \$3.1 billion associated with FIN 48 and tax-related interest and penalties of \$573 million.

Debt, lease, equity and other obligations are more fully discussed in *Note 12* Short-term Borrowings and Long-term Debt and Note 13 Commitments and Contingencies to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The Plans and UTBs are more fully discussed in Note 16 Employee Benefit Plans and Note 18 Income Taxes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Table 9 presents total long-term debt and other obligations at December 31, 2007.

Table 9 Long-term Debt and Other Obligations

		December 31, 2007								
	Due in 1 year	Due after 1 year through 3		Due after 3 years through 5		Due after 5				
(Dollars in millions)	or less		years		years	years	Total			
Long-term debt and capital leases	\$ 30,435	\$	50,693	\$	28,115	\$ 88,265	\$ 197,508			
Purchase obligations ⁽¹⁾	12,266		21,994		624	842	35,726			
Operating lease obligations	2,049		3,405		2,480	8,151	16,085			
Other long-term liabilities	493		694		432	480	2,099			
Total long-term debt and other obligations	\$ 45,243	\$	76,786	\$	31,651	\$ 97,738	\$ 251,418			

⁽¹⁾Obligations that are legally binding agreements whereby we agree to purchase products or services with a specific minimum quantity defined at a fixed, minimum or variable price over a specified period of time are defined as purchase obligations.

Many of our lending relationships contain funded and unfunded elements. The funded portion is reflected on our balance sheet. For lending relationships carried at historical cost, the unfunded component of these commitments is not recorded on our balance sheet until a draw is made under the credit facility; however, a reserve is established for probable losses. For lending commitments for which we have elected to account for under SFAS 159, the fair value of the commitment is recorded in accrued expenses and other liabilities. The Corporation also manages certain concentrations of commitments (e.g., bridge financing) through its established originate to distribute strategy.

For more information on these commitments and guarantees, including equity commitments, see *Note 13 Commitments and Contingencies* to the Consolidated Financial Statements. For more information on the adoption of SFAS 159, see *Note 19 Fair Value Disclosures* to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

We enter into commitments to extend credit such as loan commitments, SBLCs and commercial letters of credit to meet the financing needs of our customers. The table below summarizes the total unfunded, or off-balance sheet, credit extension commitment amounts by expiration date. At December 31, 2007, the unfunded lending commitments related to charge cards (nonrevolving card lines) to individuals and government entities guaranteed by the U.S. Government in the amount of \$9.9 billion (related outstandings of \$193 million) were not included in credit card line commitments in the table below.

Other Commitments

We provided support to cash funds managed within *GWIM* by purchasing certain assets at fair value and by committing to provide a limited amount of capital to the funds. For more information, see *Note 13 Commitments and Contingencies* to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Table 10 Credit Extension Commitments

					Decem	ber 31, 2007				
	Ex	pires in 1 vear or		res after 1 ar through	Ехрі	res after 3 years through	Exp	oires after		
(Dollars in millions)		less	,	3 years		5 years		5 years		Total
Loan commitments	\$	178,931	\$	92,153	\$	106,904	\$	27,902	\$	405,890
Home equity lines of credit		8,482		1,828		2,758		107,055		120,123
Standby letters of credit and financial guarantees		31,629		14,493		7,943		8,731		62,796
Commercial letters of credit		3,753		50		33		717		4,553
Legally binding commitments (1)		222,795		108,524		117,638		144,405		593,362
Credit card lines		876,393		17,864						894,257
Total credit extension commitments	\$ -	1,099,188	\$	126,388	\$	117,638	\$	144,405	\$1	1,487,619
⁽¹⁾ Includes commitments of \$47.3 billion to corporatio	n-spon	sored multi-	seller c	onduits \$2	3 billion	to CDOs \$6	1 billi	on to munici	oal br	ond trusts

⁽¹⁾ Includes commitments of \$47.3 billion to corporation-sponsored multi-seller conduits, \$2.3 billion to CDOs, \$6.1 billion to municipal bond trusts and \$1.7 billion to customer-sponsored conduits at December 31, 2007.

Managing Risk

Overview

Our management governance structure enables us to manage all major aspects of our business through an integrated planning and review process that includes strategic, financial, associate, customer and risk planning. We derive much of our revenue from managing risk from customer transactions for profit. In addition to qualitative factors, we utilize quantitative measures to optimize risk and reward trade offs in order to achieve growth targets and financial objectives while reducing the variability of earnings and minimizing unexpected losses. Risk metrics that allow us to measure performance include economic capital targets and corporate risk limits. By allocating economic capital to a line of business, we effectively manage that business s ability to take on risk. Review and approval of business plans incorporate approval of economic capital allocation, and economic capital usage is monitored through financial and risk reporting. Industry, country, trading, asset allocation and other limits supplement the allocation of economic capital. These limits are based on an analysis of risk and reward in each line of business and management is responsible for tracking and reporting performance measurements as well as any exceptions to guidelines or limits. Our risk management process continually evaluates risk and appropriate metrics needed to measure it.

Our business exposes us to the following major risks: strategic, liquidity, credit, market and operational risk. Strategic risk is the risk that adverse business decisions, ineffective or inappropriate business plans or failure to respond to changes in the competitive environment, business cycles, customer preferences, product obsolescence, execution and/or other intrinsic risks of business will impact our ability to meet our objectives. Liquidity risk is the inability to accommodate liability maturities and deposit withdrawals, fund asset growth and meet contractual obligations through unconstrained access to funding at reasonable market rates. Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from a borrower s or counterparty s inability to meet its obligations. Market risk is the risk that values of assets and liabilities or revenues will be adversely affected by changes in market conditions, such as interest rate movements. Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or external events. The following sections, Strategic Risk Management on page 41, Liquidity Risk and Capital Management beginning on page 41, Credit Risk Management beginning on page 44, Market Risk Management beginning on page 61 and Operational Risk Management beginning on page 68, address in more detail the specific procedures, measures and analyses of the major categories of risk that we manage.

Risk Management Processes and Methods

We have established and continually enhance control processes and use various methods to align risk-taking and risk management throughout our organization. These control processes and methods are designed around three lines of defense : lines of business, enterprise functions and Corporate Audit.

The lines of business are the first line of defense and are responsible for identifying, quantifying, mitigating and monitoring all risks within their lines of business, while certain enterprise-wide risks are managed centrally. For example, except for trading-related business activities, interest rate risk associated with our business activities is managed centrally as part of our ALM activities. Line of business management makes and executes the business plan and is closest to the changing nature of risks

and, therefore, we believe is best able to take actions to manage and mitigate those risks. Our lines of business prepare periodic self-assessment reports to identify the status of risk issues, including mitigation plans, if appropriate. These reports roll up to executive management to ensure appropriate risk management and oversight, and to identify enterprise-wide issues. Our management processes, structures and policies aid us in complying with laws and regulations and provide clear lines for decision-making and accountability. Wherever practical, we attempt to house decision-making authority as close to the transaction as possible while retaining supervisory control functions from both in and outside of the lines of business.

The key elements of the second line of defense are Risk Management, Compliance, Finance, Global Technology and Operations, Human Resources, and Legal functions. These groups are independent of the lines of businesses and are organized on both a line of business and enterprise-wide basis. For example, for Risk Management, a senior risk executive is assigned to each of the lines of business and is responsible for the oversight of all the risks associated with that line of business. Enterprise-level risk executives have responsibility to develop and implement polices and practices to assess and manage enterprise-wide credit, market and operational risks.

Corporate Audit, the third line of defense, provides an independent assessment of our management and internal control systems. Corporate Audit activities are designed to provide reasonable assurance that resources are adequately protected; significant financial, managerial and operating information is materially complete, accurate and reliable; and employees actions are in compliance with corporate policies, standards, procedures, and applicable laws and regulations.

We use various methods to manage risks at the line of business levels and corporate-wide. Examples of these methods include planning and forecasting, risk committees and forums, limits, models, and hedging strategies. Planning and forecasting facilitates analysis of actual versus planned results and provides an indication of unanticipated risk levels. Generally, risk committees and forums are composed of lines of business, risk management, treasury, compliance, legal and finance personnel, among others, who actively monitor performance against plan, limits, potential

issues, and introduction of new products. Limits, the amount of exposure that may be taken in a product, relationship, region or industry, seek to align corporate-wide risk goals with those of each line of business and are part of our overall risk management process to help reduce the volatility of market, credit and operational losses. Models are used to estimate market value and net interest income sensitivity, and to estimate expected and unexpected losses for each product and line of business, where appropriate. Hedging strategies are used to manage the risk of borrower or counterparty concentration risk and to manage market risk in the portfolio.

The formal processes used to manage risk represent only one portion of our overall risk management process. Corporate culture and the actions of our associates are also critical to effective risk management. Through our Code of Ethics, we set a high standard for our associates. The Code of Ethics provides a framework for all of our associates to conduct themselves with the highest integrity in the delivery of our products or services to our customers. We instill a risk-conscious culture through communications, training, policies, procedures, and organizational roles and responsibilities. Additionally, we continue to strengthen the linkage between the associate performance management process and individual compensation to encourage associates to work toward corporate-wide risk goals.

Oversight

The Board oversees the risk management of the Corporation through its committees, management committees and the Chief Executive Officer. The Board s Audit Committee monitors (1) the effectiveness of our internal controls, (2) the integrity of our Consolidated Financial Statements and (3) compliance with legal and regulatory requirements. In addition, the Audit Committee oversees the internal audit function and the independent registered public accountant. The Board s Asset Quality Committee oversees credit risks and related topics that may impact our assets and earnings. The Finance Committee, a management committee, oversees the development and performance of the policies and strategies for managing the strategic, credit, market, and operational risks to our earnings and capital. The Asset Liability Committee (ALCO), a subcommittee of the Finance Committee, oversees our policies and processes designed to assure sound market risk and balance sheet management. The Global Markets Risk Committee (GRC) has been designated by ALCO as the primary governance authority for Global Markets Risk Management. The Compliance and Operational Risk Committee, a subcommittee of the Finance Committee, oversees our policies and processes designed to assure sound operational and compliance risk management. The Credit Risk Committee (CRC), a subcommittee of the Finance Committee, oversees and approves our adherence to sound credit risk management policies and practices. Certain CRC approvals are subject to the oversight of the Board s Asset Quality Committee. The Executive Management Team (i.e., Chief Executive Officer and select executives of the management team) reviews our corporate strategies and objectives, evaluates business performance, and reviews business plans including economic capital allocations to the Corporation and lines of business. Management continues to direct corporate-wide efforts to address the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision s new risk-based capital standards (Basel II). The Audit Committee and Finance Committee oversee management s plans to comply with Basel II. For additional information, see the Basel II discussion on page 43 and Note 15 Regulatory Requirements and Restrictions to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Strategic Risk Management

Strategic risk is the risk that adverse business decisions, ineffective or inappropriate business plans, or failure to respond to changes in the competitive environment, business cycles, customer preferences, product obsolescence, execution and/or other intrinsic risks of business will impact our ability to meet our objectives. We use an integrated planning process to help manage strategic risk. A key component of the planning process aligns strategies, goals, tactics and resources throughout the enterprise. The process begins with the creation of a corporate-wide business plan which incorporates an assessment of the strategic risks. This business plan establishes the corporate strategic direction. The planning process then cascades through the lines of business, creating business line plans that are aligned with the Corporation s strategic direction. At each level, tactics and metrics are identified to measure success in achieving goals and assure adherence to the plans. As part of this process, the lines of business continuously evaluate the impact of changing market and business conditions, and the overall risk in meeting objectives. See the Operational Risk Management section beginning on

page 68 for a further description of this process. Corporate Audit in turn monitors, and independently reviews and evaluates, the plans and measurement processes.

One of the key tools we use to manage strategic risk is economic capital allocation. Through the economic capital allocation process, we effectively manage each line of business s ability to take on risk. Review and approval of business plans incorporate approval of economic capital allocation, and economic capital usage is monitored through financial and risk reporting. Economic capital allocation plans for the lines of business are incorporated into the Corporation s operating plan that is approved by the Board on an annual basis.

Liquidity Risk and Capital Management

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity is the ongoing ability to accommodate liability maturities and deposit withdrawals, fund asset growth and business operations, and meet contractual obligations through unconstrained access to funding at reasonable market rates. Liquidity management involves forecasting funding requirements and maintaining sufficient capacity to meet the needs and accommodate fluctuations in asset and liability levels due to changes in our business operations or unanticipated events. Sources of liquidity include deposits and other customer-based funding, and wholesale market-based funding.

We manage liquidity at two levels. The first is the liquidity of the parent company, which is the holding company that owns the banking and nonbanking subsidiaries. The second is the liquidity of the banking subsidiaries. The management of liquidity at both levels is essential because the parent company and banking subsidiaries have different funding needs and sources, and are subject to certain regulatory guidelines and requirements. Through ALCO, the Finance Committee is responsible for establishing our liquidity policy as well as approving operating and contingency procedures, and monitoring liquidity on an ongoing basis. Corporate Treasury is responsible for planning and executing our funding activities and strategy.

In order to ensure adequate liquidity through the full range of potential operating environments and market conditions, we conduct our liquidity management and business activities in a manner that will preserve and enhance funding stability, flexibility and diversity. Key components of this operating strategy include a strong focus on customer-based funding, maintaining direct relationships with wholesale market funding providers, and maintaining the ability to liquefy certain assets when, and if, requirements warrant.

We develop and maintain contingency funding plans for both the parent company and bank liquidity positions. These plans evaluate our liquidity position under various operating circumstances and allow us to ensure that we would be able to operate through a period of stress when access to normal sources of funding is constrained. The plans project funding requirements during a potential period of stress, specify and quantify sources of liquidity, outline actions and procedures for effectively managing through the problem period, and define roles and responsibilities. They are reviewed and approved annually by ALCO.

Our borrowing costs and ability to raise funds are directly impacted by our credit ratings. The credit ratings of Bank of America Corporation and Bank of America, N.A. are reflected in the table below.

Table 11 Credit Ratings

	Bank	Bank of Am	erica N A		
	Duin	of America Corpor Subordinated	Commercial	Short-term	Long-term
	Senior Debt	Debt	Paper	Borrowings	Debt
Moody s Investors Service	Aa1	Aa2	P-1	P-1	Aaa
Standard & Poor s	AA	AA-	A-1+	A-1+	AA+
Fitch Ratings	AA	AA-	F1+	F1+	AA

Under normal business conditions, primary sources of funding for the parent company include dividends received from its banking and nonbanking subsidiaries, and proceeds from the issuance of senior and subordinated debt, as well as commercial paper and equity. Primary uses of funds for the parent company include repayment of maturing debt and commercial paper, share repurchases, dividends paid to shareholders, and subsidiary funding through capital or debt.

The parent company maintains a cushion of excess liquidity that would be sufficient to fully fund the holding company and nonbank affiliate operations for an extended period during which funding from normal sources is disrupted. The primary measure used to assess the parent company s liquidity is the Time to Required Funding during such a period of liquidity disruption. This measure assumes that the parent company is unable to generate funds from debt or equity issuance, receives no dividend income from subsidiaries, and no longer pays dividends to shareholders while continuing to meet nondiscretionary uses needed to maintain bank operations and repayment of contractual principal and interest payments owed by the parent company and affiliated companies. Under this scenario, the amount of time the parent company and its nonbank subsidiaries can operate and meet all obligations before the current liquid assets are exhausted is considered the Time to Required Funding remains in the target range of 21 to 27 months and is the primary driver of the timing and amount of the Corporation s debt issuances. As of December 31, 2007 Time to Required Funding was 19 months compared to 24 months at December 31, 2006. The reduction reflects the funding of the LaSalle acquisition for \$21.0 billion in cash which closed on October 1, 2007. We had anticipated in the fourth quarter of 2007 that the Time to Required Funding would decrease slightly below our target range as a result of the funding of the LaSalle acquisition. We anticipate returning to our target range in 2008 due in part to the issuance of preferred stock in the first quarter of 2008. For additional information on our recent preferred stock issuances, see the Preferred Stock discussion on page 44.

The primary sources of funding for our banking subsidiaries include customer deposits and wholesale market based funding. Primary uses of funds for the banking subsidiaries include growth in the core asset portfolios, including loan demand, and in the ALM portfolio. We use the ALM portfolio primarily to manage interest rate risk and liquidity risk.

One ratio that can be used to monitor the stability of funding composition is the loan to domestic deposit ratio. This ratio reflects the percent of loans and leases that are funded by domestic core deposits, a relatively stable funding source. A ratio below 100 percent indicates that our loan portfolio is completely funded by domestic core deposits. The ratio was 127 percent at December 31, 2007 compared to 118 percent at

December 31, 2006. The increase was primarily attributable to organic growth in the loan and lease portfolio, and a decision to retain a larger share of mortgage production on the Corporation s balance sheet.

The strength of our balance sheet is a result of rigorous financial and risk discipline. Our core deposit base, which is a low cost funding source, is often used to fund the purchase of incremental assets (primarily loans and securities), the composition of which impacts our loan to deposit ratio. Mortgage-backed securities and mortgage loans have prepayment risk which must be managed. Repricing of deposits is a key variable in this process. The capital generated in excess of capital adequacy targets and to support business growth, is available for the payment of dividends and share repurchases.

ALCO determines prudent parameters for wholesale market-based borrowing and regularly reviews the funding plan for the bank subsidiaries to ensure compliance with these parameters. The contingency funding plan for the banking subsidiaries evaluates liquidity over a 12-month period in a variety of business environment scenarios assuming different levels of earnings performance and credit ratings as well as public and investor relations factors. Funding exposure related to our role as liquidity provider to certain off-balance sheet financing entities is also measured under a stress scenario. In this analysis, ratings are downgraded such that the off-balance sheet financing entities are not able to issue commercial paper and backup facilities that we provide are drawn upon. In addition, potential draws on credit facilities to issuers with ratings below a certain level are analyzed to assess potential funding exposure.

We originate loans for retention on our balance sheet and for distribution. As part of our originate to distribute strategy, commercial loan originations are distributed through syndication structures, and residential mortgages originated by *Consumer Real Estate* are frequently distributed in the secondary market. In connection with our balance sheet management activities, we may retain mortgage loans originated as well as purchase and sell loans based on our assessment of market conditions.

Regulatory Capital

At December 31, 2007, the Corporation operated its banking activities primarily under three charters: Bank of America, N.A., FIA Card Services, N.A. and LaSalle Bank, N.A. As a regulated financial services company, we are governed by certain regulatory capital requirements. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Corporation, Bank of America, N.A., and FIA Card Services, N.A., were classified as well-capitalized for regulatory purposes, the highest classification. At December 31, 2007, LaSalle Bank, N.A. was also classified as well-capitalized for regulatory purposes. There have been no conditions or events since December 31, 2007 that management believes have changed the Corporation s, Bank of America, N.A. s, FIA Card Services, N.A. s, and LaSalle Bank, N.A. s capital classifications.

Table 12 Reconciliation of Tier 1 and Total Capital	Decem	ber 31
(Dollars in millions)	2007	2006
Tier 1 Capital		
Total shareholders equity	\$ 146,803	\$ 135,272
Goodwill	(77,530)	(65,662)
Nonqualifying intangible assets ⁽¹⁾	(5,239)	(3,782)
Effect of net unrealized (gains) losses on AFS debt and marketable equity securities and net		
(gains) losses on derivatives recorded in accumulated OCI, net-of-tax	(2,149)	6,565
Unamortized net periodic benefit costs recorded in accumulated OCI, net-of-tax	1,301	1,428
Trust securities ⁽²⁾	16,863	15,942
Other	3,323	1,301
Total Tier 1 Capital	83,372	91,064
Long-term debt qualifying as Tier 2 Capital	31,771	24,546
Allowance for loan and lease losses	11,588	9,016
Reserve for unfunded lending commitments	518	397
Other ⁽³⁾	6,471	203
Total Capital	\$ 133,720	\$ 125,226
(1) Nonqualifying intangible assets of the Corporation are comprised of certain core deposit intangibles	affinity relationships and other in	tangibles

⁽¹⁾Nonqualifying intangible assets of the Corporation are comprised of certain core deposit intangibles, affinity relationships and other intangibles. ⁽²⁾Trust securities are net of unamortized discounts.

⁽³⁾ Includes 45 percent, or \$6.0 billion, of the pre-tax fair value adjustment related to the Corporation s stock investment in CCB.

Certain corporate sponsored trust companies which issue trust preferred securities (Trust Securities) are deconsolidated under FIN 46R. As a result, the Trust Securities are not included on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. On March 1, 2005, the FRB issued Risk-Based Capital Standards: Trust Preferred Securities and the Definition of Capital (the Final Rule) which allows Trust Securities to continue to qualify as Tier 1 Capital with revised quantitative limits that would be effective after a five-year transition period. As a result, we continue to include Trust Securities in Tier 1 Capital.

The Final Rule limits restricted core capital elements to 15 percent for internationally active bank holding companies. In addition, the FRB revised the qualitative standards for capital instruments included in regulatory capital. Internationally active bank holding companies are those with consolidated assets greater than \$250 billion or on-balance sheet exposure greater than \$10 billion. At December 31, 2007, our restricted core capital elements comprised 20.3 percent of total core capital elements. We expect to be fully compliant with the revised limits prior to the implementation date of March 31, 2009.

Table 12 reconciles the Corporation s total shareholders equity to Tier 1 and Total Capital as defined by the regulations issued by the FRB, the FDIC, and the OCC at December 31, 2007 and 2006.

At December 31, 2007, the Corporation s Tier 1 Capital, Total Capital and Tier 1 Leverage ratios were 6.87 percent, 11.02 percent, and 5.04 percent, respectively. During 2007, the Corporation completed its acquisitions of U.S. Trust Corporation for \$3.3 billion in cash and LaSalle for \$21.0 billion in cash. As a result of these acquisitions, the Corporation s Tier 1 Capital, Total Capital, and Tier 1 Leverage ratios were reduced by approximately 130 bps, 145 bps and 90 bps, respectively, at December 31, 2007.

In January 2008, we issued 240 thousand shares of Bank of America Corporation Fixed-to-Floating Rate Non-Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series K with a par value of \$0.01 per share for \$6.0 billion. The fixed rate is 8.00 percent through January 29, 2018 and then adjusts to three-month LIBOR plus 363 bps thereafter. In addition, we issued 6.9 million shares of Bank of America Corporation 7.25% Non-Cumulative Perpetual Convertible Preferred Stock, Series L with a par value of \$0.01 per share for

\$6.9 billion. Based on December 31, 2007 balances, the Corporation s Tier 1 and Total Capital ratios are expected to increase by approximately 105 bps and its Tier 1 Leverage ratio is expected to increase by approximately 75 bps as a result of these issuances. See *Note 15 Regulatory Requirements and Restrictions* to the Consolidated Financial Statements for more information on the Corporation s regulatory capital.

Basel II

In June 2004, the Basel II Accord was published with the intent of more closely aligning regulatory capital requirements with underlying risks. Similar to economic capital measures, Basel II seeks to address credit risk, market risk and operational risk.

While economic capital is measured to cover unexpected losses, the Corporation also maintains a certain threshold in terms of regulatory capital to adhere to legal standards of capital adequacy. These thresholds or leverage ratios will continue to be utilized for the foreseeable future.

On December 7, 2007, the U.S. regulatory agencies published the final Basel II rules (Basel II Rules). The Basel II Rules establish requirements for the U.S. implementation and provide detailed capital requirements for credit and operational risk under Pillar 1, supervisory requirements under Pillar 2 and disclosure requirements under Pillar 3. We are still awaiting final rules for market risk requirements under Basel II.

The Basel II Rules allow U.S. financial institutions to begin parallel reporting as early as 2008. During the parallel period, the resulting capital calculations under both the current (Basel I) rules and the Basel II Rules should be reported to the financial institutions regulatory supervisors for examination and compliance for at least four consecutive quarterly periods. Once the parallel period and subsequent three-year transition period are successfully completed, the financial institution will utilize Basel II as their means of capital adequacy assessment, measurement and reporting and discontinue use of Basel I. We continue execution efforts to ensure preparedness with all Basel II requirements. The goal is to achieve full compliance by the end of the three-year implementation period in 2011. Further, internationally Basel II was implemented in several countries during the second half of 2007, while others will begin implementation in 2008 and 2009.

Dividends

In 2007, the Corporation paid cash dividends of \$10.7 billion on its common stock. Effective for the third quarter 2007 dividend, the Board increased the quarterly cash dividend 14 percent from \$0.56 to \$0.64 per share. In October 2007, the Board declared a fourth quarter cash dividend of \$0.64 which was paid on December 28, 2007 to common shareholders of record on December 7, 2007. In January 2008, the Board authorized a quarterly cash dividend of \$0.64 per common share payable on March 28, 2008 to shareholders of record on March 7, 2008.

In 2007, the Corporation paid a total of \$182 million in cash dividends on its various series of preferred stock. In January 2008, we also declared five dividends in regards to preferred stock. The first was a \$1.75 regular quarterly cash dividend on the 7 percent Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock, Series B, payable April 25, 2008 to shareholders of record on April 11, 2008. The second was a regular quarterly cash dividend of \$0.38775 per depositary share on the 6.204% Non-Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series D, payable March 14, 2008 to shareholders of record on February 29, 2008. The third was a regular quarterly cash dividend of \$0.33342 per depositary share on the Floating Rate Non-Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series E, payable on February 15, 2008 to shareholders of record on January 31, 2008. The fourth was a regular quarterly cash dividend of \$0.41406 per depositary share on the 6.625% Non-Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series I, payable April 1, 2008 to shareholders of record on March 15, 2008. The fifth was the initial cash dividend of \$0.35750 per depositary share on the 7.25% Non-Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series J, payable on February 1, 2008 to shareholders of record on January 31, 2008.

Common Share Repurchases

We expect to continue to repurchase shares, from time to time, in the open market or in private transactions through our approved repurchase programs. We repurchased approximately 73.7 million shares of common stock in 2007 which more than offset the 53.5 million shares issued under employee stock plans.

In January 2007, the Board authorized a stock repurchase program of up to 200 million shares of the Corporation s common stock at an aggregate cost not to exceed \$14.0 billion to be completed within a period of 12 to 18 months of which the lesser of approximately \$13.5 billion, or 189.4 million shares, remains available for repurchase under the program at December 31, 2007.

Preferred Stock

In January 2008, we issued 240 thousand shares of Bank of America Corporation Fixed-to-Floating Rate Non-Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series K with a par value of \$0.01 per share for \$6.0 billion. The fixed rate is 8.00 percent through January 29, 2018 and then adjusts to three-month LIBOR plus 363 bps thereafter. In addition, we issued 6.9 million shares of Bank of America Corporation 7.25% Non-Cumulative Perpetual Convertible Preferred Stock, Series L with a par value of \$0.01 per share for \$6.9 billion.

In November and December 2007, the Corporation issued 41 thousand shares of Bank of America Corporation 7.25% Non-Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series J, with a par value of \$0.01 per share for \$1.0 billion.

In September 2007, the Corporation issued 22 thousand shares of Bank of America Corporation 6.625% Non-Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series I, with a par value of \$0.01 per share for \$550 million.

For additional information on the issuance and redemption of preferred stock, see *Note 14* Shareholders Equity and Earnings per Common Share to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Credit Risk Management

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from the inability of a borrower or counterparty to meet its obligations. Credit risk can also arise from operational failures that result in an erroneous advance, commitment or investment of funds. We define the credit exposure to a borrower or counterparty as the loss potential arising from all product classifications including loans and leases, derivatives, trading account assets, assets held-for-sale, deposit overdrafts and unfunded lending commitments that include loan commitments, letters of credit and financial guarantees. Derivative positions, trading account assets and assets held-for-sale are recorded at fair value, or the lower of cost or fair value. Loans and unfunded commitments, which the Corporation elected to account for at fair value in accordance with SFAS 159, are also recorded at fair value. Credit risk for these categories of assets is not accounted for as part of the allowance for credit losses but as part of the fair value adjustment recorded in earnings in the period incurred. For derivative positions, our credit risk is measured as the net replacement cost in the event the counterparties with contracts in a gain position to us fail to perform under the terms of those contracts. We use the current mark-to-market value to represent credit exposure without giving consideration to future mark-to-market changes. The credit risk amounts take into consideration the effects of legally enforceable master netting agreements and cash collateral. Our consumer and commercial credit extension and review procedures take into account funded

and unfunded credit exposures. For additional information on derivatives and credit extension commitments, see *Note 4 Derivatives* and *Note 13 Commitments and Contingencies* to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

For credit risk purposes, we evaluate our consumer businesses on both a held and managed basis. Managed basis assumes that loans that have been securitized were not sold and presents earnings on these loans in a manner similar to the way loans that have not been sold (i.e., held loans) are presented. We evaluate credit performance on a managed basis as the receivables that have been securitized are subject to the same underwriting standards and ongoing monitoring as held loans. In addition to the discussion of credit quality statistics of both held and managed loans included in this section, refer to the *Card Services* discussion beginning on page 22. For additional information on our managed portfolio and securitizations, see *Note 8* Securitizations to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

We manage credit risk based on the risk profile of the borrower or counterparty, repayment sources, the nature of underlying collateral, and other support given current events, conditions and expectations. We classify our portfolios as either consumer or commercial and monitor credit risk in each as discussed below.

The financial market conditions that existed in the second half of 2007 have continued to affect the economy and the financial services sector in 2008. It remains unclear what impact the housing downturn, declines in real estate values and the overall economic slowdown will ultimately have and how long these conditions will exist. We expect that certain industry sectors, in particular those that are dependent on the housing sector, and certain geographic regions, will experience further stress. Continued deterioration of the housing market, including recessionary conditions, will negatively impact the credit quality of our consumer portfolio as well as the credit quality of the consumer dependent sectors of our commercial portfolio and will result in a higher provision for credit losses in future periods. The degree of the impact will be dependent upon the duration and severity of the housing downturn. As part of our credit risk management culture, we continually evaluate our credit standards and adjust them to be consistent with changes in the environment. For exam-

ple, we have adjusted our underwriting criteria, as well as enhanced our line management and collection strategies across the consumer businesses. In the commercial businesses, we have increased the frequency of portfolio monitoring and are aggressively managing exposure when we begin to see signs of deterioration.

Consumer Portfolio Credit Risk Management

Credit risk management for the consumer portfolio begins with initial underwriting and continues throughout a borrower s credit cycle. Statistical techniques in conjunction with experiential judgment are used in all aspects of portfolio management including underwriting, product pricing, risk appetite, setting credit limits, operating processes and metrics to quantify and balance risks and returns. In addition, credit decisions are statistically based with tolerances set to decrease the percentage of approvals as the risk profile increases. Statistical models are built using detailed behavioral information from external sources such as credit bureaus and/or internal historical experience. These models are a critical component of our consumer credit risk management process and are used in the determination of both new and existing credit decisions, portfolio management strategies including authorizations and line management, collection practices and strategies, determination of the allowance for credit losses, and economic capital allocations for credit risk.

For information on our accounting policies regarding delinquencies, nonperforming status and charge-offs for the consumer portfolio, see *Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Principles* to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Management of Consumer Credit Risk Concentrations

Consumer credit risk is evaluated and managed with a goal that credit concentrations do not result in undesirable levels of risk. We review, measure and manage credit exposure in numerous ways such as by product and geography in order to achieve the desired mix. Additionally, to enhance our overall risk management strategy credit protection is purchased on certain portions of our portfolio.

Our consumer loan portfolio in the states of California, Florida, New York and Texas represented in aggregate 43 percent and 42 percent of total managed consumer loans at December 31, 2007 and 2006. Our consumer loan portfolio in the state of California represented approximately 24 percent and 23 percent of total managed consumer loans at December 31, 2007 and 2006, primarily driven by the consumer real estate portfolio. Our consumer loan portfolio in the state of Florida is our second largest concentration and represented approximately eight percent of total managed consumer loans at both December 31, 2007 and 2006, primarily driven by the consumer real estate portfolio. New York and Texas represented six percent and five percent of total managed consumer loans at both December 31, 2007 and 2006, primarily driven by the total 2006. No state other than California, and no single Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) within California represented more than 10 percent of the total managed consumer portfolio. No other single state represented over five percent of total managed consumer loans.

We have mitigated a portion of our credit risk in our residential mortgage loan portfolio by using synthetic securitizations. These agreements are cash collateralized and will reimburse us in the event that losses exceed established loss levels. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, approximately \$140.0 billion and \$130.0 billion of mortgage loans were protected by these agreements. In addition, we have entered into credit protection agreements with government-sponsored agencies on approximately \$33.0 billion and \$5.0 billion as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, providing full protection on conforming residential mortgage loans that become severely delinquent. Our regulatory risk-weighted assets were reduced as a result of these transactions because we transferred a portion of our credit risk to unaffiliated parties. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, these transactions had the cumulative effect of reducing our risk-weighted assets by \$49.0 billion and \$36.4 billion, and resulted in increases of 27 bps and 30 bps in our Tier 1 Capital ratio at December 31, 2007 and 2006.

Table 13 Consumer Loans and Leases

		December 31				١	Year Ended December 31			
						Accruing Pas	t			
						Due 90 Days	N	et Charge-	Net Char	ge-off/
		Outsta	ndings N	onperform	ing ^(1, 2)	or More ⁽³⁾	of	fs/Losses	Loss Rat	tios ⁽⁴⁾
(Dollars in millions)		2007	2006	2007	2006	2007 200	6	2007 200	6 2007	2006
Held basis										
Residential mortgage		\$ 274,949	\$ 241,181	\$ 1,999 \$	660 \$	\$ 237 \$ 11	8 \$	57 \$ 3	9 0.02%	0.02%
Credit card domestic		65,774	61,195	n/a	n/a	1,855 1,99	1 3	,063 3,09	4 5.29	4.85
Credit card foreign		14,950	10,999	n/a	n/a	272 18	4	378 22	5 3.06	2.46
Home equity ⁽⁵⁾		114,834	87,893	1,340	291			274 5	1 0.28	0.07
Direct/Indirect consumer (5, 6)		76,844	59,378	8	2	745 37	8 1	,373 61	0 1.95	1.14
Other consumer ^(5, 7)		3,850	5,059	95	77	4	7	278 21	7 6.54	2.97
Total held		551,201	465,705	3,442	1,030	3,113 2,67	8 5	,423 4,23	6 1.07	1.01
Securitization impact		108,646	110,151	2	2	2,764 2,40	7 5	,003 3,37	1 4.54	3.22
Total consumer loans and leases	managed	\$ 659,847	\$ 575,856	\$ 3,444 \$	1,032 \$	\$ 5,877 \$ 5,08	5 \$ 10	,426 \$ 7,60	7 1.69	1.45
Managed basis										
Residential mortgage		\$ 278,733	\$ 245,840	\$ 1,999 \$	660 \$	\$ 237 \$ 11	8 \$	57 \$ 3	9 0.02%	0.02%
Credit card domestic		151,862	142,599	n/a	n/a	4,170 3,82	8 6	,960 5,39	5 4.91	3.89
Credit card foreign		31,829	27,890	n/a	n/a	714 60	8 1	,254 98	0 4.24	3.95
Home equity (5)		115,009	88,202	1,342	293			274 5	1 0.28	0.07
Direct/Indirect consumer (5, 6)		78,564	66,266	8	2	752 52	4 1	,603 92	5 2.14	1.49
Other consumer ^(5, 7)		3,850	5,059	95	77	4	7	278 21	7 6.54	2.97
	managed		\$ 575.856	3.444 \$	1.032	\$ 5.877 \$ 5.08	5 \$ 10	.426 \$ 7.60	7 1.69	1.45

Total consumer loans and leases managed \$659,847 \$575,856 **\$ 3,444** \$ 1,032 **\$5,877** \$5,085 **\$10,426** \$7,607 **1.69** 1.45 ⁽¹⁾ The definition of nonperforming does not include consumer credit card and consumer non-real estate loans and leases. These loans are charged-off no later than the end of the month in which the account becomes 180 days past due.

⁽²⁾ Nonperforming consumer loans and leases as a percentage of outstanding consumer loans and leases were 0.62 percent and 0.22 percent on a held basis, and 0.52 percent and 0.18 percent on a managed basis at December 31, 2007 and 2006.

⁽³⁾ Accruing consumer loans and leases past due 90 days or more as a percentage of outstanding consumer loans and leases were 0.57 percent and 0.58 percent on a held basis, and 0.89 percent and 0.88 percent on a managed basis at December 31, 2007 and 2006.

⁽⁴⁾Net charge-off/loss ratios are calculated as held net charge-offs or managed net losses divided by average outstanding held or managed loans and leases during the year for each loan and lease category.

(5) Home equity loan balances previously included in direct/indirect consumer and other consumer were reclassified to home equity to conform to current year presentation. Additionally, certain foreign consumer balances were reclassified from other consumer to direct/indirect consumer to conform to current year presentation.

⁽⁶⁾Outstandings include foreign consumer loans of \$3.4 billion and \$3.9 billion at December 31, 2007 and 2006.

(7) Outstandings include foreign consumer loans of \$829 million and \$2.3 billion and consumer finance loans of \$3.0 billion and \$2.8 billion at December 31, 2007 and 2006.

n/a = not applicable

Consumer Credit Portfolio

Table 13 presents our held and managed consumer loans and leases, and related credit quality information for 2007 and 2006. Overall, consumer credit quality indicators deteriorated from the favorable levels experienced in 2006. Weakness in the housing markets resulted in rising credit risk, most notably in home equity.

Residential Mortgage

The residential mortgage portfolio makes up the largest percentage of our consumer loan portfolio at 50 percent of held consumer loans and leases and 42 percent of managed consumer loans and leases at December 31, 2007. Approximately 24 percent of the managed residential portfolio is in *GCSBB* and *GWIM* and represents residential mortgages that are originated for the home purchase and refinancing needs of our customers. The remaining portion of the managed portfolio is mostly in *All Other*, and is comprised of purchased and originated residential mortgage loans used in our overall ALM activities.

Residential mortgage loans to borrowers in the state of California represented 34 percent and 33 percent of total residential mortgage loans at December 31, 2007 and 2006. The Los Angeles-Long Beach-Santa Ana MSA within California represented 11 percent of the total residential mortgage portfolio at both 2007 and 2006. In addition, residential mortgage loans to borrowers in the state of Florida represented six percent and seven percent of the total residential mortgage portfolio at December 31, 2007 and 2006. No single MSA within Florida represented more than 10 percent of the residential mortgage portfolio at December 31, 2007 and 2006. A portion of our credit risk on 68 percent and 56 percent of our residential mortgage loans in California and Florida was mitigated through

the purchase of credit protection. See Management of Consumer Credit Risk Concentrations beginning on page 45 for more information.

On a held basis, outstanding loans and leases increased \$33.8 billion at December 31, 2007 compared to 2006 driven by retained mortgage production and the acquisition of LaSalle. Nonperforming balances increased \$1.3 billion due to portfolio seasoning reflective of growth in the business and the impact of the weak housing market. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, loans past due 90 days or more and still accruing interest of \$237 million and \$118 million were related to repurchases pursuant to our servicing agreements with Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA) mortgage pools where repayments are insured by the Federal Housing Administration or guaranteed by the Department of Veterans Affairs.

Due to current market conditions, members of the mortgage servicing industry are evaluating a number of programs for identifying subprime residential mortgage loan borrowers who are at risk of default and offering loss mitigation strategies, including repayment plans and loan modifications, to such borrowers. Generally these programs require that the borrower and subprime residential mortgage loan meet certain criteria in order to qualify for a modification. The SEC s Office of the Chief Accountant (OCA) noted that if certain loan modification requirements are met, the OCA will not object to continued status of the transferee as a QSPE under SFAS 140. We do not currently originate or service significant subprime residential mortgage loans, nor do we hold a significant amount of beneficial interests in QSPE securitizations of subprime residential mortgage loans. We do not expect that the implementation of these programs will have a significant impact on our financial condition and results of operations.

Credit Card Domestic

The consumer domestic credit card portfolio is managed in *Card Services*. Outstandings in the held domestic credit card loan portfolio increased \$4.6 billion in 2007 compared to 2006 due to organic growth in the portfolio partially offset by an increase in securitized levels. The \$136 million decrease in held domestic loans past due 90 days or more and still accruing interest was driven by the addition of higher loss profile accounts to the securitization trust and an increased level of securitizations partially offset by portfolio seasoning.

Net charge-offs for the held domestic portfolio decreased \$31 million to \$3.1 billion, or 5.29 percent of total average held credit card domestic loans compared to 4.85 percent (5.00 percent excluding the impact of SOP 03-3) in 2006. Net charge-offs decreased primarily due to the addition of higher loss profile accounts to the securitization trust and an increased level of securitizations as well as the absence of 2006 charge-offs related to changes made in credit card minimum payment requirements. These decreases were partially offset by portfolio seasoning and increases from the unusually low charge-off levels experienced in 2006 post bankruptcy reform.

Managed domestic credit card outstandings increased \$9.3 billion to \$151.9 billion in 2007 compared to 2006 due to an increase in retail and cash volumes and lower payment rates. Managed net losses increased \$1.6 billion to \$7.0 billion, or 4.91 percent of total average managed domestic loans compared to 3.89 percent (3.96 percent excluding the impact of SOP 03-3) in 2006. The increases were primarily due to portfolio seasoning and increases from the unusually low loss levels experienced in 2006 post bankruptcy reform.

See page 48 for a discussion of the impact of SOP 03-3 on managed losses and net charge-offs.

Credit Card Foreign

The consumer foreign credit card portfolio is managed in *Card Services*. Outstandings in the held foreign credit card loan portfolio increased \$4.0 billion to \$15.0 billion in 2007 compared to 2006 due to the strengthening of foreign currencies against the U.S. dollar, organic growth and portfolio acquisitions. Net charge-offs for the held foreign portfolio increased \$153 million to \$378 million, or 3.06 percent of total average held credit card foreign loans compared to 2.46 percent (3.05 percent excluding the impact of SOP 03-3) in 2006. The increases in held net charge-offs were due to seasoning of the European portfolio and strengthening of foreign currencies against the U.S. dollar.

Managed foreign credit card outstandings increased \$3.9 billion to \$31.8 billion in 2007 compared to 2006 due to the same reasons as the increase in held outstandings stated above. Net losses for the managed foreign portfolio increased \$274 million to \$1.3 billion, or 4.24 percent of total average managed credit card foreign loans compared to 3.95 percent (4.17 percent excluding the impact of SOP 03-3) in 2006. The increases in managed net losses were due to the same reasons as the increases in held net charge-offs stated above.

See page 48 for a discussion of the impact of SOP 03-3 on managed losses and net charge-offs.

Home Equity

At December 31, 2007, approximately 74 percent of the managed home equity portfolio was included in *GCSBB*, while the remainder of the portfolio was mostly in *GWIM*. This portfolio consists of both revolving and non-revolving first and second lien residential mortgage loans and lines of credit. On a held basis, outstanding home equity loans increased \$26.9 billion, or 31 percent, at December 31, 2007 compared to 2006, largely due to organic home equity production and the LaSalle acquisition.

Nonperforming home equity loans increased \$1.0 billion and net charge-offs increased \$223 million to \$274 million or 0.28 percent of total average held home equity loans compared to 0.07 percent in 2006. These increases were driven by deterioration in the housing markets, including significant declines in home prices in certain geographic areas, as well as the seasoning of the portfolio reflective of growth. Although it remains unclear how long the recent and accelerated declines in the consumer housing markets will continue, this recent deterioration will negatively impact our home equity portfolio and will result in a higher provision for credit losses.

Direct/Indirect Consumer

At December 31, 2007, approximately 50 percent of the managed direct/indirect portfolio was included in *Business Lending* (automotive, marine, motorcycle and recreational vehicle loans); 44 percent was included in *GCSBB* (student and other non-real estate secured and unsecured personal loans) and the remainder was included in *GWIM* (other non-real estate secured and unsecured personal loans).

On a held basis, outstanding loans and leases increased \$17.5 billion in 2007 compared to 2006 due to growth in the *Card Services* unsecured lending product, retail automotive portfolio purchases and reduced securitization activity. Loans past due 90 days or more and still accruing interest increased \$367 million due to portfolio seasoning reflective of growth in the businesses and reduced securitization activity. Net charge-offs increased \$763 million to \$1.4 billion, or 1.95 percent of total average held direct/indirect loans compared to 1.14 percent (1.36 percent excluding

Table of Contents

the impact of SOP 03-3) in 2006. The increases were primarily driven by growth, seasoning and increases from the unusually low charge-off levels experienced in 2006 post bankruptcy reform in the *Card Services* unsecured lending portfolio, growth, seasoning and deterioration in the retail automotive and other dealer-related portfolios and the impact of the Corporation discontinuing sales of receivables into the unsecured lending trust.

Managed direct/indirect loans outstanding increased \$12.3 billion to \$78.6 billion in 2007 compared to 2006, driven by growth in the *Card Services* unsecured lending product and retail automotive portfolio purchases. Net losses for the managed loan portfolio increased \$678 million to \$1.6 billion, or 2.14 percent of total average managed direct/indirect loans compared to 1.49 percent (1.69 percent excluding the impact of SOP 03-3) in 2006. The increases were primarily driven by growth, seasoning and increases from the unusually low loss levels experienced in 2006 post bankruptcy reform in the *Card Services* unsecured lending portfolio and higher losses in the retail automotive and other dealer-related portfolios due to growth, seasoning and deterioration.

See page 48 for a discussion of the impact of SOP 03-3 on managed losses and net charge-offs.

Other Consumer

At December 31, 2007, approximately 78 percent of the other consumer portfolio was primarily associated with the portfolios from certain consumer finance businesses that we have previously exited and was included in *All Other*. The remainder consisted of the foreign consumer loan portfolio which was mostly included in *Card Services*. Other consumer outstanding loans and leases decreased \$1.2 billion, or 24 percent, at December 31, 2007 compared to December 31, 2006, driven mainly by the sale of our Latin American operations. The Corporation classifies deposit overdraft charge-offs as other consumer. Net charge-offs increased \$61 million, or 357 bps, compared to 2006 driven by overdraft net charge-offs associated with deposit account growth.

SOP 03-3

SOP 03-3 addresses accounting for differences between contractual cash flows and cash flows expected to be collected from an investor s initial investment in loans acquired in a transfer if those differences are attributable, at least in part, to credit quality. SOP 03-3 requires that impaired loans be recorded at fair value and prohibits carrying over or the creation of valuation allowances in the initial accounting of loans acquired in a transfer that are within the scope of this SOP (categories of loans for which it is probable, at the time of acquisition, that all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement will not be collected). The prohibition of the valuation allowance carryover applies to the purchase of an individual loan, a pool of loans, a group of loans, and loans acquired in a purchase business combination.

In accordance with SOP 03-3, certain acquired loans of LaSalle in 2007 and MBNA in 2006 that were considered impaired were written down to fair value at the acquisition date. Therefore, reported net charge-offs and managed net losses were lower since these impaired loans that would have been charged off during the period were reduced to fair value as of the acquisition date. SOP 03-3 does not apply to the acquired loans that have been securitized as they are not held on the Corporation s Balance Sheet.

Consumer net charge-offs, managed net losses, and associated ratios excluding the impact of SOP 03-3 for 2007 and 2006 are presented in Table 14. Management believes that excluding the impact of SOP 03-3 provides a more accurate reflection of portfolio credit quality.

Table 14 Consumer Net Charge-offs/Managed Net Losses (Excluding the Impact of SOP 03-3) ^(1, 2, 3, 4)

	Held					Managed			
	N	et					-		
	Charg	e-offs	Rati	о	Net Lo	osses	Rati	о	
(Dollars in millions)	2007	2006	2007	2006	2007	2006	2007	2006	
Residential mortgage	\$59	\$ 39	0.02 %	0.02 %	\$59	\$ 39	0.02 %	0.02 %	
Credit card domestic	3,063	3,193	5.29	5.00	6,960	5,494	4.91	3.96	
Credit card foreign	378	278	3.06	3.05	1,254	1,033	4.24	4.17	
Home equity	282	51	0.29	0.07	282	51	0.29	0.07	
Direct/Indirect consumer	1,375	729	1.96	1.36	1,605	1,044	2.14	1.69	
Other consumer	278	217	6.54	2.97	278	217	6.54	2.97	
Total consumer	\$ 5,435	\$ 4,507	1.07	1.07	\$ 10,438	\$ 7,878	1.69	1.50	
(1) Excluding the impact of SOP $03-3$ is a non-GAAP finar	ncial moacuro	The impo	ot of SOP	03-3 on	avorado ou	tetandina	hold and r	honenen	

⁽¹⁾Excluding the impact of SOP 03-3 is a non-GAAP financial measure. The impact of SOP 03-3 on average outstanding held and managed consumer loans and leases in 2007 and 2006 was not material.

⁽²⁾ Net charge-off/loss ratios are calculated as held net charge-offs or managed net losses divided by average outstanding held or managed loans and leases during the year for each loan and lease category.

⁽³⁾ Historical ratios have been adjusted for home equity, direct/indirect consumer and other consumer due to the reclassification of home equity loan balances from direct/indirect consumer to home equity, and certain foreign consumer loans from other consumer to direct/indirect consumer.

⁽⁴⁾ Including the impact of SOP 03-3 would decrease net charge-offs on residential mortgage \$2 million, home equity \$8 million, direct/indirect consumer \$2 million in 2007. Including the impact of SOP 03-3 would decrease net charge-offs on credit card domestic \$99 million, credit card foreign \$53 million and direct/indirect consumer \$119 million in 2006.

Table 15 Nonperforming Consumer Assets Activity (1)

(Dollars in millions)	2007	2006
Nonperforming loans and leases		
Balance, January 1	\$ 1,030	\$ 785
Additions to nonperforming loans and leases:		
LaSalle balance, October 1, 2007	232	
New nonaccrual loans and leases	3,829	1,432
Reductions in nonperforming loans and leases:		
Paydowns and payoffs	(260)	(157)
Sales		(117)
Returns to performing status ⁽²⁾	(855)	(698)
Charge-offs (3)	(374)	(150)
Transfers to foreclosed properties	(152)	(65)
Transfers to loans held-for-sale	(8)	
Total net additions to nonperforming loans and leases	2,412	245
Total nonperforming loans and leases, December 31	3,442	1,030
Foreclosed properties		
Balance, January 1	59	61
Additions to foreclosed properties:		
LaSalle balance, October 1, 2007	70	
New foreclosed properties	468	159
Reductions in foreclosed properties:		
Sales	(82)	(76)
Writedowns	(239)	(85)
Total net additions to (reductions in) foreclosed properties	217	(2)
Total foreclosed properties, December 31	276	59
Nonperforming consumer assets, December 31	\$ 3,718	\$ 1,089
Nonperforming consumer loans and leases as a percentage of outstanding consumer loans and leases	0.62%	0.22%
Nonperforming consumer assets as a percentage of outstanding consumer loans, leases and foreclosed properties	0.67	0.23

⁽¹⁾Balances do not include nonperforming loans held-for-sale included in other assets of \$95 million and \$30 million in 2007 and 2006.

(2) Consumer loans and leases may be restored to performing status when all principal and interest is current and full repayment of the remaining contractual principal and interest is expected, or when the loan otherwise becomes well-secured and is in the process of collection.

⁽³⁾Our policy is not to classify consumer credit card and consumer non-real estate loans and leases as nonperforming; therefore, the charge-offs on these loans have no impact on nonperforming activity.

Nonperforming Consumer Assets Activity

Table 15 presents the additions and reductions to nonperforming assets in the held consumer portfolio during 2007 and 2006. Net additions to nonperforming loans and leases in 2007 were \$2.4 billion compared to \$245 million in 2006. The increase in 2007 was driven by seasoning of the home equity and residential mortgage portfolios reflective of growth in these businesses and the weakening housing market. The nonperforming consumer loans and leases ratio increased 40 bps compared to 2006 driven by increases in the home equity and residential mortgage portfolios, especially in geographic regions most impacted by home price declines and in part due to our Community Reinvestment Act portfolio. These factors also drove the increase in foreclosed properties of \$217 million and home price declines drove higher writedowns.

Commercial Portfolio Credit Risk Management

Credit risk management for the commercial portfolio begins with an assessment of the credit risk profile of the borrower or counterparty based on an analysis of their financial position. As part of the overall credit risk assessment of a borrower or counterparty, most of our commercial credit exposure or transactions are assigned a risk rating and are subject to approval based on defined credit approval standards. Subsequent to loan origination, risk ratings are monitored on an ongoing basis. If necessary, risk ratings are adjusted to reflect changes in the financial condition, cash flow or financial situation of a borrower or counterparty. We use risk rating aggregations to measure and evaluate concentrations within portfolios.

Risk ratings are a factor in determining the level of assigned economic capital and the allowance for credit losses. In making credit decisions, we consider risk rating, collateral, country, industry and single name concentration limits while also balancing the total borrower or counterparty relationship. Our lines of business and risk management personnel use a variety of tools to continuously monitor the ability of a borrower or counterparty to perform under its obligations.

For information on our accounting policies regarding delinquencies, nonperforming status and charge-offs for the commercial portfolio, see *Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Principles* to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Management of Commercial Credit Risk Concentrations

Portfolio credit risk is evaluated and managed with a goal that concentrations of credit exposure do not result in undesirable levels of risk. We review, measure, and manage concentrations of credit exposure by industry, product, geography and customer relationship. Distribution of loans and leases by loan size is an additional measure of the portfolio risk diversification. We also review, measure, and manage commercial real estate loans by geographic location and property type. In addition, within our international portfolio, we evaluate borrowings by region and by country. Tables 19, 21, 24 and 25 summarize our concentrations. Additionally, we utilize syndication of exposure to third parties, loan sales, hedging and other risk mitigation techniques to manage the size and risk profile of the loan portfolio.

From the perspective of portfolio risk management, customer concentration management is most relevant in *GCIB*. Within that segment s *Business Lending* and *CMAS* businesses, we facilitate bridge financing (high grade debt, high yield debt, CMBS and equity) to fund acquisitions, recapitalizations and other short-term needs as well as provide syndicated financing for our clients. These concentrations are managed in part through our established originate to distribute strategy. These client transactions are sometimes large and leveraged. They can also have a higher degree of risk as we are providing offers or commitments for various components of the clients capital structures, including lower rated unsecured and subordinated debt tranches and/or equity. In many cases, these offers to finance will not be accepted. If accepted, these conditional commitments are often retired prior to or shortly following funding via the placement of securities, syndication or the client s decision to terminate. Where we have a binding commitment and there is a market disruption or other unexpected event, there may be heightened exposure in the portfolios and forward calendar, and a higher potential for writedown or loss unless the terms of the commitment can be modified and/or an orderly disposition of the exposure can be made.

The Corporation s share of the leveraged finance and CMBS forward calendars were \$12.2 billion and \$2.0 billion, respectively, at December 31, 2007. Funded leveraged finance and CMBS exposure included in assets held-for-sale totaled \$6.1 billion and \$13.7 billion at December 31, 2007. The funded CMBS exposure includes amounts assumed with the acquisition of LaSalle. The funded CMBS debt consisted of \$6.9 billion of floating-rate acquisition related financings to major, well known operating companies. In addition, of the CMBS forward calendar, \$1.1 billion were floating-rate acquisition related financings. Writedowns were taken on both funded and forward calendar commitments to reflect the current market prices, if available, or the estimated price at which the exposures could be distributed in the market. In the first quarter of 2008 the leveraged finance markets began to experience disruptions similar to those experienced in the second half of 2007 and it is unclear what impact these conditions will have on our results.

Prior to January 1, 2007, the Corporation accounted for all loans in the held-to-maturity portfolio on a historical cost basis and incurred losses on this portfolio were charged against the allowance for loan and lease losses. Effective January 1, 2007, the Corporation elected to account for certain large corporate loans and loan commitments (including issued but unfunded letters of credit which are considered utilized for credit risk management purposes), which exceed the Corporation s single name credit risk concentration guidelines at fair value in accordance with SFAS 159.

The Corporation initially adopted the fair value option for \$4.0 billion of outstanding commercial loans as of January 1, 2007 and recorded pre-tax net losses of \$21 million (net of adjustments related to the allowance for loan and lease losses and direct loan origination fees and costs) representing the excess of carrying value over fair value of the funded loans, with the after-tax amount recorded in retained earnings. The Corporation also initially adopted the fair value option for \$21.1 billion of unfunded commercial commitments, including letters of credit, as of January 1, 2007, and recorded pre-tax net losses of \$321 million (net of associated adjustments related to the reserve for unfunded lending commitments) representing the difference between the carrying value and the fair value of the unfunded lending commitments, with the after-tax amount recorded in retained earnings.

After the initial application of SFAS 159, any fair value adjustment upon origination and subsequent changes in the fair value of loans and unfunded commitments is recorded in other income. By including the credit risk of the borrower in the fair value adjustments, any credit deterioration or improvement is recorded immediately as part of the fair value adjustment. As a result, the allowance for loan and lease losses and the reserve for unfunded lending commitments are no longer used to capture credit losses inherent in these nonperforming or impaired loans and unfunded commitments. The remaining Commercial Credit Portfolio tables have been modified to exclude loans and unfunded commitments that are carried at fair value and to adjust certain ratios for this accounting change. See *Note 19 Fair Value Disclosures* to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information on the adoption of SFAS 159.

At December 31, 2007, outstanding commercial loans measured at fair value had an aggregate fair value of \$4.59 billion recorded in loans and leases and included commercial domestic loans of \$3.50 billion, commercial foreign loans of \$790 million and commercial real estate loans of \$304 million. The Corporation recorded net losses of \$139 million in other income resulting from changes in the fair value of the loan portfolio during 2007.

In addition, unfunded lending commitments and letters of credit had an aggregate fair value of \$660 million and were recorded in accrued expenses and other liabilities. The December 31, 2007 aggregate notional amount of unfunded lending commitments and letters of credit subject to fair value treatment was \$20.9 billion. Net losses resulting from changes in fair value of commitments and letters of credit of \$274 million were recorded in other income during 2007.

Commercial Credit Portfolio

Commercial credit quality indicators deteriorated from favorable levels experienced in 2006, in part attributable to the weakness in the housing and financial markets. The loans and leases net charge-off ratio increased to 0.40 percent from 0.13 percent a year ago. The increase was principally attributable to seasoning and deterioration in our small business portfolio in *GCSBB* as well as a lower level of commercial recoveries in *GCIB* and *GWIM*. Excluding small business commercial domestic the total commercial net charge-off ratio was 0.08 percent compared to a net recovery ratio of 0.03 percent in 2006, primarily due to a lower level of recoveries in 2007. The nonperforming loan and commercial utilized criticized exposure ratios were 0.67 percent and 4.17 percent at December 31, 2007 compared to 0.31 percent and 2.20 percent at December 31, 2006, mostly related to the addition of LaSalle and exposure to the homebuilder and mortgage lender sectors.

Table 16 presents our commercial loans and leases and related credit quality information for 2007 and 2006.

Table 16 Commercial Loans and Leases

			December	31		ruing	Yea	r Ended [December :	31
						ast • 00	Na		Na	
						e 90 /s or	Ne Charge	•	Ne Charg	-
	Outsta	ndings	Nonperfo	orming ⁽¹⁾		re ⁽²⁾	(3		Ratio	
(Dollars in millions)	2007	2006	2007	2006	2007	2006	2007	2006	2007	2006
Commercial loans and leases										
Commercial domestic ⁵⁾	\$ 190,541	\$ 148,255	\$ 869	\$ 505	\$ 119	\$ 66	\$ 138	\$ (25)	0.09%	(0.02)%
Commercial real estate (6)	61,298	36,258	1,099	118	36	78	47	3	0.11	0.01
Commercial lease financing	22,582	21,864	33	42	25	26	2	(28)	0.01	(0.14)
Commercial foreign	28,376	20,681	19	13	16	9	1	(8)		(0.04)
ő	302,797	227,058	2,020	678	196	179	188	(58)	0.08	(0.03)
Small business commercial domestic	,	,	,					()		()
(7)	17,756	13,727	135	79	427	199	869	361	5.57	3.00
Total measured at historical cost	320,553	240,785	2,155		623	378	1,057	303	0.40	0.13
Total measured at fair value (8)	4,590	n/a	,	n/a		n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Total commercial loans and leases	\$ 325,143	\$ 240,785	\$ 2,155	\$ 757	\$ 623	\$ 378	\$ 1,057	\$ 303	0.40	0.13

⁽¹⁾Nonperforming commercial loans and leases as a percentage of outstanding commercial loans and leases measured at historical cost were 0.67 percent and 0.31 percent at December 31, 2007 and 2006. Including commercial loans and leases measured at fair value the ratio would have been 0.66 percent at December 31, 2007.

(2) Accruing commercial loans and leases past due 90 days or more as a percentage of outstanding commercial loans and leases measured at historical cost were 0.19 percent and 0.16 percent at December 31, 2007 and 2006. Including commercial loans and leases measured at fair value the ratio would have remained unchanged at December 31, 2007.

(3) Includes a reduction in net charge-offs on commercial domestic of \$34 million, commercial real estate of \$27 million and commercial lease financing of \$2 million as a result of the impact of SOP 03-3 for 2007. Includes a reduction to small business commercial domestic of \$17 million as a result of the impact of SOP 03-3 for 2006. The impact of SOP 03-3 on average outstanding loans and leases was not material.

⁽⁴⁾Net charge-off ratios are calculated as net charge-offs divided by average outstanding loans and leases measured at historical cost during the year for each loan and lease category.

⁽⁵⁾ Excludes small business commercial domestic loans.

⁽⁶⁾ Outstandings include domestic commercial real estate loans of \$60.2 billion and \$35.7 billion, and foreign commercial real estate loans of \$1.1 billion and \$578 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006.

⁽⁷⁾Small business commercial domestic is primarily card related.

(8) Certain commercial loans are measured at fair value in accordance with SFAS 159 and include commercial domestic loans of \$3.5 billion, commercial foreign loans of \$790 million and commercial real estate loans of \$304 million at December 31, 2007.

n/a = not applicable

Table 17 presents commercial credit exposure by type for utilized, unfunded and total binding committed credit exposure. The increase in 2007 to commercial committed exposure was due to the addition of LaSalle and organic growth as discussed in the sections on the following

pages. The increase in derivative assets of \$11.2 billion was centered in credit derivatives, interest rate and foreign exchange contracts, and was driven by growth in the businesses, widening credit spreads and the strengthening of foreign currencies against the U.S. dollar.

Table 17 Commercial Credit Exposure by Type

			Decen Comn	iber 31 nercial			
	Commercial	Utilized ^(1, 2) Unfunded ^(3, 4)			Total Commercial Committed		
(Dollars in millions)	2007	2006	2007	2006	2007	2006	
Loans and leases	\$ 325,143	\$ 240,785	\$ 329,396	\$ 269,937	\$ 654,539	\$510,722	
Standby letters of credit and financial guarantees	58,747	48,729	4,049	4,277	62,796	53,006	
Derivative assets ⁽⁵⁾	34,662	23,439			34,662	23,439	
Assets held-for-sale (6)	26,475	23,904	1,489	1,136	27,964	25,040	
Commercial letters of credit	4,413	4,258	140	224	4,553	4,482	
Bankers acceptances	2,411	1,885	2	1	2,413	1,886	
Securitized assets	790	1,292			790	1,292	
Foreclosed properties	75	10			75	10	
Total commercial credit exposure	\$ 452,716	\$ 344,302	\$ 335,076	\$ 275,575	\$ 787,792	\$ 619,877	

(1) Exposure includes standby letters of credit, financial guarantees, commercial letters of credit and bankers acceptances for which the bank is legally bound to advance funds under prescribed conditions, during a specified period. Although funds have not been advanced, these exposure types are considered utilized for credit risk management purposes.

⁽²⁾ Total commercial utilized exposure at December 31, 2007 includes loans and issued letters of credit measured at fair value in accordance with SFAS 159 and is comprised of loans outstanding of \$4.59 billion and letters of credit at notional value of \$1.1 billion.

⁽³⁾ Total commercial unfunded exposure at December 31, 2007 includes loan commitments measured at fair value in accordance with SFAS 159 with a notional value of \$19.8 billion.

⁽⁴⁾ Excludes unused business card lines which are not legally binding.

(5) Derivative assets are reported on a mark-to-market basis, reflect the effects of legally enforceable master netting agreements, and have been reduced by cash collateral of \$12.8 billion and \$7.3 billion at December 31, 2007 and 2006. In addition to cash collateral, derivative assets are also collateralized by \$8.5 billion and \$7.6 billion of primarily other marketable securities at December 31, 2007 and 2006 for which credit risk has not been reduced.

⁽⁶⁾ Total commercial committed exposure consists of \$23.9 billion and \$11.0 billion of commercial loans held-for-sale exposure (e.g., commercial mortgage and leveraged finance) and \$4.1 billion and \$14.0 billion of investments held-for-sale exposure at December 31, 2007 and 2006.

Table 18 Commercial Utilized Criticized Exposure (1, 2)

	Decemb	December 31, 2006		
(Dollars in millions)	Amount	Percent (3)	Amount	Percent (3)
Commercial domestic ⁴⁾	\$ 8,829	3.37%	\$ 4,803	2.39%
Commercial real estate	6,825	10.35	806	1.98
Commercial lease financing	594	2.63	504	2.31
Commercial foreign	509	0.98	571	1.32
	16,757	4.16	6,684	2.18
Small business commercial domestic	796	4.46	377	2.72
Total commercial utilized criticized exposure	\$ 17,553	4.17	\$ 7,061	2.20

(1) Criticized exposure corresponds to the Special Mention, Substandard and Doubtful asset categories defined by regulatory authorities. Balances and ratios have been adjusted to exclude assets held-for-sale at December 31, 2007 and 2006 and exposure measured at fair value in accordance with SFAS 159 at December 31, 2007. Had criticized exposure in the assets held-for-sale and fair value portfolios been included, the ratio of commercial utilized criticized exposure to total commercial utilized exposure would have been 4.77 percent and 2.23 percent at December 31, 2007 and 2006.

⁽²⁾ Exposure includes standby letters of credit, financial guarantees, commercial letters of credit and bankers acceptances for which the bank is legally bound to advance funds under prescribed conditions, during a specified period. Although funds have not been advanced, these exposure types are considered utilized for credit risk management purposes.

⁽³⁾ Ratios are calculated as commercial utilized criticized exposure divided by total commercial utilized exposure for each exposure category. ⁽⁴⁾ Excludes small business commercial domestic exposure.

Table 18 presents commercial utilized criticized exposure by product type and as a percentage of total commercial utilized exposure. Commercial utilized criticized exposure increased \$10.5 billion, or 149 percent, primarily due to increases in commercial real estate and commercial domestic of which LaSalle contributed \$5.1 billion as discussed in more detail in the product sections below. The table above excludes utilized criticized exposure related to assets held-for-sale of \$2.9 billion and \$600 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006 and other utilized criticized exposure measured at fair value in accordance with SFAS 159 of \$1.1 billion at December 31, 2007. See *Note 19 Fair Value Disclosures* to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of the fair value portfolio. Criticized assets in the held-for-sale portfolio, are carried at the lower of cost or market, including bridge exposure of \$2.3 billion and \$550 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006 which funded in the normal course of our *Business Lending* and *CMAS* businesses and are managed in part through our originate to distribute strategy (see Management of Commercial Credit Risk Concentrations beginning on page 49 for more information on bridge financing). The level of funded, criticized exposure in the assets held-for-sale portfolio seen included, the ratio of commercial utilized criticized exposure to total commercial utilized exposure would have been 4.77 percent and 2.23 percent at December 31, 2007 and 2006.

Commercial Domestic

At December 31, 2007, approximately 89 percent of the commercial domestic portfolio, excluding small business, was included in *Business Lending* (business banking, middle market and large multinational corporate loans and leases) and *CMAS* (acquisition and bridge financing). The remaining 11 percent was mostly in *GWIM* (business-purpose loans for wealthy individuals). Outstanding commercial domestic loans and leases including loans measured at fair value, increased \$45.8 billion to \$194.0 billion at December 31, 2007 compared to December 31, 2006 driven primarily by an increase in loans within *GCIB* related to the addition of LaSalle and organic growth. Nonperforming commercial domestic loans increased by \$364 million to \$869 million primarily driven by the addition

of LaSalle. Net charge-offs were up \$163 million from 2006 driven primarily by a lower level of recoveries. Criticized utilized commercial domestic exposure excluding assets in the held-for-sale and fair value portfolios, increased \$4.0 billion to \$8.8 billion primarily driven by the addition of LaSalle, higher exposure to mortgage lenders and asset-based lending.

Commercial Real Estate

The commercial real estate portfolio is mostly managed in *Business Lending* and consists of loans issued primarily to public and private developers, homebuilders and commercial real estate firms. Outstanding loans and leases, including loans measured at fair value, increased \$25.3 billion to \$61.6 billion at December 31, 2007 compared to 2006. The increase was related to the acquisition of LaSalle, which increased outstandings by approximately \$18.8 billion, and organic growth. The portfolio remains diversified across property types and geographic regions with increases in

Table of Contents

Illinois, the Midwest and California largely related to the addition of LaSalle. Organic growth was strong in the Northeast and in retail, office and apartment property types. The addition of LaSalle contributed to growth in residential and broadly across all other property types.

Nonperforming commercial real estate loans increased \$981 million to \$1.1 billion and utilized criticized exposure increased \$6.0 billion to \$6.8 billion attributable to the continuing impact of the housing slowdown on the homebuilding sector as well as the addition of LaSalle. Nonperforming loans and utilized criticized exposure in the homebuilding sector were \$792 million and \$5.4 billion, respectively, at December 31, 2007 compared to \$71 million and \$348 million at December 31, 2006. Net charge-offs were up \$44 million from 2006 principally related to the homebuilder sector of the portfolio. At December 31, 2007, we had homebuilder-related exposure of \$13.6 billion in loans and \$21.6 billion in commercial committed exposure, of which 39 percent was criticized and six percent was classified as nonperforming. Assets held-for-sale associated with commercial real estate increased \$8.6 billion to \$13.8 billion at December 31, 2007 compared to 2006, driven by reduced market liquidity resulting in a higher level of warehoused assets pending commercial mortgage-backed securitizations and the addition of LaSalle. Refer to Management of Commercial Credit Risk Concentrations on page 49 for a discussion of our CMBS exposure.

Table 19 presents outstanding commercial real estate loans by geographic region and property type diversification.

Table 19 Outstanding Commercial Real Estate Loans (1)

	Decem	nber 31
(Dollars in millions)	2007	2006
By Geographic Region ⁽²⁾		
California	\$ 9,369	\$ 7,781
Northeast	8,951	6,368
Midwest	7,832	1,292
Illinois	6,731	979
Southeast	6,472	5,097
Southwest	5,400	3,787
Florida	4,870	3,898
Midsouth	2,843	2,006
Northwest	2,417	2,053
Other	3,370	870
Geographically diversified ⁽³⁾	2,282	1,549
Non-U.S.	1,065	578
Total outstanding commercial real estate loans ⁽⁴⁾	\$ 61,602	\$ 36,258
By Property Type		
Residential	\$ 11,157	\$ 8,151
Office buildings	8,837	4,823
Shopping centers/retail	8,722	3,955
Apartments	7,806	4,277
Industrial/warehouse	5,662	3,247
Land and land development	4,551	3,956
Multiple use	1,672	1,257
Hotels/motels	1,535	1,185
Resorts	297	180
Other ⁽⁵⁾	11,363	5,227
Total outstanding commercial real estate loans ⁽⁴⁾	\$ 61,602	\$ 36,258
(1) Primarily includes commercial loans and leases secured by non owner-occupied real estate which are dependent	ent on the sale or lease	e of the real

estate as the primary source of repayment.

⁽²⁾ Distribution is based on geographic location of collateral. Geographic regions are in the U.S. unless otherwise noted.

⁽³⁾ The geographically diversified category is comprised primarily of unsecured outstandings to real estate investment trusts and national home builders whose portfolios of properties span multiple geographic regions.

⁽⁴⁾ Includes commercial real estate loans measured at fair value in accordance with SFAS 159 of \$304 million at December 31, 2007.

⁽⁵⁾ Represents loans to borrowers whose primary business is commercial real estate, but the exposure is not secured by the listed property types.

Commercial Lease Financing

The commercial lease financing portfolio is managed in *Business Lending*. Outstanding loans and leases increased \$718 million in 2007 compared to 2006 primarily due to the addition of LaSalle which was partially offset by the adoption of FSP 13-2. Net charge-offs were \$2 million compared to net recoveries of \$28 million in 2006.

Commercial Foreign

The commercial foreign portfolio is managed primarily in *Business Lending* and *CMAS*. Outstanding loans and leases, including loans measured at fair value, increased by \$8.5 billion to \$29.2 billion at December 31, 2007 compared to December 31, 2006 driven by organic growth combined with strengthening of foreign currencies against the U.S. dollar, partially offset by the sale of our Latin American operations. Criticized utilized exposure,

excluding criticized assets in the held-for-sale and fair value portfolios, decreased \$62 million to \$509 million, primarily attributable to the sale of our Latin American operations. Net charge-offs were \$1 million compared to net recoveries of \$8 million in 2006. This increase was driven primarily by a lower level of recoveries in our large corporate portfolio. For additional information on the commercial foreign portfolio, refer to the Foreign Portfolio discussion beginning on page 56.

Small Business Commercial Domestic

The small business commercial domestic portfolio (business card and small business loans) is managed in *GCSBB*. Outstanding small business commercial domestic loans and leases increased \$4.0 billion to \$17.8 billion at December 31, 2007 compared to December 31, 2006 driven by organic growth in the small business card portfolio. Approximately 64 percent of the small business commercial domestic outstanding loans and leases at December 31, 2007 was credit card related products. Nonperforming small business commercial domestic loans increased \$56 million to \$135 million, loans past due 90 days or more and still accruing interest increased \$228 million to \$427 million and criticized loans increased \$419 million or 174 bps, to \$796 million, or 4.46 percent, at December 31, 2007 compared to 2006. Small business commercial domestic net charge-offs were up \$508 million, or 257 bps, to \$869 million, or 5.57 percent. The increases were driven by portfolio seasoning as well as deterioration particularly in states with the weakest housing markets. Approximately 70 percent of the small business commercial domestic net charge-offs for 2007 were credit card related products.

Nonperforming Commercial Assets Activity

Table 20 presents the additions and reductions to nonperforming assets in the commercial portfolio during 2007 and 2006. The increase in nonaccrual loans and leases for 2007 was primarily attributable to homebuilder and mortgage company exposure, and the addition of LaSalle.

Table 20 Nonperforming Commercial Assets Activity^(1,2)

(Dollars in millions)	2007	2006
Nonperforming loans and leases		2000
Balance, January 1	\$ 757	\$ 726
Additions to nonperforming loans and leases:	• -	
LaSalle balance, October 1, 2007	413	
New nonaccrual loans and leases	2,467	980
Advances	85	32
Reductions in nonperforming loans and leases:		
Paydowns and payoffs	(781)	(403)
Sales	(82)	(152)
Returns to performing status ⁽³⁾	(239)	(80)
Charge-offs (4)	(370)	(331)
Transfers to foreclosed properties	(75)	(3)
Transfers to loans held-for-sale	(20)	(12)
Total net additions to nonperforming loans and leases	1,398	31
Total nonperforming loans and leases, December 31	2,155	757
Foreclosed properties		
Balance, January 1	10	31
Additions to foreclosed properties:	10	51
LaSalle balance, October 1, 2007	16	
New foreclosed properties	75	6
Reductions in foreclosed properties:	75	0
Sales	(22)	(18)
Writedowns	(4)	(10)
Total net additions to (reductions in) foreclosed properties	65	(21)
Total foreclosed properties, December 31	75	10
Nonperforming commercial assets, December 31	\$ 2,230	\$ 767
Nonperforming commercial loans and leases as a percentage of outstanding commercial loans and leases measured	+ _,	+ · • ·
at historical cost	0.67%	0.31%
Nonperforming commercial assets as a percentage of outstanding commercial loans and leases measured at		
historical cost and foreclosed properties	0.70	0.32
⁽¹⁾ Balances do not include nonperforming loans held-for-sale included in other assets of \$93 million and \$50 million in	2007 and 2006.	There were

¹⁾Balances do not include nonperforming loans held-for-sale included in other assets of \$93 million and \$50 million in 2007 and 2006. There were no nonperforming loans measured at fair value in accordance with SFAS 159 in 2007. See *Note 19 Fair Value Disclosures* to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of the changes in the fair value portfolio during 2007.

⁽²⁾Includes small business commercial domestic activity.

⁽³⁾ Commercial loans and leases may be restored to performing status when all principal and interest is current and full repayment of the remaining contractual principal and interest is expected, or when the loan otherwise becomes well-secured and is in the process of collection.

⁽⁴⁾ Certain loan and lease products, including business card, are not classified as nonperforming; therefore, the charge-offs on these loans have no impact on nonperforming activity.

Industry Concentrations

Table 21 presents commercial committed and commercial utilized credit exposure by industry and the total net credit default protection purchased to cover the funded and the unfunded portion of certain credit exposure. Our commercial credit exposure is diversified across a broad range of industries.

Industry limits are used internally to manage industry concentrations and are based on committed exposure and capital usage that are allocated on an industry-by-industry basis. A risk management framework is in place to set and approve industry limits, as well as to provide ongoing monitoring. The CRC oversees industry limits governance.

Total commercial committed credit exposure increased by \$167.9 billion, or 27 percent, in 2007 compared to 2006, with \$86.6 billion, or 52 percent of the increase, attributable to LaSalle. Total commercial utilized credit exposure increased by \$108.4 billion, or 31 percent, in 2007 compared to 2006, with \$57.6 billion, or 53 percent, of the increase attributable to LaSalle. The overall commercial credit utilization rate was largely unchanged year over year, increasing from 56 percent to 57 percent.

Real estate remains our largest industry concentration, accounting for 14 percent of total commercial committed exposure at December 31,

2007. Growth of \$38.2 billion, or 52 percent, was driven primarily by LaSalle, which contributed \$27.0 billion. Diversified financials grew by \$19.1 billion, or 28 percent, due to a combination of increased activity in interest rate products, client transactions booked in the bank sponsored multi-seller conduits, and LaSalle. Government and public education exposure increased \$18.2 billion, or 46 percent, due primarily to financing commitments to student lenders. Retailing exposure grew by \$11.1 billion, or 25 percent, principally due to LaSalle. Capital goods grew by \$15.0 billon, or 40 percent, attributed equally to organic growth and LaSalle.

Monolines exposure is reported in the insurance industry and managed under the insurance portfolio industry limits. Direct commercial committed exposure to monolines, consisted of revolvers of \$203 million and net mark-to-market derivative exposure, of \$420 million at December 31, 2007.

We have indirect exposure to monolines primarily in the form of guarantees supporting our loans, investment portfolios, securitizations, credit enhanced securities as part of our public finance business and other selected products. Such indirect exposure exists when we purchase credit protection from monolines to hedge all or a portion of the credit risk on certain credit exposures including loans and CDOs. We underwrite our public finance exposure by evaluating the underlying

securities. In the case of default we first look to the underlying securities and then to recovery on the purchased insurance. See page 28 for discussion on credit protection purchased on our CDO exposure.

We also have indirect exposure as we invest in securities where the issuers have purchased wraps (i.e., insurance). For example, municipalities and corporations purchase protection in order to enhance their pricing power which has the effect of reducing their cost of borrowings. If the rating agencies downgrade the monolines, the credit rating of the bond may fall and may have an adverse impact on the market value of the security.

We have further exposure related to our public finance business where we are the lead manager or remarketing agent for transactions that are wrapped including auction rate securities (ARS), tender option municipal bonds (TOBs), and variable rate demand bonds (VRDBs). We are the lead manager on municipal and, to a lesser extent, student loan ARS where a high percentage of the programs are wrapped by either monolines or other financial guarantors. However, we are only the remarketing agent on TOBs and VRDBs transactions. Recent concerns about monoline downgrades or insolvency has caused disruptions in each of these markets as investor concerns have impacted overall market liquidity and bond prices. We continue to have liquidity exposure to these markets and instruments, and as market conditions continue to evolve, these conditions may impact our results. For information on our liquidity exposure to our public finance business, see the municipal bond trusts and corporate SPEs discussion beginning on page 37.

Credit protection is purchased to cover the funded portion as well as the unfunded portion of certain credit exposure. To lessen the cost of obtaining our desired credit protection levels, credit exposure may be added within an industry, borrower or counterparty group by selling protection. Since December 31, 2006, our net credit default protection purchased has been reduced by \$1.1 billion to \$7.1 billion as we continue to reposition the level of purchased protection based on our current view of the underlying credit risk in the portfolio.

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, we had net notional credit default protection purchased in our credit derivatives portfolio of \$7.1 billion and \$8.3 billion. The net mark-to-market impacts, including the cost of credit default protection, resulted in net gains of \$160 million in 2007 compared to net losses of \$241 million in 2006. The average VAR for these credit derivative hedges was \$22 million and \$54 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2007 and 2006. The decrease in VAR was driven by a reduction in the average amount of credit protection outstanding during the year. There is a diversification effect between the credit derivative hedges and the market-based trading portfolio such that their combined average VAR was \$55 million and \$57 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2007 and 2006. Refer to the Trading Risk Management discussion beginning on page 62 for a description of our VAR calculation for the market-based trading portfolio.

Table 21 Commercial Credit Exposure by Industry (1, 2)

	December 31						
	Commercia	al Utilized	Total Commercial Commit				
(Dollars in millions)	2007	2006	2007	2006			
Real estate ⁽³⁾	\$ 81,260	\$ 49,259	\$ 111,742	\$ 73,544			
Diversified financials	37,872	24,813	86,118	67,038			
Government and public education	31,743	22,495	57,437	39,254			
Retailing	33,280	27,226	55,184	44,064			
Capital goods	25,908	16,830	52,356	37,363			
Healthcare equipment and services	24,337	15,881	40,962	31,189			
Materials	22,176	15,978	38,717	28,789			
Consumer services	23,382	19,191	38,650	32,734			
Banks	21,261	26,405	35,323	36,735			
Individuals and trusts	22,323	18,792	32,425	29,167			
Commercial services and supplies	21,175	15,224	31,858	23,532			
Food, beverage and tobacco	13,919	11,384	25,701	21,124			
Energy	12,772	9,505	23,510	18,460			
Media	7,901	8,784	19,343	19,181			
Utilities	6,438	6,624	19,281	17,222			
Transportation	12,803	11,637	18,824	17,375			

Insurance	7,162	6,759	16,014	14,122
Religious and social organizations	8,208	7,840	10,982	10,507
Consumer durables and apparel	5,802	4,827	10,907	9,124
Technology hardware and equipment	4,615	3,326	10,239	8,093
Software and services	4,739	2,763	10,128	6,212
Pharmaceuticals and biotechnology	4,349	2,530	8,563	6,289
Telecommunication services	3,475	3,565	8,235	7,981
Automobiles and components	2,648	1,584	6,960	5,153
Food and staples retailing	2,732	2,153	5,318	4,222
Household and personal products	889	779	2,776	2,264
Semiconductors and semiconductor equipment	1,140	802	1,734	1,364
Other	8,407	7,346	8,505	7,775
Total commercial credit exposure by industry	\$ 452,716	\$ 344,302	\$ 787,792	\$ 619,877
Net credit default protection purchased on total commitments ⁽⁴⁾			\$ (7,146)	\$ (8,260)

⁽¹⁾ Total commercial utilized and total commercial committed exposure includes loans and letters of credit measured at fair value in accordance with SFAS 159 and are comprised of loans outstanding of \$4.59 billion and issued letters of credit at notional value of \$1.1 billion at December 31, 2007. In addition, total commercial committed exposure includes unfunded loan commitments at notional value of \$19.8 billion at December 31, 2007.

⁽²⁾Includes small business commercial domestic exposure.

(3) Industries are viewed from a variety of perspectives to best isolate the perceived risks. For purposes of this table, the real estate industry is defined based upon the borrowers or counterparties primary business activity using operating cash flow and primary source of repayment as key factors.

⁽⁴⁾ Represents net notional credit protection purchased.

Tables 22 and 23 present the maturity profiles and the credit exposure debt ratings of the net credit default protection portfolio at December 31, 2007 and 2006.

Table 22 Net Credit Default Protection by Maturity Profile

	Decemb	December 31		
	2007	2006		
Less than or equal to one year	2%	7%		
Greater than one year and less than or equal to five years	67	46		
Greater than five years	31	47		
Total net credit default protection	100%	100%		

Table 23 Net Credit Default Protection by Credit Exposure Debt Rating ⁽¹⁾

	December 31									
(Dollars in millions)	20	07	2006							
Ratings	Net Notional	Percent	Net Notional	Percent						
AAA	\$ (13)	0.2%	\$ (23)	0.3%						
AA	(92)	1.3	(237)	2.9						
A	(2,408)	33.7	(2,598)	31.5						
BBB	(3,328)	46.6	(3,968)	48.0						
BB	(1,524)	21.3	(1,341)	16.2						
В	(180)	2.5	(334)	4.0						
CCC and below	(75)	1.0	(50)	0.6						
NR ⁽²⁾	474	(6.6)	291	(3.5)						
Total net credit default protection	\$ (7,146)	100.0%	\$ (8,260)	100.0%						

⁽¹⁾ In order to mitigate the cost of purchasing credit protection, credit exposure can be added by selling credit protection. The distribution of debt rating for net notional credit default protection purchased is shown as a negative and the net notional credit protection sold is shown as a positive amount.

⁽²⁾ In addition to unrated names, NR includes \$550 million and \$302 million in net credit default swaps index positions at December 31, 2007 and 2006. While index positions are principally investment grade, credit default swaps indices include names in and across each of the ratings categories.

Foreign Portfolio

Our foreign credit and trading portfolio is subject to country risk. We define country risk as the risk of loss from unfavorable economic and political developments, currency fluctuations, social instability and changes in government policies. A risk management framework is in place to measure, monitor and manage foreign risk and exposures. Management oversight of country risk including cross-border risk is provided by the Country Risk Committee.

Table 24 presents total foreign exposure broken out by region at December 31, 2007 and 2006. Total foreign exposure includes credit exposure net of local liabilities, securities, and other investments domiciled in countries other than the United States. Credit card exposure is reported on a funded basis. Total foreign exposure can be adjusted for externally guaranteed exposure and certain collateral types. Exposure which is assigned external guarantees are reported under the country of the guarantor. Exposure with tangible collateral is reflected in the country where the collateral is held. For securities received, other than cross-

border resale agreements, exposure is assigned to the domicile of the issuer of the securities. Resale agreements are generally presented based on the domicile of the counterparty consistent with FFIEC reporting rules.

Our total foreign exposure was \$138.1 billion at December 31, 2007, an increase of \$8.1 billion from December 31, 2006. Europe accounted for \$74.7 billion, or 54 percent, of total foreign exposure. The European exposure was mostly in Western Europe and was distributed across a variety of industries with the largest concentration in the commercial sector which accounted for approximately 46 percent of the total exposure in Europe. The decline of \$10.6 billion was driven by lower cross-border other financing exposure, as well as higher local funding available to net against local exposures in the United Kingdom.

Asia Pacific was our second largest foreign exposure at \$42.1 billion, or 30 percent, of total foreign exposure at December 31, 2007. The growth of \$14.7 billion in Asia Pacific was primarily driven by the fair value adjustment associated with our CCB investment.

Table 24 Regional Foreign Exposure (1, 2, 3)

	December 31						
(Dollars in millions)	2007	2006					
Europe	\$ 74,725	\$ 85,279					
Asia Pacific	42,081	27,403					
Latin America	10,944	8,998					
Middle East	1,481	811					
Africa	470	317					
Other	8,361	7,131					
Total regional foreign exposure	\$ 138,062	\$ 129,939					

⁽¹⁾ In the balances above, local funding or liabilities are subtracted from local exposures as allowed by the FFIEC.

⁽²⁾ Exposures have been reduced by \$6.3 billion at December 31, 2007 and \$4.3 billion at December 31, 2006 related to the cash applied as collateral to derivative assets.

⁽³⁾Generally, cross-border resale agreements are presented based on the domicile of the counterparty consistent with FFIEC reporting rules. Cross-border resale agreements where the underlying securities are U.S. Treasury securities, in which case the domicile is the U.S., are excluded from this presentation.

Latin America accounted for \$10.9 billion, or eight percent of total foreign exposure at December 31, 2007, an increase of \$1.9 billion, or 22 percent, from December 31, 2006. The increase in exposure in Latin America was primarily due to higher exposures in Brazil, Mexico, and Chile. For more information on our Asia Pacific and Latin America exposure, see the discussion below on foreign exposure to selected countries defined as emerging markets.

At December 31, 2007, China was the only country where total cross-border exposure of \$17.0 billion, which mostly related to our investment in CCB, was between 0.75 percent and 1.00 percent of total assets. At December 31, 2007, we did not operate in any country where the total cross-border exposure exceeded one percent of our total assets. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the United Kingdom had total cross-border exposure of \$12.7 billion and \$17.3 billion representing 0.74 percent and 1.18 percent of total assets.

As presented in Table 25, foreign exposure to borrowers or counterparties in emerging markets increased \$19.6 billion to \$40.4 billion at December 31, 2007, compared to \$20.9 billion at December 31, 2006. The increase was primarily due to the fair value adjustment associated with our CCB investment as well as higher exposures across most categories in all regions. Foreign exposure to borrowers or counterparties in emerging markets represented 29 percent and 16 percent of total foreign exposure at December 31, 2007 and 2006.

At December 31, 2007, 71 percent of the emerging markets exposure was in Asia Pacific, compared to 58 percent at December 31, 2006. Asia Pacific emerging markets exposure increased by \$16.5 billion. Growth was driven by higher cross-border exposure mainly in China, India, South Korea and Singapore. Our exposure in China was primarily related to the carrying value of our equity investment in CCB which accounted for \$16.4 billion and \$3.0 billion at December 31, 2007 and 2006.

At December 31, 2007, 23 percent of the emerging markets exposure was in Latin America compared to 36 percent at December 31, 2006. Latin America emerging markets exposure increased by \$2.0 billion driven by higher cross-border exposure in Brazil, Mexico, and Chile, as well as an increase in our equity investment in Banco Itaú. During the first quarter of 2007, the Corporation completed the sale of its operations in Chile and Uruguay for approximately \$750 million in equity of Banco Itaú. The carrying value of our investment in Banco Itaú accounted for \$2.6 billion and \$1.9 billion of exposure in Brazil at December 31, 2007 and 2006. The December 31, 2007 equity investment in Banco Itaú represents seven percent of its outstanding voting and non-voting shares. Our investment in Banco Itaú is currently carried at cost and will be accounted for as AFS marketable equity securities and carried at fair value beginning in the second quarter of 2008.

Table 25 Selected Emerging Markets ⁽¹⁾

											Total					
		Loans										Local	E	merging		
		and									Co	untry		Market	- 1	Increase
	I	_eases,								Total	Expo	osure	E	xposure	(De	ecrease)
		and					Se	ecurities/		Cross-	Ν	let of		at		From
		Loan		Other				Other		border			ecer	nber 31D	ecer	nber 31,
(Dollars in millions)	Comm	itmentsF	inan	cing (2)	Ass	ets ⁽³⁾ n	vesti	ments (4)	Ехр	osure ⁽⁵⁾ L	.iabiliti	es ⁽⁶⁾		2007		2006
Region/Country																
Asia Pacific																
China ⁽⁷⁾	\$	262	\$	70	\$	79	\$	16,629	\$	17,040	\$		\$	17,040	\$	13,426
South Korea		157		1,000		177		3,068		4,402				4,402		1,025
India		1,141		470		355		1,168		3,134		158		3,292		1,257
Singapore		381		25		192		694		1,292				1,292		420
Taiwan		345		41		45		169		600		467		1,067		325
Hong Kong		416		100		53		226		795				795		(69)
Other Asia Pacific ⁽⁸⁾		133		79		35		401		648		39		687		96
Total Asia Pacific		2,835		1,785		936		22,355		27,911		664		28,575		16,480
Latin America																
Mexico		1,181		229		38		2,990		4,438				4,438		507
Brazil		701		104		42		2,617		3,464		223		3,687		1,036
Chile		644		55				14		713		6		719		393
Other Latin America ⁽⁸⁾		186		170				110		466		181		647		113

Total Latin America	2,712	558	80	5,731	9,081	410	9,491	2,049
Middle East and Africa ⁽⁸⁾	838	711	170	222	1,941		1,941	825
Central and Eastern Europe (8)	42	86	75	221	424		424	209
Total emerging market exposure	\$ 6.427	\$ 3.140	\$ 1.261	\$ 28.529	\$ 39.357	\$ 1,074	\$ 40.431	\$ 19.563

(1) There is no generally accepted definition of emerging markets. The definition that we use includes all countries in Asia Pacific excluding Japan, Australia and New Zealand; all countries in Latin America excluding Cayman Islands and Bermuda; all countries in Middle East and Africa; and all countries in Central and Eastern Europe excluding Greece. There was no emerging market exposure included in the portfolio measured at fair value in accordance with SFAS 159 at December 31, 2007.

⁽²⁾ Includes acceptances, standby letters of credit, commercial letters of credit and formal guarantees.

(3) Derivative assets are reported on a mark-to-market basis and have been reduced by the amount of cash collateral applied of \$57 million and \$9 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006. At December 31, 2007 and 2006 there were \$2 million and less than \$1 million of other marketable securities collateralizing derivative assets for which credit risk has not been reduced.

⁽⁴⁾ Generally, cross-border resale agreements are presented based on the domicile of the counterparty, consistent with FFIEC reporting rules. Cross-border resale agreements where the underlying securities are U.S. Treasury securities, in which case the domicile is the U.S., are excluded from this presentation.

⁽⁵⁾ Cross-border exposure includes amounts payable to the Corporation by borrowers or counterparties with a country of residence other than the one in which the credit is booked, regardless of the currency in which the claim is denominated, consistent with FFIEC reporting rules.

(6) Local country exposure includes amounts payable to the Corporation by borrowers with a country of residence in which the credit is booked, regardless of the currency in which the claim is denominated. Local funding or liabilities are subtracted from local exposures as allowed by the FFIEC. Total amount of available local liabilities funding local country exposure at December 31, 2007 was \$21.6 billion compared to \$20.7 billion at December 31, 2006. Local liabilities at December 31, 2007 in Asia Pacific and Latin America were \$19.7 billion and \$1.9 billion, of which \$7.9 billion were in Hong Kong, \$6.2 billion in Singapore, \$2.5 billion in South Korea, \$1.8 billion in Mexico, \$1.1 billion in China, \$836 million in India, and \$508 million in Taiwan. There were no other countries with available local liabilities funding local country exposure in COM the Compared to \$10.000 million.

⁽⁷⁾ Securities/Other Investments include an investment of \$16.4 billion in CCB. Beginning in the fourth quarter of 2007, the Corporation s equity investment in CCB was accounted for at fair value. Previously, the investment in CCB was accounted for at cost.

⁽⁸⁾No country included in Other Asia Pacific, Other Latin America, Middle East and Africa, and Central and Eastern Europe had total foreign exposure of more than \$500 million.

The increased exposures in Mexico were attributable to higher cross-border corporate securities trading exposure and loans and loan commitments. Our 24.9 percent investment in Santander accounted for \$2.6 billion and \$2.3 billion of exposure in Mexico at December 31, 2007 and 2006.

At both December 31, 2007 and 2006, five percent of the emerging markets exposure was in Middle East and Africa. Middle East and Africa emerging markets exposure increased by \$825 million driven by higher cross-border other financing exposure and loans and loan commitments.

Provision for Credit Losses

The provision for credit losses increased \$3.4 billion, or 67 percent, to \$8.4 billion in 2007 compared to 2006.

The consumer portion of the provision for credit losses increased \$1.8 billion to \$6.5 billion compared to 2006. Higher net charge-offs from portfolio seasoning, reflective of growth in the businesses and increases from the unusually low charge-off levels experienced in 2006 post bankruptcy reform drove a portion of the increase. Additionally, reserve increases related to higher losses inherent in our home equity portfolio, reflecting growth in the business and the impact of the weak housing market, as well as seasoning of the *Card Services* consumer portfolios contributed to the increased provision expense. The increases were partially offset by reserve reductions from the addition of higher loss profile accounts to the domestic credit card securitization trust and to a lesser extent, improved performance of the remaining portfolios from certain consumer finance businesses that we have previously exited.

The commercial portion of the provision for credit losses increased \$1.6 billion to \$1.9 billion compared to 2006. Higher net charge-offs from seasoning and deterioration in our small business portfolios within *GCSBB* as well as a lower level of commercial recoveries in *GCIB* and *GWIM* drove a portion of the increase. Reserve increases for seasoning of growth and deterioration in the small business portfolio within *GCSBB*, the absence of prior year reserve releases in *GCIB* and portfolio deterioration reflecting the impact of the weak housing market, particularly on our homebuilder loan portfolio within *GCIB*, also drove the year over year increase. Partially offsetting these increases was a reduction of reserves in *All Other* reflecting the sale of our Argentina portfolio during the first quarter of 2007.

The provision for credit losses related to unfunded lending commitments was \$28 million in 2007 compared to \$9 million in 2006.

Allowance for Credit Losses

Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses

The allowance for loan and lease losses excludes loans measured at fair value in accordance with SFAS 159 as subsequent mark-to-market adjustments related to loans measured at fair value include a credit risk component. The allowance for loan and lease losses is allocated based on two components. We evaluate the adequacy of the allowance for loan and lease losses based on the combined total of these two components.

The first component of the allowance for loan and lease losses covers those commercial loans measured at historical cost that are either nonperforming or impaired. An allowance is allocated when the discounted cash flows (or collateral value or observable market price) are lower than the carrying value of that loan. For purposes of computing the specific loss component of the allowance, larger impaired loans are evaluated individually and smaller impaired loans are evaluated as a pool using historical loss experience for the respective product type and risk rating of the loans.

The second component of the allowance for loan and lease losses covers performing consumer and commercial loans and leases measured at historical cost. The allowance for commercial loan and lease losses is established by product type after analyzing historical loss experience by internal risk rating, current economic conditions, industry performance trends, geographic or obligor concentrations within each portfolio segment, and any other pertinent information. The commercial historical loss experience is updated quarterly to incorporate the most recent data reflective of the current economic environment. As of December 31, 2007, quarterly updating of historical loss experience did not have a material impact on the allowance for loan and lease losses. The allowance for consumer and certain homogeneous commercial loan and lease products is based on aggregated portfolio segment evaluations, generally by product type. Loss forecast models are utilized that consider a variety of factors including, but not limited to, historical loss experience, estimated defaults or foreclosures based on portfolio trends, delinquencies, economic trends and credit scores. These loss forecast models are updated on a quarterly basis in order to incorporate information reflective of the current economic environment. As of December 31, 2007, quarterly basis in order to incorporate information reflective of the current economic environment. As of December 31, 2007, quarterly basis in order to incorporate information reflective of the current economic environment. As of December 31, 2007, quarterly basis in order to incorporate the home equity and small business losses primarily due to growth and seasoning of the consumer portfolios and higher inherent losses in the home equity and small business outlined above are reserves which are maintained to cover uncertainties that affect our estimate of probable losses including domestic and global economic uncertainty and large single name defaults.

We monitor differences between estimated and actual incurred loan and lease losses. This monitoring process includes periodic assessments by senior management of loan and lease portfolios and the models used to estimate incurred losses in those portfolios.

Additions to the allowance for loan and lease losses are made by charges to the provision for credit losses. Credit exposures deemed to be uncollectible are charged against the allowance for loan and lease losses. Recoveries of previously charged off amounts are credited to the allowance for loan and lease losses.

The allowance for loan and lease losses for the consumer portfolio as presented in Table 27 was \$6.8 billion at December 31, 2007, an increase of \$1.2 billion from December 31, 2006. The increase was attributable to an increase in reserves during 2007 for higher losses inherent in our home equity portfolio reflective of the impact of the weak housing market as well as growth and seasoning of the *Card Services* consumer portfolios. These increases were partially offset by reserve reductions from the addition of higher loss profile accounts to the domestic credit card securitizations trust, net new issuances of securitizations, and improved performance of the remaining portfolios from certain consumer finance businesses that we have previously exited.

The allowance for commercial loan and lease losses was \$4.8 billion at December 31, 2007, a \$1.4 billion increase from December 31, 2006. The LaSalle acquisition increased the allowance for commercial loan and lease losses \$676 million. In addition, the increase in commercial domestic allowance levels was primarily attributable to an increase in reserves for higher losses inherent in the small business portfolio within *GCSBB*. Commercial real estate allowance levels increased mainly due to the LaSalle acquisition and portfolio deterioration reflecting the impact of the weak housing market, particularly on our homebuilder loan portfolio within *GCIB*. Commercial foreign allowance levels decreased due to the sales of our Latin American portfolios and operations.

The allowance for loan and lease losses as a percentage of total loans and leases outstanding was 1.33 percent at December 31, 2007, compared to 1.28 percent at December 31, 2006. The increase in the ratio was driven by reserve increases for higher inherent losses in the small business and home equity portfolios within *GCSBB*, reflecting growth of these businesses and deterioration in the portfolios, and seasoning of the *Card Services* unsecured lending portfolio as well as discontinuing sales of new receivables into the unsecured lending trust. These increases were partially offset by growth in the residential mortgage portfolio, which has a low loss profile, as the Corporation increased retention of residential mortgage loans for ALM purposes. Also offsetting the increases were reserve reductions related to the addition of higher loss profile accounts to the domestic credit card securitization trust and the sales of our Latin American portfolios and operations.

Reserve for Unfunded Lending Commitments

In addition to the allowance for loan and lease losses, we also estimate probable losses related to unfunded lending commitments measured at historical cost, such as letters of credit and financial guarantees, and binding unfunded loan commitments. Unfunded lending commitments are subject to the same assessment as funded loans, except utilization assumptions are considered. The reserve for unfunded lending commitments is included in accrued expenses and other liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheet with changes to the reserve generally made through the provision for credit losses.

The reserve for unfunded lending commitments at December 31, 2007 was \$518 million, a \$121 million increase from December 31, 2006 primarily driven by the acquisition of LaSalle.

Table 26 presents a rollforward of the allowance for credit losses for 2007 and 2006.

Table 26 Allowance for Credit Losses

(Dollars in millions)	2007	2006
Allowance for loan and lease losses, January 1	\$ 9,016	\$ 8,045
Adjustment due to the adoption of SFAS 159	(32)	
LaSalle balance, October 1, 2007	725	
U.S. Trust Corporation balance, July 1, 2007	25	
MBNA balance, January 1, 2006		577
Loans and leases charged off		
Residential mortgage	(79)	(74)
Credit card domestic	(3,410)	(3,546)
Credit card foreign	(452)	(292)
Home equity	(286)	(67)
Direct/Indirect consumer	(1,885)	(857)
Other consumer	(346)	(327)
Total consumer charge-offs	(6,458)	(5,163)
Commercial domestic ¹⁾	(1,135)	(597)
Commercial real estate	(54)	(7)
Commercial lease financing	(55)	(28)
Commercial foreign	(28)	(86)
Total commercial charge-offs	(1,272)	(718)
Total loans and leases charged off	(7,730)	(5,881)
Recoveries of loans and leases previously charged off	22	35
Residential mortgage	347	35 452
Credit card domestic	347 74	452 67
Credit card foreign	12	16
Home equity Direct/Indirect consumer	512	247
Other consumer	68	110
Total consumer recoveries	1,035	927
Commercial domestid ²⁾	1,055	261
Commercial real estate	7	4
Commercial lease financing	53	56
Commercial foreign	27	94
Total commercial recoveries	215	415
Total recoveries of loans and leases previously charged off	1,250	1.342
Net charge-offs	(6,480)	(4,539)
Provision for loan and lease losses	8,357	5,001
Other	(23)	(68)
Allowance for loan and lease losses. December 31	11,588	9,016
Reserve for unfunded lending commitments, January 1	397	395
Adjustment due to the adoption of SFAS 159	(28)	000
LaSalle balance, October 1, 2007	124	
Provision for unfunded lending commitments	28	9
Other	(3)	(7)
Reserve for unfunded lending commitments, December 31	518	397
Allowance for credit losses, December 31	\$ 12,106	\$ 9,413
Loans and leases outstanding measured at historical cost at December 31	\$ 871,754	\$ 706,490
Allowance for loan and lease losses as a percentage of total loans and leases outstanding measured at	. ,	. ,
historical cost at December 31 (3)	1.33%	1.28%
Consumer allowance for loan and lease losses as a percentage of total consumer loans and leases		
outstanding at December 31	1.23	1.19
Commercial allowance for loan and lease losses as a percentage of total commercial loans and leases		
outstanding measured at historical cost at December 31 (3)	1.51	1.44
Average loans and leases outstanding measured at historical cost during the year	\$ 773,142	\$ 652,417
	-	•

Net charge-offs as a percentage of average loans and leases outstanding measured at historic	al cost during	
the year (3, 4, 5)	0.84%	0.70%
Allowance for loan and lease losses as a percentage of total nonperforming loans and leases r	neasured at	
historical cost at December 31	207	505
Ratio of the allowance for loan and lease losses at December 31 to net charge-offs (4, 5)	1.79	1.99
(1) includes small business commercial demostic obstract of 0.11 million and 0.00 million	in 2007 and 2006	

⁽¹⁾ Includes small business commercial domestic charge offs of \$911 million and \$409 million in 2007 and 2006. ⁽²⁾ Includes small business commercial domestic recoveries of \$42 million and \$48 million in 2007 and 2006.

⁽³⁾ Ratios do not include loans measured at fair value in accordance with SFAS 159 at and for the year ended December 31, 2007. Loans measured at fair value were \$4.59 billion at December 31, 2007.

(4) In 2007, the impact of SOP 03-3 decreased net charge-offs by \$75 million. Excluding the impact of SOP 03-3, net charge-offs as a percentage of average loans and leases outstanding measured at historical cost in 2007 would have been 0.85 percent and the ratio of the allowance for loan and lease losses to net charge-offs would have been 1.77 percent at December 31, 2007.

(5) In 2006, the impact of SOP 03-3 decreased net charge-offs by \$288 million. Excluding the impact of SOP 03-3, net charge-offs as a percentage of average loans and leases outstanding measured at historical cost in 2006 would have been 0.74 percent, and the ratio of the allowance for loan and lease losses to net charge-offs would have been 1.87 percent at December 31, 2006.

For reporting purposes, we allocate the allowance for credit losses across products. However, the allowance is available to absorb any credit losses without restriction. Table 27 presents our allocation by product type.

Table 27 Allocation of the Allowance for Credit Losses by Product Type

	December 31									
	20	07	20	06						
		Percent		Percent						
(Dollars in millions)	Amount	of Total	Amount	of Total						
Allowance for loan and lease losses										
Residential mortgage	\$ 207	1.8%	\$ 248	2.8%						
Credit card domestic	2,919	25.2	3,176	35.2						
Credit card foreign	441	3.8	336	3.7						
Home equity	963	8.3	133	1.5						
Direct/Indirect consumer	2,077	17.9	1,378	15.3						
Other consumer	151	1.3	289	3.2						
Total consumer	6,758	58.3	5,560	61.7						
Commercial domestic ⁽¹⁾	3,194	27.6	2,162	24.0						
Commercial real estate	1,083	9.3	588	6.5						
Commercial lease financing	218	1.9	217	2.4						
Commercial foreign	335	2.9	489	5.4						
Total commercial ⁽²⁾	4,830	41.7	3,456	38.3						
Allowance for loan and lease losses	11,588	100.0%	9,016	100.0%						
Reserve for unfunded lending commitments	518		397							
Allowance for credit losses	\$ 12,106		\$ 9,413							
(1) here have a subsequence of the second block in the second s	Φ4 4 Is 101 I ΦΕΖΟ	D	0007 1 0000							

⁽¹⁾ Includes allowance for small business commercial domestic loans of \$1.4 billion and \$578 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006. ⁽²⁾ Includes allowance for loan and lease losses for impaired commercial loans of \$123 million and \$43 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006.

Market Risk Management

Market risk is the risk that values of assets and liabilities or revenues will be adversely affected by changes in market conditions such as market movements. This risk is inherent in the financial instruments associated with our operations and/or activities including loans, deposits, securities, short-term borrowings, long-term debt, trading account assets and liabilities, and derivatives. Market-sensitive assets and liabilities are generated through loans and deposits associated with our traditional banking business, customer and proprietary trading operations, ALM process, credit risk mitigation activities and mortgage banking activities. In the event of market volatility, factors such as underlying market movements and liquidity have an impact on the results of the Corporation.

Our traditional banking loan and deposit products are nontrading positions and are reported at amortized cost for assets or the amount owed for liabilities (historical cost). GAAP requires a historical cost view of traditional banking assets and liabilities. However, these positions are still subject to changes in economic value based on varying market conditions, primarily changes in the levels of interest rates. The risk of adverse changes in the economic value of our nontrading positions is managed through our ALM activities. We have elected to fair value certain loan and deposit products in accordance with SFAS 159. For further information on fair value of certain financial assets and liabilities, see *Note 19 Fair Value Disclosures* to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Our trading positions are reported at fair value with changes currently reflected in income. Trading positions are subject to various risk factors, which include exposures to interest rates and foreign exchange rates, as well as mortgage, equity, commodity, issuer and market liquidity risk factors. We seek to mitigate these risk exposures by using techniques that encompass a variety of financial instruments in both the cash and derivatives markets. The following discusses the key risk components along with respective risk mitigation techniques.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk represents exposures to instruments whose values vary with the level or volatility of interest rates. These instruments include, but are not limited to, loans, debt securities, certain trading-related assets and liabilities, deposits, borrowings and derivative instruments. Hedging instruments used to mitigate these risks include related derivatives such as options, futures, forwards and swaps.

Foreign Exchange Risk

Foreign exchange risk represents exposures to changes in the values of current holdings and future cash flows denominated in other currencies. The types of instruments exposed to this risk include investments in foreign subsidiaries, foreign currency-denominated loans and securities, future cash flows in foreign currencies arising from foreign exchange transactions, foreign currency-denominated debt and various foreign exchange derivative instruments whose values fluctuate with changes in the level or volatility of currency exchange rates or foreign interest rates. Hedging instruments used to mitigate this risk include foreign exchange options, currency swaps, futures, forwards and deposits.

Mortgage Risk

Mortgage risk represents exposures to changes in the value of mortgage-related instruments. The values of these instruments are sensitive to prepayment rates, mortgage rates, agency debt ratings, default, market liquidity, other interest rates and interest rate volatility. Our exposure to these instruments takes several forms. First, we trade and engage in market-making activities in a variety of mortgage securities including whole loans, pass-through certificates, commercial mortgages, and collateralized mortgage obligations including CDOs using mortgages as underlying collateral. Second, we originate a variety of mortgage-backed securities which involves the accumulation of mortgage-related loans in anticipation of eventual securitization. Third, we may hold positions in mortgage secu-

rities and residential mortgage loans as part of the ALM portfolio. Fourth, we create MSRs as part of our mortgage origination activities. See *Note 1* Summary of Significant Accounting Principles and *Note 21 Mortgage Servicing Rights* to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information on MSRs. Hedging instruments used to mitigate this risk include options, futures, forwards, swaps, swaptions and securities.

Equity Market Risk

Equity market risk represents exposures to securities that represent an ownership interest in a corporation in the form of domestic and foreign common stock or other equity-linked instruments. Instruments that would lead to this exposure include, but are not limited to, the following: common stock, exchange traded funds, American Depositary Receipts (ADRs), convertible bonds, listed equity options (puts and calls), over-the-counter equity options, equity total return swaps, equity index futures and other equity derivative products. Hedging instruments used to mitigate this risk include options, futures, swaps, convertible bonds and cash positions.

Commodity Risk

Commodity risk represents exposures to instruments traded in the petroleum, natural gas, power, and metals markets. These instruments consist primarily of futures, forwards, swaps and options. Hedging instruments used to mitigate this risk include options, futures and swaps in the same or similar commodity product, as well as cash positions.

Issuer Credit Risk

Issuer credit risk represents exposures to changes in the creditworthiness of individual issuers or groups of issuers. Our portfolio is exposed to issuer credit risk where the value of an asset may be adversely impacted by changes in the levels of credit spreads, by credit migration, or by defaults. Hedging instruments used to mitigate this risk include bonds, CDS and other credit fixed income instruments.

Market Liquidity Risk

Market liquidity risk represents the risk that expected market activity changes dramatically and in certain cases may even cease to exist. This exposes us to the risk that we will not be able to transact in an orderly manner and may impact our results. This impact could further be exacerbated if expected hedging or pricing correlations are impacted by the disproportionate demand or lack of demand for certain instruments. We utilize various risk mitigating techniques as discussed in more detail in Trading Risk Management.

Trading Risk Management

Trading-related revenues represent the amount earned from trading positions, including market-based net interest income, which are taken in a diverse range of financial instruments and markets. Trading account assets and liabilities and derivative positions are reported at fair value. For more information on fair value, see *Note 19 Fair Value Disclosures* to the Consolidated Financial Statements and Complex Accounting Estimates beginning on page 68. Trading-related revenues can be volatile and are largely driven by general market conditions and customer demand. Trading-related revenues are dependent on the volume and type of transactions, the level of risk assumed, and the volatility of price and rate movements at any given time within the ever-changing market environment.

The GRC, chaired by the Global Markets Risk Executive, has been designated by ALCO as the primary governance authority for Global Markets Risk Management including trading risk management. The GRC s focus is to take a forward-looking view of the primary credit and market risks impacting *CMAS* and prioritize those that need a proactive risk mitigation strategy.

At the GRC meetings, the committee considers significant daily revenues and losses by business along with an explanation of the primary driver of the revenue or loss. Thresholds are established for each of our businesses in order to determine if the revenue or loss is considered to be significant for that business. If any of the thresholds are exceeded, an explanation of the variance is made to the GRC. The thresholds are developed in coordination with the respective risk managers to highlight those revenues or losses which exceed what is considered to be normal daily income statement volatility.

The histogram of daily revenue or loss above is a graphic depiction of trading volatility and illustrates the daily level of trading-related revenue for the twelve months ended December 31, 2007. During the twelve months ended December 31, 2007, positive trading-related revenue was recorded for 71 percent of the trading days. During the second half of 2007, CDO- related markets experienced significant liquidity constraints impacting the availability and reliability of transparent pricing resulting in the valuation of CDOs becoming more complex and time consuming. Accordingly, it was not possible to mark these positions to market on a daily basis. As a result, we recorded valuation adjustments in trading account profits (losses) of approximately \$4.0 billion on certain discrete dates relating to our super senior CDO exposure. For further discussion of our super senior CDO exposure and related losses see page 28. Excluding the discrete writedowns on our super senior CDO exposure, 21 percent of the total trading days had losses greater than \$10 million, and the largest loss was \$159 million. This can be compared to the twelve months ended December 31, 2006, where positive trading-related revenue was recorded for 96 percent of the trading days and there were no losses greater than \$10 million, and the largest in the total trading days with losses greater than \$10 million was due to the period of market disruption during the second half of 2007.

To evaluate risk in our trading activities, we focus on the actual and potential volatility of individual positions as well as portfolios. VAR is a key statistic used to measure market risk. In order to manage day-to-day risks, VAR is subject to trading limits both for our overall trading portfolio and within individual businesses. All limit excesses are communicated to management for review.

A VAR model simulates the value of a portfolio under a range of hypothetical scenarios in order to generate a distribution of potential gains and losses. The VAR represents the worst loss the portfolio is expected to experience based on historical trends with a given level of confidence. VAR depends on the volatility of the positions in the portfolio and on how strongly their risks are correlated. Within any VAR model, there are sig-

nificant and numerous assumptions that will differ from company to company. In addition, the accuracy of a VAR model depends on the availability and quality of historical data for each of the positions in the portfolio. A VAR model may require additional modeling assumptions for new products which do not have extensive historical price data, or for illiquid positions for which accurate daily prices are not consistently available. Our VAR model uses a historical simulation approach based on three years of historical data and assumes a 99 percent confidence level. Statistically, this means that losses will exceed VAR, on average, one out of 100 trading days, or two to three times each year.

A VAR model is an effective tool in estimating ranges of potential gains and losses on our trading portfolios. There are however many limitations inherent in a VAR model as it utilizes historical results over a defined time period to estimate future performance. Historical results may not always be indicative of future results and changes in market conditions or in the composition of the underlying portfolio could have a material impact on the accuracy of the VAR model. This was of particular relevance in the last part of 2007 when markets experienced a period of extreme illiquidity resulting in losses that were far outside of the normal loss forecasts by VAR models. Due to these limitations, we have historically used the VAR model as only one of the components in managing our trading risk and also use other techniques such as stress testing and desk level limits. Periods of extreme market stress influence the reliability of these techniques to various degrees. See discussion on stress testing on the following page.

On a quarterly basis, the accuracy of the VAR methodology is reviewed by backtesting (i.e., comparing actual results against expectations derived from historical data) the VAR results against the daily profit and loss. Graphic representation of the backtesting results with additional explanation of backtesting excesses are reported to the GRC. Backtesting excesses occur when trading losses exceed the VAR. Senior management reviews and evaluates the results of these tests.

The graph above shows daily trading-related revenue and VAR excluding the discrete writedowns on our super senior CDO exposure for the twelve months ended December 31, 2007. Excluding these writedowns, actual losses exceeded daily trading VAR fourteen times in the twelve months ended December 31, 2007 and losses did not exceed daily trading VAR in the twelve months ended December 31, 2006. The losses that exceeded daily trading VAR for the twelve months ended December 31, 2007. The sudden increase in market volatility during this period produced a large number of price changes that exceeded the 99th percentile of the three year history used for our VAR calculations.

Table 28 presents average, high and low daily trading VAR for the twelve months ended December 31, 2007 and 2006.

The increase in average VAR from 2006 was driven by the increased market volatility during the second half of 2007. In particular, with the dislocation in structured and credit products, many credit spreads used in the calculation of VAR increased by unprecedented amounts. In addition, many trading assets became extremely illiquid which required changes in assumptions to properly incorporate them in the VAR model as was the

case with our CDO exposure for which we have updated our model at various times during the second half of 2007. In periods of stress, the GRC members communicate daily to discuss losses, VAR limit excesses and the impact to regulatory capital. As a result of this process, the lines of business may selectively reduce risk. Where economically feasible, positions are sold or macro economic hedges are executed to reduce the exposure.

Stress Testing

Because the very nature of a VAR model suggests results can exceed our estimates, we also stress test our portfolio. Stress testing estimates the value change in our trading portfolio that may result from abnormal market movements. Various types of stress tests are run regularly against the overall trading portfolio and individual businesses. Historical scenarios simulate the impact of price changes which occurred during a set of extended historical market events. The results of these scenarios are reported daily to management. During the twelve months ended December 31, 2007, the largest daily losses among these scenarios ranged from \$9 million to \$529 million.

Table 28 Trading Activities Market Risk⁽¹⁾

	Twelve Months Ended December 31											
		2007			2006							
		VAR			VAR							
(Dollars in millions)	Average	High ⁽²⁾	Low (2)	Average	High ⁽²⁾	Low (2)						
Foreign exchange	\$ 7.2	\$ 25.3	\$ 3.8	\$ 8.2	\$ 22.9	\$ 3.1						
Interest rate	13.9	31.9	6.6	18.5	50.0	7.3						
Credit	39.5	69.9	23.4	26.8	36.7	18.4						
Real estate/mortgage	14.1	23.5	5.7	8.4	12.7	4.7						
Equities	24.6	45.8	9.6	18.8	39.6	9.9						
Commodities	7.2	10.7	3.7	6.1	9.9	3.4						
Portfolio diversification	(53.9)			(45.5)								
Total market-based trading portfolio (3)	\$ 52.6	\$ 91.5	\$ 32.9	\$ 41.3	\$ 59.8	\$ 26.0						
	-											

⁽¹⁾ Excludes our discrete writedowns on super senior CDO exposure. For more information on the CDO writedowns and the impact of the market disruption on the Corporation s results, see the CDO discussion beginning on page 28.

⁽²⁾ The high and low for the total portfolio may not equal the sum of the individual components as the highs or lows of the individual portfolios may have occurred on different trading days.

(3) For a discussion of the VAR related to the credit derivatives that economically hedge the loan portfolio, see Industry Concentrations beginning on page 54. The table above does not include credit protection purchased to manage our counterparty credit risk. During the three months ended December 31, 2007, the average VAR of this protection was \$9 million.

Hypothetical scenarios evaluate the potential impact of extreme but plausible events over periods as long as one month. These scenarios are developed to address perceived vulnerabilities in the market and in our portfolios, and are periodically updated. They are also reviewed and updated to reflect changing market conditions, such as were experienced during the second half of 2007. For example, many trading assets became extremely illiquid which required changes in assumptions to properly incorporate them in the stress models. This was the case with our CDO-related exposure for which we have updated our models at various times during the second half of 2007. Management reviews and evaluates results of these scenarios monthly. During the twelve months ended December 31, 2007, the largest daily losses among these scenarios ranged from \$459 million to \$1.5 billion. Worst-case losses, which represent the most extreme losses in our daily VAR calculation, are reported daily. Finally, desk-level stress tests are performed daily for individual businesses. These stress tests evaluate the potential adverse impact of large moves in the market risk factors to which those businesses are most sensitive.

Interest Rate Risk Management for Nontrading Activities

Interest rate risk represents the most significant market risk exposure to our nontrading exposures. Our overall goal is to manage interest rate risk so that movements in interest rates do not adversely affect core net interest income managed basis. Interest rate risk is measured as the potential volatility in our core net interest income managed basis caused by changes in market interest rates. Client facing activities, primarily lending and deposit-taking, create interest rate sensitive positions on our balance sheet. Interest rate risk from these activities, as well as the impact of changing market conditions, is managed through our ALM activities.

Simulations are used to estimate the impact on core net interest income managed basis using numerous interest rate scenarios, balance sheet trends and strategies. These simulations evaluate how the above mentioned scenarios impact core net interest income managed basis on short-term financial instruments, debt securities, loans, deposits, borrowings, and derivative instruments. In addition, these simulations

incorporate assumptions about balance sheet dynamics such as loan and deposit growth and pricing, changes in funding mix, and asset and liability repricing and maturity characteristics. These simulations do not include the impact of hedge ineffectiveness.

Management analyzes core net interest income managed basis forecasts utilizing different rate scenarios, with the base case utilizing the forward interest rates. Management frequently updates the core net interest income managed basis forecast for changing assumptions and differing outlooks based on economic trends and market conditions. Thus, we continually monitor our balance sheet position in an effort to maintain an acceptable level of exposure to interest rate changes.

We prepare forward-looking forecasts of core net interest income managed basis. These baseline forecasts take into consideration expected future business growth, ALM positioning, and the direction of interest rate movements as implied by forward interest rates. We then measure and evaluate the impact that alternative interest rate scenarios have to these static baseline forecasts in order to assess interest rate sensitivity under varied conditions. The spot and 12-month forward monthly rates used in our respective baseline forecasts at December 31, 2007 and 2006 are shown in Table 29.

Table 30 reflects the pre-tax dollar impact to forecasted core net interest income managed basis over the next twelve months from December 31, 2007 and 2006, resulting from a 100 bp gradual parallel increase, a 100 bp gradual parallel decrease, a 100 bp gradual curve flattening (increase in short-term rates or decrease in long-term rates) and a 100 bp gradual curve steepening (decrease in short-term rates or increase in long-term rates) from the forward market curve. For further discussion of core net interest income managed basis see page 19.

The sensitivity analysis in Table 30 assumes that we take no action in response to these rate shifts over the indicated years. The estimated exposure is reported on a managed basis and reflects impacts that may be realized primarily in net interest income and card income. This sensitivity analysis excludes any impact that could occur in the valuation of retained interests in the Corporation s securitizations due to changes in interest rate levels. For additional information on securitizations, see *Note 8 Securitizations* to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Table 29 Forward Rates

	Federal	Ten-Year	Federal	Ten-Year
	Funds	Swap	Funds	Swap
Spot rates	4.25%	4.67%	5.25%	5.18%
12-month forward rates	3.13	4.79	4.85	5.19

Table 30 Estimated Core Net Interest Income Managed Basis at Risk

(Dollars in millions)			Decemb	per 31
Curve Change	Short Rate	Long Rate	2007	2006
+100 Parallel shift	+100	+100	\$ (952)	\$ (557)
-100 Parallel shift	-100	-100	865	770
Flatteners				
Short end	+100		(1,127)	(687)
Long end		-100	(386)	(192)
Steepeners				
Short end	-100		1,255	971
Long end		+100	181	138

Our core net interest income managed basis, was liability sensitive at both December 31, 2007 and 2006. At December 31, 2007, our core net interest income managed basis became more liability sensitive as we positioned ourselves for greater downside risk than was reflected in the forward curve. We evaluate our balance sheet position on an ongoing basis. Since December 31, 2007, we have repositioned our balance sheet to a more modest level given changes in forward rates and we will continue to evaluate our balance sheet positioning going forward. Over a 12-month horizon, we would benefit from falling rates or a steepening of the yield curve beyond what is already implied in the forward market curve.

As part of our ALM activities, we use securities, residential mortgages, and interest rate and foreign exchange derivatives in managing interest rate sensitivity.

Securities

The securities portfolio is an integral part of our ALM position. The securities portfolio is primarily comprised of debt securities and includes mortgage-backed securities and to a lesser extent corporate, municipal and other investment grade debt securities. During 2007 and 2006, we purchased AFS debt securities of \$28.0 billion and \$40.9 billion, sold \$27.9 billion and \$55.1 billion, and had maturities and received paydowns of \$19.2 billion and \$22.4 billion. We realized \$180 million in gains and \$443 million in losses on sales of debt securities during 2007 and 2006. Additionally, during 2007, we acquired \$32.4 billion of AFS debt securities as part of the LaSalle and U.S. Trust Corporation acquisitions and continue to evaluate the appropriate holding levels.

The value of our accumulated OCI loss related to AFS debt securities improved by a pre-tax amount of \$2.0 billion during 2007, driven by a decrease in interest rates. For those securities that are in an unrealized loss position we have the intent and ability to hold these securities to recovery.

Accumulated OCI includes \$6.5 billion in after-tax gains at December 31, 2007, related to unrealized gains associated with our AFS securities portfolio, including \$1.9 billion of unrealized losses related to AFS debt securities and \$8.4 billion of unrealized gains related to AFS marketable equity securities. Total market value of the AFS debt securities was \$213.3 billion at December 31, 2007 with a weighted average duration of 4.3 years and primarily relates to our mortgage-backed securities portfolio.

Prospective changes to the accumulated OCI amounts for the AFS securities portfolio will be driven by further interest rate, credit or price fluctuations (including market value fluctuations associated with our CCB investment), the collection of cash flows including prepayment and maturity activity, and the passage of time. During the fourth quarter of 2007, shares of the Corporation s strategic investment in CCB are now accounted for as AFS marketable equity securities and are carried at a fair value of \$16.2 billion. The unrealized gain on this investment of \$8.4 billion net-of-tax is subject to currency and price fluctuation, and is recorded in accumulated OCI.

In connection with adopting SFAS 159, the Corporation reclassified approximately \$3.7 billion from AFS debt securities to trading account assets during the first quarter of 2007. There were no net unrealized gains or losses associated with these securities recorded in accumulated OCI as these securities were hedged using SFAS 133 hedge accounting. Accordingly, there was no impact on the Corporation s transition adjustment to beginning retained earnings upon adoption of SFAS 159 on January 1, 2007.

Residential Mortgage Portfolio

During 2007 and 2006, we purchased \$22.5 billion and \$42.3 billion of residential mortgages related to ALM activities, and added \$66.3 billion and \$51.9 billion of originated residential mortgages. We sold \$34.0 billion and \$11.0 billion of residential mortgages during 2007 and 2006, which included \$23.7 billion and \$9.2 billion of originated residential mortgages, resulting in gains of \$271 million and \$98 million. Additionally, we received paydowns of \$28.2 billion and \$24.7 billion during 2007 and 2006. The ending balance at December 31, 2007 was \$274.9 billion compared to \$241.2 billion at December 31, 2006.

Interest Rate and Foreign Exchange Derivative Contracts

Interest rate and foreign exchange derivative contracts are utilized in our ALM activities and serve as an efficient tool to mitigate our interest rate and foreign exchange risk. We use derivatives to hedge the variability in cash flows or changes in fair value on our balance sheet due to interest rate and foreign exchange components. For additional information on our hedging activities, see *Note 4 Derivatives* to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Our interest rate contracts are generally non-leveraged generic interest rate and foreign exchange basis swaps, options, futures, and forwards. In addition, we use foreign exchange contracts, including cross-currency interest rate swaps and foreign currency forward contracts, to mitigate the foreign exchange risk associated with foreign currency-denominated assets and liabilities, as well as certain equity investments in foreign

subsidiaries. Table 31 reflects the notional amounts, fair value, weighted average receive fixed and pay fixed rates, expected maturity, and estimated duration of our open ALM derivatives at December 31, 2007 and 2006.

Changes to the composition of our derivatives portfolio over the course of 2007 reflect actions taken for interest rate and foreign exchange rate risk management. The decisions to reposition our derivative portfolio are based upon the current assessment of economic and financial conditions including the interest rate environment, balance sheet composition and trends, and the relative mix of our cash and derivative positions. Our interest rate swap positions (including foreign exchange contracts) changed to a net receive fixed position of \$101.9 billion on December 31, 2007 compared to a net receive fixed position of \$12.3 billion on December 31, 2006. Changes in the notional levels of our interest rate swap position were driven by the net termination of \$88.9 billion in pay fixed swaps, the net termination of \$9.5 billion in U.S. dollar denominated receive fixed swaps, and the addition of \$10.2 billion at December 31, 2007 compared to \$31.9 billion at December 31, 2006. The notional amount of our foreign exchange basis swaps increased \$22.6 billion to \$54.5 billion at December 31, 2007 compared to \$243.3 billion at December 31, 2006. The notional amount of our option position decreased \$103.2 billion to \$140.1 billion at December 31, 2007 compared to \$243.3 billion at December 31, 2006. The decrease in the notional amount of options was due to the net terminations and expirations of \$85.0 billion in caps and floors and terminations of \$18.2 billion of swaptions.

Table 31 Asset and Liability Management Interest Rate and Foreign Exchange Contracts

ICollars in millions, average estimated duration in years) Value Total 2009 2010 2011 2012 The estimated Duration Receive fixed interest rate wage i(i, 2) \$ 992 Image fixed \$ 992 Image fixed \$ 81,965 \$ 4,36% 3.91% 3.252 \$ 1,630 \$ 2,508 \$ 20,798 3.70 Notional amount Weighted average fixed rate \$ 81,965 \$ 4,36% 4.03% 3.91% 4.35% 4.60% \$ 2,508 \$ 20,798 5.37% Notional amount Weighted average fixed rate \$ 0,614 \$ 11,340 \$ 2,537 \$ 4,463 \$ 5,839 \$ 4,244 \$ 8,695 \$ 28,703 Collar amount Option products fo trate \$ 6,164 \$ 10,014 130,000 10,000 76 38 28,703 \$ 28,703 \$ 28,703 \$ 28,703 \$ 28,703 \$ 28,703 \$ 28,703 \$ 28,703 \$ 28,703 \$ 28,703 \$ 28,703 \$ 28,703 \$ 28,703 \$ 28,703 \$ 28,703 \$ 28,703 \$ 28,703 \$ 28,703	December 31, 2007				E	Expected Mat	urity			
years Precise Krows rate waps (1, 2) Notional amount Weighted average fixed rate Pay fixed interest rate waps (2, 3) Value \$ 992 Total 3,965 2008 \$ 4,869 2009 \$ 4,8690 2010 \$ 1,003 2011 201 2012 2010 2018 \$ 2,008 Thereafter \$ 2,0078 Duration Accession average fixed rate Pay fixed interest rate waps (0) 4,34% 4,03% 3,91% 4,33% 4,50% 4,88% 5,34% Pay fixed interest rate waps (0, 3,4) 5,04%	average estimated									
rate swaps (1.2) \$ 992 \$ 44,960 \$ 44,900 \$ 1,600 \$ 2,500 \$ 2,0078 Notional amount rate rate rate rate swaps (0.4) 4,34% \$ 44,00% 3,91% 4,35% 4,50% \$ 2,0078 5,34% Pay fixed interest rate swaps (0.4) 11,040 \$ 1,03% \$ 2,507 \$ 1,000 <td< td=""><td>years)</td><td>-</td><td>Total</td><td>2008</td><td>3 200</td><td>9 2010</td><td>2011</td><td>2012</td><td>Thereafter</td><td>-</td></td<>	years)	-	Total	2008	3 200	9 2010	2011	2012	Thereafter	-
Weighted average fixed rate Pay fixed interest rate swaps (0) 4.34% 4.03% 3.91% 4.35% 4.50% 4.88% 5.34% Pay fixed interest rate swaps (0) \$ 11,340 \$ \$ \$ \$ 10,340 \$ 5.37 Notional amount Veighted average fixed rate 5.04% % % \$ \$ 10,340 \$ \$ 5.37 Notional amount Option products (5) Notional amount (7) Futures and forward rate contracts \$ <td< td=""><td>rate swaps (1, 2)</td><td>\$ 992</td><td>\$ 81 965</td><td>\$ 4.860</td><td>\$ 48 90</td><td>8 \$ 3.252</td><td>\$ 1 630</td><td>\$ 2 508</td><td>\$ 20 798</td><td>3.70</td></td<>	rate swaps (1, 2)	\$ 992	\$ 81 965	\$ 4.860	\$ 48 90	8 \$ 3.252	\$ 1 630	\$ 2 508	\$ 20 798	3.70
Pay fixed interest rate wape (1) (429) (429) (429) (429) (429) (429) (429) (429) (429) (429) (429) (5) (7) <td></td> <td></td> <td>φ 01,000</td> <td>φ 4,000</td> <td>φ 40,00</td> <td>φ 0,202</td> <td>φ 1,000</td> <td>φ 2,000</td> <td>φ 20,700</td> <td></td>			φ 01,000	φ 4,000	φ 40,00	φ 0,202	φ 1,000	φ 2,000	φ 20,700	
swage (1) (429)			4.34%	4.03	3.9	1% 4.35	% 4.50	% 4.88%	5.34%	
Notional amount Weighted average fixed rate Pareign exchange basis swaps (2, 3-4) \$ 11,340 \$ 1,400 \$ 1,320 \$ 1,300 \$ 1,300 \$ 1,300 \$ 1,300 \$ 1,300 \$ 1,300 \$ 1,300 \$ 1,300 <t< td=""><td></td><td>(429)</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>5 37</td></t<>		(429)								5 37
Weighted average fixed rate 5.04% % % % % 5.45% 5.00% Foreign exchange basis swaps (2.3.4) 6,164 5.04% % % % 5.45% 5.00% Notional amount Option products (9) 140,114 130,000 10,000 76 38 Foreign exchange contracts (2.4.6) 140,114 130,000 10,000 76 38 Notional amount Foreign exchange contracts (2.4.6) 140,114 130,000 10,000 76 38 Notional amount (7) Futures and forward rate contracts (499) 31,054 1,438 2,047 4,171 1,235 3,150 19,013 Notional amount (7) Futures and forward rate contracts 56,070 Expected Maturity 4.107 2008 2009 2010 2011 Thereafter Average Estimated Motional amount Weighted average fixed rate Fair Value Foreign exchange soups (1.2) 91,502 \$ 2,795 \$ 7,844 \$ 48,900 \$ 3,252 \$ 1,630 \$ 27,081 4.42 Notional amount Weighted average fixed rate	•	(423)	\$ 11,340	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$ 1,000	\$ 10,340	5.57
Foreign exchange basis symaps (2, 3, 4) 6,164 § 5,4,51 § 2,537 § 4,463 § 5,839 § 4,294 § 8,695 § 28,703 Option products (5) Notional amount Foreign exchange contracts (2, 4, 6) 140,114 130,000 10,000 76 38 Foreign exchange contracts (2, 4, 6) (499) 1,403 2,047 4,171 1,235 3,150 19,013 Putures and forward rate contracts (2, 4, 6) (499) 31,054 1,438 2,047 4,171 1,235 3,150 19,013 Notional amount (7) 752 752 752 19,013 19,013 19,013 December 31, 2006 (Doltars in millions, average estimated duration in years) Receive fixed interest rate swaps (1, 2) Fair Value Total 207 208 2009 2010 2011 Thereafter Duration Receive fixed rate waps (1, 2) Yalue Total 207 208 209 210 2011 Thereafter Duration Pay fixed interest rate swaps (1, 2) 91,502 \$ 2,795 \$ 7,844 4,8,900 3,252 \$ 1,630 \$ 3,467			. ,			-		. ,		
swaps (2.3, 4) 6,164 Notional amount Option products (5) 140,114 130,000 10,000 76 38 Foreign exchange contracts (2.4, 6) 140,114 130,000 10,000 76 38 Notional amount Foreign exchange contracts (2.4, 6) 140,114 130,000 10,000 76 38 Notional amount (7) 31,054 1,438 2,047 4,171 1,235 3,150 19,013 Notional amount (7) 752 752 752 19,013 4,477 1,205 2010 2011 Thereafter December 31, 2006 (Doltars in millions, average estimated duration in years) Yalue Total 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Thereafter Notional amount (7) Yalue Total 2007 2008 2009 \$2100 \$2111 Thereafter Duration Receive fixed interest rate swaps (1.2) Yalue Yalue \$15,00 \$27,081 \$27,081 \$27,081 \$233 Notional amount Weighted average fixed rate 4,98% \$15			5.04%		%	%	%	% 5.45%	5.00%	b
Notional amount (155) \$ 54,51 \$ 2,537 \$ 4,463 \$ 5,839 \$ 4,294 \$ 8,695 \$ 28,703 Notional amount Foreign exchange contracts (2,4,9) 140,114 130,000 10,000 76 38 Notional amount (7) Notional amount (7) Notional amount (7) 31,054 1,438 2,047 4,171 1,235 3,150 19,013 Notional amount (7) Notional amount (7) 752 752 752 1,206 1,205 3,150 19,013 December 31, 2006 (Doltars in millions, average estimated duration in years) Receive fixed interest rate swaps (1, 2) 752 752 2008 2009 2010 2011 Thereafter Duration Receive fixed interest rate swaps (1, 2) Yalue Total 2007 2008 2019 2010 2011 Thereafter Duration Yalue Total 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Thereafter Duration Receive fixed interest rate swaps (1, 2) \$ 91,502 \$ 2,795 \$ 7,844 \$ 48,900 \$ 3,252 \$ 1,630 \$ 27,081 Weighted average fixed rate	Foreign exchange basis	6 16/								
Option products (6) Notional amount Contracts (2, 4, 6) (140, 114 130,000 10,000 76 38 Notional amount Notional amount (7) (49) 31,054 1,438 2,047 4,171 1,235 3,150 19,013 Putures and forward rate contracts (2, 4, 6) (3) 752 752 752 19,013 19,013 Notional amount (7) 752 752 752 4,171 1,235 3,150 19,013 December 31, 2006 (Dolars in millions, average estimated duration in years) 762 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Thereafter Duration Receive fixed interest rate swaps (1, -2) \$ 91,502 \$ 2,795 \$ 7,844 \$48,900 \$ 3,252 \$ 1,630 \$ 27,081 Notional amount Weighted average fixed rate 4,90% 4,80% \$ 4,50% \$ 5,14% \$ 2,907 \$ 1,80% \$ 5,25% \$ 1,42 Notional amount Weighted average fixed rate 4,90% 5,12% \$ 1,19% \$ 2,500 \$ 4,4000 \$ 3,962 \$ 17,125 Notional amount foreign excharge contracts (5) 1,992<		0,104	\$ 54.531	\$ 2.537	\$ 4.46	3 \$ 5.839	\$ 4.294	\$ 8.695	\$ 28.703	
Foreign exchange contracts (2, 4, 6) (499) Notional amount (7) 31,054 1,438 2,047 4,171 1,235 3,150 19,013 Futures and forward rate contracts (3) 752 752 1 <		(155)	•••,•••	+ _,	• .,	• • •,•••	• .,=• .	<i>+</i> - , ---	÷ _0,: ••	
contracts (2.4.6) (499) Notional amount (7) 31,054 1,438 2,047 4,171 1,235 3,150 19,013 Futures and loward rate contracts (3) 752 754 754 752 751 754 752 754 754 754 753 753 754 754 753 753 754 754 753 754 754 753 753 753 753 753 753 753 753 753 7533 753 7533			140,114	130,000) 10,00	0 76	i		38	
Notional amount (?) Futures and forward rate contracts 31,054 1,438 2,047 4,171 1,235 3,150 19,013 Futures and forward rate contracts (3) 752 754 753 753		(400)								
Futures and forward rate contracts (3) 752 752 Notional amount (7) 6,070 56,070 Expected Maturity December 31, 2006 (Dollars in millions, average estimated duration in years) Receive fixed interest rate swaps (1, 2) Fair Expected Maturity Value Total 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Thereafter Receive fixed interest rate swaps (1, 2) \$ (748) Total 2007 2008 209 2010 2011 Thereafter Duration Receive fixed interest rate swaps (1, 2) \$ (748) \$ 1,00,217 \$ 2,7,981 \$ 27,081 \$ 2,7,081 \$ 2,93 Notional amount \$ 91,502 \$ 2,500 \$ 44,000 \$ 3,252 \$ 1,630 \$ 2,7,081 \$ 2,93 Notional amount \$ 91,502 \$ 2,7,981 \$ 4,89% \$ 3,252 \$ 1,630 \$ 2,7,081 \$ 2,93 Notional amount \$ 91,502 \$ 1,500 \$ 2,500 \$ 44,000 \$ 5,63% \$ 5,14% \$ 2,93 Notional amount \$ 100,217 \$ 1,5000 \$ 2,500 \$ 44,000 \$ 5,43% \$ 5,06% \$ 2,93 Notional amount		(499)	31 054	1 /139	2 0/	7 / 171	1 225	3 150	10 013	
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c } \mbox{contracts} & (3) \\ \mbox{Notional amount} (7) \\ \mbox{Notional amount} & 752 \\ \mbox{Solutional amount} & 752 \\ \mbox{Contracts} & 752 \\ \mbox{Contracts} & 752 \\ \mbox{Solutional amount} & 752 \\ \mbox{Value} & 752 \\ \mbox{Value} & 752 \\ \mbox{Solutional amount} & 741 \\ \mbox{Value} & 704 \\ \mbox{Value} & 704 \\ \mbox{Solutional amount} & $91,502 \\ \mbox{Value} & 705 \\ \mbox{Solutional amount} & $91,502 \\ \mbox{Value} & 705 \\ \mbox{Solutional amount} & $91,502 \\ \mbox{Value} & $2,795 \\ \mbox{Solutional amount} & $91,502 \\ \mbox{Value} & $2,795 \\ \mbox{Solutional amount} & $91,502 \\ \mbox{Value} & $2,795 \\ \mbox{Solutional amount} & $91,502 \\ \mbox{Value} & $2,795 \\ \mbox{Solutional amount} & $91,002 \\ \mbox{Solutional amount} & $91,002 \\ \mbox{Solutional amount} & $1,000 \\ \mbox{Solutional amount} & $$			51,054	1,430	2,04	4,171	1,255	5,150	15,015	
Net ALM contracts \$ 6,070 December 31, 2006 (Dollars in millions, average estimated duration in years) Receive fixed interest rate swaps (1.2) Fair Expected Maturity Value Total 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Thereafter Average Estimated duration in years) Receive fixed interest rate swaps (1.2) Value Total 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Thereafter Duration Pay fixed interest rate \$ (748) \$ 2,795 \$ 7,844 \$ 48,900 \$ 3,252 \$ 1,630 \$ 27,081 4.420 Pay fixed interest rate swaps (1) \$ 91,502 \$ 2,709 \$ 1,800 \$ 4,800 \$ 4,800 \$ 4,500 \$ 5,1370 \$ 27,081 Notional amount Weighted average fixed rate \$ 4,900 \$ 2,500 \$ 44,000 \$ 5,430 \$ 5,4367 \$ 2,503 Notional amount Foreign exchange basis swaps (2,3,4) \$ 1,902 \$ 2,500 \$ 3,101 \$ 4,860 \$ 5,351 \$ 3,962 \$ 17,125 Notional amount Foreign exchange contracts (2,4,6) \$ 1,902 \$ 2,0,000 \$ 3,176 \$ 1,901		(3)								
December 31, 2006 (Dollars in millions, average estimated duration in years) Fair Value Expected Maturity Receive fixed interest rate swaps ^(1, 2) Notional amount Weighted average fixed rate \$ (748) 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Thereafter Average Estimated Duration Pacific amount Weighted average fixed rate \$ 91,502 \$ 2,795 \$ 7,844 \$ 48,900 \$ 3,252 \$ 1,630 \$ 27,081 4.42 Pay fixed interest rate swaps ⁽¹⁾ \$ 91,502 \$ 2,795 \$ 7,844 \$ 48,900 \$ 3,252 \$ 1,630 \$ 27,081 4.42 Notional amount Weighted average fixed rate 4.90% 4.80% 4.41% 4.90% 4.35% 4.50% 5.14% Foreign exchange basis swaps (2, 3, 4) \$ 100,217 \$ 15,000 \$ 2,500 \$ 44,000 \$ 250 \$ 38,467 Notional amount Corbin products ⁽⁶⁾ \$ 1,992 \$ 100,217 \$ 15,000 \$ 2,500 \$ 44,000 \$ 5,43% 5.06% Notional amount Corbin products ⁽⁶⁾ \$ 1,992 \$ 31,916 \$ 174 \$ 2,292 \$ 3,012 \$ 5,351 \$ 3,962 \$ 17,125			752	752	2					
(Dollars in millions, average estimated duration in years) registering fixed interest rate swaps (1, 2) Fair Value Total 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Thereafter Duration Receive fixed interest rate swaps (1, 2) \$ (748) \$ (748) \$ 2,795 \$ 7,844 \$ 48,900 \$ 3,252 \$ 1,630 \$ 27,081 4.42 Notional amount \$ 91,502 \$ 2,795 \$ 7,844 \$ 48,900 \$ 3,252 \$ 1,630 \$ 27,081 4.42 National amount \$ 91,502 \$ 2,795 \$ 7,844 \$ 48,900 \$ 4,35% 4.50% 5.14% 4.42 Pay fixed interest rate swaps (1) 261 261 2.93 \$ 100,217 \$ 15,000 \$ 2,500 \$ 44,000 \$ 250 \$ 38,467 2.93 Notional amount \$ 100,217 \$ 15,000 \$ 2,500 \$ 44,000 \$ 5,43% 5.06% 2.93 3.962 \$ 17,125 2.93 Notional amount 243,280 200,000 43,176 70 34 3.962 \$ 17,125 3.962 \$ 17,125 3.962 \$ 17,125 3.962 \$ 17,125 3.962 \$ 17,125 <td< td=""><td>Net ALM contracts</td><td>\$ 6,070</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></td<>	Net ALM contracts	\$ 6,070								
average estimated duration in years) Receive fixed interest rate swaps $(1, 2)$ Fair ValueTotal20072008200920102011ThereafterDurationReceive fixed interest rate swaps $(1, 2)$ \$ (748)\$ 91,502\$ 2,795\$ 7,844\$ 48,900\$ 3,252\$ 1,630\$ 27,0814.422Notional amount Weighted average fixed rate\$ 91,502\$ 2,795\$ 7,844\$ 48,900\$ 3,252\$ 1,630\$ 27,0814.422Notional amount Weighted average fixed rate\$ 91,502\$ 2,795\$ 7,844\$ 4,80%\$ 3,252\$ 1,630\$ 27,0814.422Notional amount Weighted average fixed rate\$ 91,0217\$ 15,000\$ 2,500\$ 44,000\$ 250\$ 38,4672.93Notional amount Weighted average fixed rate\$ 100,217\$ 15,000\$ 2,500\$ 44,000\$ 25,051\$ 38,4672.93Notional amount Weighted average fixed rate\$ 31,916\$ 174\$ 2,292\$ 3,012\$ 5,351\$ 3,962\$ 17,125Notional amount Option products (6) S 1771,992S 1,1681,9013,8501,10412,629Notional amount Foreign exchange contracts (2,4,6) Notional amount (7) Futures and forward rate contracts (2,4,6)S 4,8008,480 $8,480$ $8,480$ Net ALM contracts Notional amount (7) $8,480$ $8,480$ $8,480$ $8,480$ $8,480$ $8,480$	December 31, 2006					Expected Ma	turity			
duration in years) Receive fixed interest rate swaps (1, 2) Value Total 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Thereafter Duration Notional amount Weighted average fixed rate \$ (748) \$ 2,795 \$ 7,844 \$ 48,900 \$ 3,252 \$ 1,630 \$ 27,081 4.42 Pay fixed interest rate swaps (1) 261 \$ 4,90% 4.80% 4.41% 4.90% 4.35% 4.50% 5.14% Pay fixed interest rate swaps (1) 261 \$ 100,217 \$ 15,000 \$ 2,500 \$ 44,000 \$ 250 \$ 38,467 Notional amount Weighted average fixed rate 4.98% 5.12% 5.11% 4.86% % 5.43% 5.06% Foreign exchange basis swaps (2, 3, 4) 1,992 \$ 174 \$ 2,292 \$ 3,012 \$ 5,351 \$ 3,962 \$ 17,125 Option products (5) 317 \$ 243,280 200,000 43,176 70 34 Foreign exchange contracts (2, 4, 6) (319) 20,319 (753) 1,588 1,901 3,850 1,104 12,629 Notional amount (7) 20,319 (753) 1,588 1,901 3,850 1,104<										
Receive fixed interest rate swaps (1, 2) \$ (748) 4.42 Notional amount Weighted average fixed rate \$ 91,502 \$ 2,795 \$ 7,844 \$ 48,900 \$ 3,252 \$ 1,630 \$ 27,081 Pay fixed interest rate swaps (1) 261 4.90% 4.80% 4.41% 4.90% 4.35% 4.50% 5.14% Notional amount 261 5.10,0217 \$ 15,000 \$ 2,500 \$ 44,000 \$ \$ 250 \$ 38,467 Weighted average fixed rate 4.98% 5.12% 5.11% 4.86% % 5.43% 5.06% Foreign exchange basis swaps (2,3,4) 1,992 1,992 Notional amount \$ 31,916 \$ 174 \$ 2,292 \$ 3,012 \$ 5,351 \$ 3,962 \$ 17,125 Option products (5) 317 243,280 200,000 43,176 70 34 Foreign exchange contracts (2,4,6) (319) 20,319 (753) 1,588 1,901 3,850 1,104 12,629 Futures and forward rate contracts (2,4,6) 8,480 8,480 8,480 8,480 8,480 Notional amount (7) 8,480 8,480 8,480 8,480 <	0		Tatal	000		0 0000	0010	0011	These after	
rate swaps (1, 2) \$ (748) 4.42 Notional amount \$ 91,502 \$ 2,795 \$ 7,844 \$ 48,900 \$ 3,252 \$ 1,630 \$ 27,081 Weighted average fixed rate 4.90% 4.80% 4.41% 4.90% 4.35% 4.50% 5.14% Pay fixed interest rate 4.90% 4.80% 4.41% 4.90% 4.35% 4.50% 5.14% Pay fixed interest rate 4.90% 4.80% 4.41% 4.90% 4.35% 4.50% 5.14% Weighted average fixed 100,217 \$ 15,000 \$ 2,500 \$ 44,000 \$ 250 \$ 38,467 Weighted average fixed 1,992 5.11% 4.86% % 5.43% 5.06% Foreign exchange basis 5.12% 5.11% 4.86% % 5.43% 5.06% Option products (5) 317 1,992 \$ 31,916 \$ 174 \$ 2,292 \$ 3,012 \$ 5,351 \$ 3,962 \$ 17,125 Notional amount 20,319 (753) 1,588 1,901 3,850 1,104 12,629 Futures and forward rate (46) 8,480 8,480 8,480 </td <td>,</td> <td>value</td> <td>Total</td> <td>2007</td> <td>200</td> <td>8 2005</td> <td>2010</td> <td>2011</td> <td>Inereatter</td> <td>Duration</td>	,	value	Total	2007	200	8 2005	2010	2011	Inereatter	Duration
Notional amount \$ 91,502 \$ 2,795 \$ 7,844 \$ 48,900 \$ 3,252 \$ 1,630 \$ 27,081 Weighted average fixed 4.90% 4.80% 4.41% 4.90% 4.35% 4.50% 5.14% Pay fixed interest rate swaps (1) 261 2.93 2.93 3.8467 2.93 Notional amount \$ 100,217 \$ 15,000 \$ 2,500 \$ 44,000 \$ 250 \$ 38,467 Weighted average fixed 4.98% 5.12% 5.11% 4.86% % 5.43% 5.06% Foreign exchange basis 4.98% 5.12% 5.11% 4.86% % 5.43% 5.06% Swaps (2, 3, 4) 1,992 Notional amount \$ 31,916 \$ 174 \$ 2,229 \$ 3,012 \$ 5,351 \$ 3,962 \$ 17,125 Option products (5) 317 243,280 200,000 43,176 70 34 Foreign exchange (319) (753) 1,588 1,901 3,850 1,104 12,629 Notional amount (7) 20,319 (753) 1,588 1,901 3,850 1,104 12,629 Futures an		\$ (748)								4.42
rate 4.90% 4.80% 4.41% 4.90% 4.35% 4.50% 5.14% Pay fixed interest rate swaps (1) 261 261 2.93 Notional amount \$ 100,217 \$ 15,000 \$ 2,500 \$ 44,000 \$ \$ \$ 250 \$ 38,467 Weighted average fixed rate 4.98% 5.12% 5.11% 4.86% % 5.43% 5.06% Foreign exchange basis swaps (2, 3, 4) 1,992 5.11% 4.86% % 5.43% 5.06% Notional amount \$ 31,916 \$ 174 \$ 2,292 \$ 3,012 \$ 5,351 \$ 3,962 \$ 17,125 Option products (5) 317 243,280 200,000 43,176 70 34 Foreign exchange contracts (2, 4, 6) (319)		,	\$ 91,502	\$ 2,795	5 \$ 7,84	4 \$ 48,900	\$ 3,252	\$ 1,630	\$ 27,081	
Pay fixed interest rate swaps (1) 261 261 2.93 Notional amount \$ 100,217 \$ 15,000 \$ 2,500 \$ 44,000 \$ 250 \$ 38,467 Weighted average fixed rate 4.98% 5.12% 5.11% 4.86% % 5.43% 5.06% Foreign exchange basis swaps (2, 3, 4) 1,992 5.11% 4.86% % 5.43% 5.06% Notional amount \$ 31,916 \$ 174 \$ 2,292 \$ 3,012 \$ 5,351 \$ 3,962 \$ 17,125 Notional amount \$ 31,916 \$ 174 \$ 2,292 \$ 3,012 \$ 5,351 \$ 3,962 \$ 17,125 Notional amount \$ 243,280 200,000 43,176 70 34 Foreign exchange contracts (2, 4, 6) (319)	•									
swaps (1) 261 2.93 Notional amount \$ 100,217 \$ 15,000 \$ 2,500 \$ 44,000 \$ 2500 \$ 38,467 Weighted average fixed 4.98% 5.12% 5.11% 4.86% % 5.43% 5.06% Foreign exchange basis 1,992 1.992 1.992 1.992 1.7,125 Notional amount \$ 31,916 \$ 174 \$ 2,292 \$ 3,012 \$ 5,351 \$ 3,962 \$ 17,125 Option products (5) 317 1 1.992 1.7,125 34 1.91 3.850 1,104 12,629 Notional amount 20,319 (753) 1,588 1,901 3,850 1,104 12,629 Futures and forward rate 4.880 8,480 8,480 1.901 3,850 1,104 12,629 Notional amount (7) 8,480 8,480 8,480 1.901 3,850 1,104 12,629 Notional amount (7) 8,480 8,480 8,480 1.901 1.901 1.901 1.901 Notional amount (7) 8,480 8,480 8,480 1.901 1.901			4.90%	4.80)% 4.4	1% 4.90	% 4.35	% 4.50%	5.14%	
Notional amount \$ 100,217 \$ 15,000 \$ 2,500 \$ 44,000 \$ 250 \$ 38,467 Weighted average fixed 4.98% 5.12% 5.11% 4.86% % 5.43% 5.06% Foreign exchange basis swaps (2, 3, 4) 1,992 1,992 174 \$ 2,292 \$ 3,012 \$ 5,351 \$ 3,962 \$ 17,125 Option products (5) 317 317 243,280 200,000 43,176 70 34 Foreign exchange 203,19 (753) 1,588 1,901 3,850 1,104 12,629 Notional amount (7) 20,319 (753) 1,588 1,901 3,850 1,104 12,629 Futures and forward rate contracts (46) 8,480 8,480 8,480 1,457 Net ALM contracts \$ 1,457 5,480 8,480 5,480 5,480 5,595 1,104 12,629		261								2 93
rate 4.98% 5.12% 5.11% 4.86% % 5.43% 5.06% Foreign exchange basis swaps (2, 3, 4) 1,992 1,992 17,125 Notional amount \$ 31,916 \$ 174 \$ 2,292 \$ 3,012 \$ 5,351 \$ 3,962 \$ 17,125 Option products (5) 317 Notional amount 243,280 200,000 43,176 70 Foreign exchange 70 contracts (2, 4, 6) (319) Notional amount (7) 20,319 (753) Futures and forward rate	•	201	\$ 100,217	\$ 15,000	\$ 2,50	0 \$ 44,000	\$	\$ 250	\$ 38,467	2.00
Foreign exchange basis 1,992 Notional amount \$ 31,916 \$ 174 \$ 2,292 \$ 3,012 \$ 5,351 \$ 3,962 \$ 17,125 Option products (5) 317 317 70 34 Notional amount 243,280 200,000 43,176 70 34 Foreign exchange 20319 (753) 1,588 1,901 3,850 1,104 12,629 Futures and forward rate 20,319 (753) 1,588 1,901 3,850 1,104 12,629 Futures and forward rate 20,319 (753) 1,588 1,901 3,850 1,104 12,629 Notional amount (7) 8,480 8,480 8,480 1,901	Weighted average fixed									
swaps (2, 3, 4) 1,992 Notional amount \$ 31,916 \$ 174 \$ 2,292 \$ 3,012 \$ 5,351 \$ 3,962 \$ 17,125 Option products (5) 317 Notional amount 243,280 200,000 43,176 70 34 Foreign exchange 70 contracts (2, 4, 6) (319) Notional amount (7) 20,319 (753) 1,588 1,901 3,850 1,104 12,629 Futures and forward rate contracts contracts (46) Notional amount (7) 8,480 8,480 Net ALM contracts \$ 1,457			4.98%	5.12	2% 5.1	1% 4.86	1%	% 5.43%	5.06%	b
Notional amount \$ 31,916 \$ 174 \$ 2,292 \$ 3,012 \$ 5,351 \$ 3,962 \$ 17,125 Option products ⁽⁵⁾ 317		1 002								
Option products (5) 317 Notional amount 243,280 200,000 43,176 70 34 Foreign exchange contracts (2, 4, 6) (319) 70 34 Notional amount (7) 20,319 (753) 1,588 1,901 3,850 1,104 12,629 Futures and forward rate contracts (46) 44,400<		1,992	\$ 31 916	\$ 174	\$ 2.29	2 \$ 3.012	\$ 5 351	\$ 3 962	\$ 17 125	
Notional amount 243,280 200,000 43,176 70 34 Foreign exchange contracts (2, 4, 6) (319) 70 34 Notional amount (7) 20,319 (753) 1,588 1,901 3,850 1,104 12,629 Futures and forward rate contracts (46) 44,107 44,107 14,102 14,102 Notional amount (7) 8,480 8,480 1,901 1,901 1,901 1,901 Net ALM contracts \$ 1,457 \$ 1,457 1,457 1,457 1,457		317	φ 01,010	ψ 17	φ 2,20	L	φ 0,001	φ 0,00L	φ 17,120	
contracts (2, 4, 6) (319) Notional amount (7) 20,319 (753) 1,588 1,901 3,850 1,104 12,629 Futures and forward rate contracts (46) Notional amount (7) 8,480 8,480 Net ALM contracts \$ 1,457			243,280	200,000	43,17	6	70		34	
Notional amount (7) 20,319 (753) 1,588 1,901 3,850 1,104 12,629 Futures and forward rate contracts (46)		(
Futures and forward rate contracts (46) Notional amount (7) 8,480 Net ALM contracts \$ 1,457		(319)		/750) 4 5 6	0 1 004	0.050	1 104	10 600	
contracts (46) Notional amount (7) 8,480 Net ALM contracts \$ 1,457			20,319	(753	<i>i,58</i>	o 1,901	3,850	1,104	12,629	
Notional amount (7) 8,480 8,480 Net ALM contracts \$ 1,457		(46)								
Net ALM contracts \$ 1,457		()		8,480)					

(1) At December 31, 2007, \$45.0 billion of the receive fixed interest rate swap notional represented forward starting swaps that will not be effective until their respective contractual start dates. There were no forward starting pay fixed swap positions at December 31, 2007. At December 31, 2006, \$4.2 billion of the receive fixed and \$52.5 billion of the pay fixed swap notional represented forward starting swaps that will not be effective until their respective contractual start dates.

- ⁽²⁾ Does not include basis adjustments on fixed rate debt issued by the Corporation and hedged under fair value hedge relationships pursuant to SFAS 133 that substantially offset the fair values of these derivatives.
- ⁽³⁾ Foreign exchange basis swaps consist of cross-currency variable interest rate swaps used separately or in conjunction with receive fixed interest rate swaps.
- ⁽⁴⁾ Does not include foreign currency translation adjustments on certain foreign debt issued by the Corporation which substantially offset the fair values of these derivatives.
- (5) Option products of \$140.1 billion at December 31, 2007 are comprised of \$120.1 billion in purchased caps and \$20.0 billion in sold floors. At December 31, 2006, option products included \$225.1 billion in caps and \$18.2 billion in swaptions.
- (6) Foreign exchange contracts include foreign-denominated and cross-currency receive fixed interest rate swaps as well as foreign currency forward rate contracts. Total notional was comprised of \$31.3 billion in foreign-denominated and cross-currency receive fixed swaps and \$211 million in foreign currency forward rate contracts at December 31, 2007 and \$21.0 billion in foreign-denominated and cross-currency receive fixed swaps and \$697 million in foreign currency forward rate contracts at December 31, 2006.
- ⁽⁷⁾ Reflects the net of long and short positions.

The table above includes derivatives utilized in our ALM activities, including those designated as SFAS 133 accounting hedges and economic hedges. The fair value of net ALM contracts increased \$4.6 billion from a gain of \$1.5 billion at December 31, 2006 to a gain of \$6.1 billion at December 31, 2007. The increase was primarily attributable to gains from changes in the value of foreign exchange basis swaps of \$4.2 billion, and U.S. dollar denominated receive fixed interest rate swaps of \$1.7 billion. These gains were partially offset by losses from changes in the value of pay fixed interest rate swaps of \$690 million, option products of \$472 million, and foreign exchange contracts of \$180 million. The increase in the value of foreign exchange basis swaps was due to the strengthening of most foreign currencies against the U.S. dollar during the twelve months ended December 31, 2007. The increase in the value of U.S. dollar denominated receive fixed interest rate swaps and the decrease in the value of the pay fixed interest rate swaps were due to decreases in interest rates during 2007. The decrease in the value of the option portfolio

was primarily attributable to decreases in interest rates during 2007, net terminations and expirations of caps and floors, and terminations of swaptions. The decrease in the value of foreign exchange contracts was largely due to the increase in foreign interest rates during 2007.

The Corporation uses interest rate derivative instruments to hedge the variability in the cash flows of its assets and liabilities, and other forecasted transactions (cash flow hedges). From time to time, the Corporation also utilizes equity-indexed derivatives accounted for as SFAS 133 cash flow hedges to minimize exposure to price fluctuations on the forecasted purchase or sale of certain equity investments. The net losses on both open and terminated derivative instruments recorded in accumulated OCI, net-of-tax, was \$4.4 billion at December 31, 2007. These net losses are expected to be reclassified into earnings in the same period when the hedged cash flows affect earnings and will decrease income or increase expense on the respective hedged cash flows. Assuming no change in open cash flow derivative hedge positions and no changes to

prices or interest rates beyond what is already implied in forward yield curves at December 31, 2007, the pre-tax net losses are expected to be reclassified into earnings as follows: \$1.3 billion, or 19 percent within the next year, 68 percent within five years, and 89 percent within 10 years, with the remaining 11 percent thereafter. For more information on derivatives designated as cash flow hedges, see *Note 4 Derivatives* to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The amounts included in accumulated OCI for terminated derivative contracts were losses of \$3.8 billion and \$3.2 billion, net-of-tax, at December 31, 2007 and 2006. Losses on these terminated derivative contracts are reclassified into earnings in the same period or periods during which the hedged forecasted transaction affects earnings.

Mortgage Banking Risk Management

IRLCs and the related residential first mortgage loans held-for-sale are subject to interest rate risk between the date of the IRLC and the date the loans are sold to the secondary market. To hedge interest rate risk, we utilize forward loan sale commitments and other derivative instruments including purchased options. These instruments are used as economic hedges of IRLCs and residential first mortgage loans held-for-sale. At December 31, 2007, the notional amount of derivatives economically hedging the IRLCs and residential first mortgage loans held-for-sale was \$18.6 billion.

The Corporation adopted SFAS 159 as of January 1, 2007 and elected to account for certain originated mortgage loans held-for-sale at fair value. Subsequent to the adoption, mortgage loan origination costs are recognized in noninterest expense when incurred. Previously, mortgage loan origination costs would have been capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the loans and recognized as a reduction of mortgage banking income upon the sale of such loans. At December 31, 2007, residential mortgage loans held-for-sale in connection with mortgage banking activities for which the fair value option was elected had an aggregate fair value of \$9.56 billion and an aggregate outstanding principal balance of \$9.82 billion. Net gains resulting from changes in fair value of loans held-for-sale that we originated, including realized gains and losses on sale of \$333 million, were recorded in mortgage banking income during 2007. The adoption of SFAS 159 resulted in an increase of \$256 million in mortgage banking income during 2007.

We manage changes in the value of MSRs by entering into derivative financial instruments. MSRs are a nonfinancial asset created when the underlying mortgage loan is sold to investors and we retain the right to service the loan. We use certain derivatives such as options and interest rate swaps as economic hedges of MSRs. At December 31, 2007, the amount of MSRs identified as being hedged by derivatives was approximately \$3.1 billion. The notional amount of the derivative contracts designated as economic hedges of MSRs at December 31, 2007 was \$69.0 billion. For additional information on MSRs see *Note 21 Mortgage Servicing Rights* to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Operational Risk Management

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems, including system conversions and integration, and external events. Successful operational risk management is particularly important to diversified financial services companies because of the nature, volume and complexity of the financial services business.

We approach operational risk from two perspectives: corporate-wide and line of business-specific. The Compliance and Operational Risk

Committee provides oversight of significant corporate-wide operational and compliance issues. Within Global Risk Management, Enterprise Operational Risk Management develops policies, practices, controls and monitoring tools for assessing and managing operational risks across the Corporation. We also mitigate operational risk through a broad-based approach to process management and process improvement. Improvement efforts are focused on reduction of variation in outputs. We have a dedicated Quality and Productivity team to manage and certify the process management and improvement efforts. For selected risks, we use specialized support groups, such as Information Security and Supply Chain Management, to develop corporate-wide risk management practices, such as an information security program and a supplier program to ensure that suppliers adopt appropriate policies and procedures when performing work on behalf of the Corporation. These specialized groups also assist the lines of business in the development and implementation of risk management practices specific to the needs of the individual businesses. These groups also work with line of business executives and risk executives to develop appropriate policies, practices, controls and monitoring tools for each line of business. Through training and communication efforts, compliance and operational risk awareness is driven across the Corporation.

The lines of business are responsible for all the risks within the business line, including operational risks. Operational and Compliance Risk executives, working in conjunction with senior line of business executives, have developed key tools to help identify, measure, mitigate and monitor operational risk in each business line. Examples of these include personnel management practices, data reconciliation processes, fraud management units, transaction processing monitoring and analysis, business recovery planning and new product introduction processes. In addition, the lines of business are responsible for monitoring adherence to corporate practices. Line of business management uses a self-assessment process, which helps to identify and evaluate the status of risk and control issues, including mitigation plans, as appropriate. The goal of the self-assessment process is to periodically assess changing market and business conditions, to evaluate key operational risks impacting each line of business, and assess the controls in place to mitigate the risks. In addition to information gathered from the self-assessment process, which helps to identify and evaluate the risks.

key operational risk indicators have been developed and are used to help identify trends and issues on both a corporate and a line of business level.

Recent Accounting and Reporting Developments

See Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Principles to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of recently issued accounting pronouncements.

Complex Accounting Estimates

Our significant accounting principles, as described in *Note 1* Summary of Significant Accounting Principles to the Consolidated Financial Statements, are essential in understanding the MD&A. Many of our significant accounting principles require complex judgments to estimate values of assets and liabilities. We have procedures and processes to facilitate making these judgments.

The more judgmental estimates are summarized below. We have identified and described the development of the variables most important in the estimation process that, with the exception of accrued taxes, involve mathematical models to derive the estimates. In many cases, there are numerous alternative judgments that could be used in the process of determining the inputs to the model. Where alternatives exist, we

have used the factors that we believe represent the most reasonable value in developing the inputs. Actual performance that differs from our estimates of the key variables could impact net income. Separate from the possible future impact to net income from input and model variables, the value of our lending portfolio and market-sensitive assets and liabilities may change subsequent to the balance sheet measurement, often significantly, due to the nature and magnitude of future credit and market conditions. Such credit and market conditions may change quickly and in unforeseen ways and the resulting volatility could have a significant, negative effect on future operating results. These fluctuations would not be indicative of deficiencies in our models or inputs.

Allowance for Credit Losses

The allowance for credit losses, which includes the allowance for loan and lease losses and the reserve for unfunded lending commitments, represents management s estimate of probable losses inherent in the Corporation s lending activities that are carried at historical cost. Changes to the allowance for credit losses are reported in the Consolidated Statement of Income in the provision for credit losses. Our process for determining the allowance for credit losses is discussed in the Credit Risk Management section beginning on page 44 and *Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Principles* to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Due to the variability in the drivers of the assumptions made in this process, estimates of the portfolio s inherent risks and overall collectibility change with changes in the economy, individual industries, countries and individual borrowers or counterparties ability and willingness to repay their obligations. The degree to which any particular assumption affects the allowance for credit losses depends on the severity of the change and its relationship to the other assumptions.

Key judgments used in determining the allowance for credit losses include: (i) risk ratings for pools of commercial loans and leases, (ii) market and collateral values and discount rates for individually evaluated loans, (iii) product type classifications for consumer and commercial loans and leases, (iv) loss rates used for consumer and commercial loans and leases, (v) adjustments made to assess current events and conditions, (vi) considerations regarding domestic and global economic uncertainty, and (vii) overall credit conditions.

Our allowance for loan and lease losses is sensitive to the risk rating assigned to commercial loans and leases. Assuming a downgrade of one level in the internal risk rating for commercial loans and leases measured at historical cost and rated under the internal risk rating scale, except loans and leases already risk-rated Doubtful as defined by regulatory authorities, the allowance for loans and lease losses would increase by approximately \$1.6 billion at December 31, 2007. The allowance for loan and lease losses as a percentage of total loans and leases measured at historical cost at December 31, 2007 was 1.33 percent and this hypothetical increase in the allowance would raise the ratio to approximately 1.50 percent. Our allowance for loans and lease losses is also sensitive to the loss rates used for the consumer and commercial portfolios. A 10 percent increase in the loss rates used on the consumer and commercial loan and lease portfolios measured at historical cost would increase the allowance for loan and lease losses at December 31, 2007 by approximately \$820 million, of which \$690 million would relate to consumer and \$130 million to commercial.

These sensitivity analyses do not represent management s expectations of the deterioration in risk ratings or the increases in loss rates but are provided as hypothetical scenarios to assess the sensitivity of the allowance for loan and lease losses to changes in key inputs. We believe the risk ratings and loss severities currently in use are appropriate and

that the probability of a downgrade of one level of the internal risk ratings for commercial loans and leases within a short period of time is remote.

The process of determining the level of the allowance for credit losses requires a high degree of judgment. It is possible that others, given the same information, may at any point in time reach different reasonable conclusions.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Effective January 1, 2007, we determined the fair market values of our financial instruments based on the fair value hierarchy established in SFAS 157 which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value. We carry certain corporate loans and loan commitments, loans held-for-sale, structured reverse repurchase agreements, and long-term deposits at fair value in accordance with SFAS 159. We also carry trading account assets and liabilities, derivative assets and liabilities, AFS debt and marketable equity securities, MSRs, and certain other assets at fair value. For more information, see *Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Principles* and *Note 19 Fair Value Disclosures* to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Trading account assets and liabilities are recorded at fair value, which is primarily based on actively traded markets where prices are based on either direct market quotes or observed transactions. Liquidity is a significant factor in the determination of the fair value of trading account assets or liabilities. Market price quotes may not be readily available for some positions, or positions within a market sector where trading activity has slowed significantly or ceased. Situations of illiquidity generally are triggered by the market s perception of credit uncertainty regarding a single company or a specific market sector. In these instances, fair value is determined based on limited available market information and other factors, principally from reviewing the issuer s financial statements and changes in credit ratings made by one or more rating agencies. At December 31, 2007, \$4.0 billion, or two percent, of trading account assets were classified as level 3 fair value assets. No trading account liabilities were classified as level 3

liabilities at December 31, 2007.

The fair values of derivative assets and liabilities include adjustments for market liquidity, counterparty credit quality and other deal specific factors, where appropriate. To ensure the prudent application of estimates and management judgment in determining the fair value of derivative assets and liabilities, various processes and controls have been adopted, which include: a model validation policy that requires a review and approval of quantitative models used for deal pricing, financial statement fair value determination and risk quantification; a trading product valuation policy that requires verification of all traded product valuations; and a periodic review and substantiation of daily profit and loss reporting for all traded products. These processes and controls are performed independently of the business.

The fair values of derivative assets and liabilities traded in the over-the-counter market are determined using quantitative models that require the use of multiple market inputs including interest rates, prices and indices to generate continuous yield or pricing curves and volatility factors, which are used to value the position. The predominance of market inputs are actively quoted and can be validated through external sources, including brokers, market transactions and third-party pricing services. Estimation risk is greater for derivative asset and liability positions that are either option-based or have longer maturity dates where observable market inputs are less readily available or are unobservable, in which case

quantitative based extrapolations of rate, price or index scenarios are used in determining fair values. At December 31, 2007, the level 3 fair values of derivative assets and liabilities determined by these quantitative models were \$9.0 billion and \$10.2 billion. These amounts reflect the full fair value of the derivatives and do not isolate the discrete value associated with the subjective valuation variable. Further, they represent two percent of both derivative assets and liabilities, before the impact of legally enforceable master netting agreements. For 2007, there were no changes to the quantitative models, or uses of such models, that resulted in a material adjustment to the Consolidated Statement of Income.

Trading account profits (losses), which represent the net amount earned from our trading positions, can be volatile and are largely driven by general market conditions and customer demand. Trading account profits (losses) are dependent on the volume and type of transactions, the level of risk assumed, and the volatility of price and rate movements at any given time within the ever-changing market environment. To evaluate risk in our trading activities, we focus on the actual and potential volatility of individual positions as well as portfolios. At a portfolio and corporate level, we use trading limits, stress testing and tools such as VAR modeling, which estimates a potential daily loss which is not expected to be exceeded with a specified confidence level, to measure and manage market risk. At December 31, 2007, the amount of our VAR was \$73 million based on a 99 percent confidence level. For more information on VAR, see Trading Risk Management beginning on page 62.

AFS debt and marketable equity securities are recorded at fair value, which is generally based on quoted market prices or market prices for similar assets.

Principal Investing

Principal Investing is included within *Equity Investments* in *All Other* and is discussed in more detail beginning on page 34. Principal Investing is comprised of a diversified portfolio of investments in privately-held and publicly-traded companies at all stages of their life cycle, from start-up to buyout. These investments are made either directly in a company or held through a fund. Some of these companies may need access to additional cash to support their long-term business models. Market conditions and company performance may impact whether funding is available from private investors or the capital markets. For more information, see *Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Principles* and *Note 19 Fair Value Disclosures* to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Investments with active market quotes are carried at estimated fair value; however, the majority of our investments do not have publicly available price quotations and, therefore, the fair value is unobservable. At December 31, 2007, we had nonpublic investments of \$3.5 billion, or approximately 86 percent of the total portfolio. Valuation of these investments requires significant management judgment. We value such investments initially at transaction price and adjust valuations when evidence is available to support such adjustments. Such evidence includes transactions in similar instruments, market comparables, completed or pending third-party transactions in the underlying investment or comparable entities, subsequent rounds of financing, recapitalizations and other transactions across the capital structure, and changes in financial ratios or cash flows. Investments are adjusted to estimated fair values at the balance sheet date with changes being recorded in equity investment income in the Consolidated Statement of Income.

Accrued Income Taxes

As more fully described in Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Principles and Note 18 Income Taxes to the Consolidated Financial

Statements, we account for income taxes in accordance with SFAS 109 as interpreted by FIN 48. Accrued income taxes, reported as a component of accrued expenses and other liabilities on our Consolidated Balance Sheet, represents the net amount of current income taxes we expect to pay to or receive from various taxing jurisdictions attributable to our operations to date. We currently file income tax returns in more than 100 jurisdictions and consider many factors including statutory, judicial and regulatory guidance in estimating the appropriate accrued income taxes for each jurisdiction.

In applying the principles of SFAS 109, we monitor relevant tax authorities and change our estimate of accrued income taxes due to changes in income tax laws and their interpretation by the courts and regulatory authorities. These revisions of our estimate of accrued income taxes, which also may result from our own income tax planning and from the resolution of income tax controversies, may be material to our operating results for any given period.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The nature of and accounting for goodwill and intangible assets is discussed in detail in *Note 1* Summary of Significant Accounting Principles and *Note 10* Goodwill and Intangible Assets to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Goodwill is reviewed for potential impairment at the reporting unit level on an annual basis, or in interim periods if events or circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The reporting units utilized for this test were those that are one level below the business segments identified on page 19. The impairment test is performed in two steps. The first step of the goodwill impairment test compares the fair value of the reporting unit with its carrying amount, including goodwill. If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value, the second step must be performed. The second step compares the implied fair value of the reporting unit s goodwill, as

defined in SFAS 142, with the carrying amount of that goodwill. An impairment loss is recorded to the extent that the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its implied fair value.

For intangible assets subject to amortization, impairment exists when the carrying amount of the intangible asset exceeds its fair value. An impairment loss will be recognized only if the carrying amount of the intangible asset is not recoverable and exceeds its fair value. The carrying amount of the intangible asset is not recoverable if it exceeds the sum of the undiscounted cash flows expected to result from it. An intangible asset subject to amortization shall be tested for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances, such as a significant or adverse change in the business climate that could affect the value of the intangible asset, indicate that its carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recorded to the extent the carrying amount of the intangible asset exceeds its fair value.

The fair values of the reporting units were determined using a combination of valuation techniques consistent with the income approach and the market approach and the fair values of the intangible assets were determined using the income approach. For purposes of the income approach, discounted cash flows were calculated by taking the net present value of estimated cash flows using a combination of historical results, estimated future cash flows and an appropriate price to earnings multiple. We use our internal forecasts to estimate future cash flows and actual results may differ from forecasted results. Cash flows were discounted using a discount rate based on expected equity return rates, which was 11 percent for 2007. Expected rates of equity returns were estimated based on historical market returns and risk/return rates for similar industries of

the reporting unit. For purposes of the market approach, valuations of reporting units were based on actual comparable market transactions and market earnings multiples for similar industries of the reporting unit.

Our evaluations for 2007 indicated there was no impairment of goodwill or intangible assets.

Consolidation and Accounting for Variable Interest Entities

Under the provisions of FIN 46R, a VIE is consolidated by the entity that will absorb a majority of the variability created by the assets of the VIE. The calculation of variability is based on an analysis of projected probability-weighted cash flows based on the design of the particular VIE. Scenarios in which expected cash flows are less than or greater than the expected outcomes create expected losses or expected residual returns. The entity that will absorb a majority of expected variability (the sum of the absolute values of the expected losses and expected residual returns) consolidates the VIE and is referred to as the primary beneficiary.

A variety of qualitative and quantitative assumptions are used to estimate projected cash flows and the relative probability of each potential outcome, and to determine which parties will absorb expected losses and expected residual returns. Critical assumptions, which may include projected credit losses and interest rates, are independently verified against market observable data where possible. Where market observable data is not available, the results of the analysis become more subjective.

As certain events occur, we re-evaluate which parties will absorb variability and whether we have become or are no longer the primary beneficiary. Reconsideration events may occur when VIEs acquire additional assets, issue new variable interests or enter into new or modified contractual arrangements. A reconsideration event may also occur when we acquire new or additional interests in a VIE.

In the unlikely event we were required to consolidate our unconsolidated VIEs, their consolidation would increase our assets and liabilities and could have an adverse impact on our Tier 1 Capital, Total Capital and Tier 1 Leverage Capital ratios.

For more information, see Note 9 Variable Interest Entities to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

2006 Compared to 2005

The following discussion and analysis provides a comparison of our results of operations for 2006 and 2005. This discussion should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and related Notes. Tables 5 and 6 contain financial data to supplement this discussion.

Overview

Net Income

Net income totaled \$21.1 billion, or \$4.59 per diluted common share, in 2006 compared to \$16.5 billion, or \$4.04 per diluted common share, in 2005. The return on average common shareholders equity was 16.27 percent in 2006 compared to 16.51 percent in 2005. These earnings provided sufficient cash flow to allow us to return \$21.2 billion and \$10.6 billion in 2006 and 2005, in capital to shareholders in the form of dividends and share repurchases, net of employee stock options exercised.

Net Interest Income

Net interest income on a FTE basis increased \$4.2 billion to \$35.8 billion in 2006 compared to 2005. The primary drivers of the increase were the impact of the MBNA merger (volumes and spreads), consumer and commercial loan growth, and increases in the benefits from ALM activities

including higher portfolio balances (primarily residential mortgages) and the impact of changes in spreads across all product categories. These increases were partially offset by a lower contribution from market-based earning assets and the higher cost associated with higher levels of wholesale funding. The net interest yield on a FTE basis decreased two bps to 2.82 percent in 2006 due primarily to an increase in lower yielding market-based earning assets and loan spreads that continued to tighten due to the flat to inverted yield curve. These decreases were partially offset by widening of spreads on core deposits.

Noninterest Income

Noninterest income increased \$11.6 billion to \$38.0 billion in 2006, due primarily to increases in card income of \$8.5 billion, trading account profits (losses) of \$1.4 billion, equity investment income of \$977 million, service charges of \$520 million and other income of \$1.2 billion partially offset by a

Table of Contents

decrease in gains (losses) on sales of debt securities of \$1.5 billion. Card income increased primarily due to the addition of MBNA resulting in higher excess servicing income, cash advance fees, interchange income and late fees. Trading account profits (losses) increased due to a favorable market environment. Equity investment income increased primarily due to favorable market conditions driven by liquidity in the capital markets as well as a gain of \$341 million recorded on the liquidation of a strategic European investment. Service charges grew due to increased non-sufficient funds fees and overdraft charges, account service charges, and ATM fees resulting from new account growth and increased account usage. Other income increased due to the \$720 million gain on the sale of our Brazilian operations and the \$165 million gain on the sale of our Asia commercial banking business. Gains (losses) on sales of debt securities were \$(443) million and \$1.1 billion in 2006 and 2005. The decrease was primarily due to a loss on the sale of mortgage-backed securities in 2006 compared to gains recorded in 2005.

Provision for Credit Losses

The provision for credit losses increased \$996 million to \$5.0 billion in 2006 compared to 2005. Provision expense rose due to increases from the addition of MBNA, reduced benefits from releases of commercial reserves and lower commercial recoveries. These increases were partially offset by lower bankruptcy-related credit costs on the domestic consumer credit card portfolio.

Noninterest Expense

Noninterest expense increased \$6.9 billion in 2006 from 2005, primarily due to the MBNA merger, increased personnel expense related to higher performance-based compensation and higher marketing expense related to consumer banking initiatives. Amortization of intangibles expense was higher due to increases in purchased credit card relationships, affinity relationships, core deposit intangibles and other intangibles, including trademarks.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense was \$10.8 billion in 2006 compared to \$8.0 billion in 2005, resulting in an effective tax rate of 33.9 percent in 2006 and 32.7 percent in 2005. The increase in the effective tax rate was primarily due to a \$175 million charge to income tax expense arising from the change in tax legislation, the one-time benefit recorded during 2005 related to the repatriation of certain foreign earnings and the January 1, 2006 addition of MBNA.

Business Segment Operations

Global Consumer and Small Business Banking

Net income increased \$4.4 billion, or 62 percent, to \$11.4 billion in 2006 compared to 2005. Total revenue rose \$16.5 billion, or 58 percent, in 2006 compared to 2005, driven by increases in net interest income and noninterest income. The MBNA merger and organic growth in average loans and leases contributed to the \$10.6 billion, or 60 percent, increase in net interest income. Increases in card income of \$4.9 billion, all other income of \$806 million and service charges of \$348 million drove the \$5.9 billion, or 54 percent, increase in noninterest income. Card income was higher mainly due to increases in interchange income, cash advance fees and late fees due primarily to the impact of the MBNA merger. All other income increased primarily as a result of the MBNA merger. Service charges increased due to new account growth and increased usage. These increases were partially offset by increases in the provision for credit losses and noninterest expense. The provision for credit losses increased \$3.8 billion to \$8.5 billion in 2006 resulting primarily from an increase in *Card Services* mainly due to the MBNA merger. Noninterest expense increased \$5.6 billion, or 44 percent, primarily driven by the addition of MBNA.

Global Corporate and Investment Banking

Net income increased \$78 million, or one percent, to \$6.0 billion in 2006 compared to 2005. Total revenue increased \$1.3 billion, or seven percent, in 2006 driven by increases in noninterest income partially offset by a decrease in net interest income. Net interest income declined \$460 million, or four percent, primarily due to the impact of ALM activities and spread compression in the loan portfolio. Noninterest income increased \$1.8 billion, or 18 percent, driven by the increase in trading account profits (losses) of \$1.2 billion and investment banking income of \$585 million mainly due to the continued strength in debt underwriting, sales and trading, and a favorable market environment. These increases were partially offset by an increase in noninterest expense which increased by \$1.1 billion, or 11 percent, mainly due to higher personnel expense, including performance-based incentive compensation primarily in *CMAS* and other general operating costs.

Global Wealth and Investment Management

Net income increased \$211 million, or 10 percent, to \$2.2 billion in 2006 compared to 2005. Total revenue increased \$483 million, or seven percent, in 2006. Net interest income increased \$117 million, or three percent, due to an increase in deposit spreads and higher average loans and leases, largely offset by a decline in ALM activities and loan spread compression. *GWIM* also benefited from the migration of deposits from *GCSBB*. For 2006 and 2005 a total of \$10.7 billion and \$16.9 billion of net deposits were migrated from *GCSBB* to *GWIM*. Noninterest income increased \$366 million, or 11 percent, mainly due to increases in investment and brokerage services driven by higher levels of AUM. These changes were offset by higher noninterest expense which increased \$126 million, or three percent, primarily due to increases in personnel-related expense driven by the addition of sales associates and revenue-related expenses.

All Other

Net income increased \$23 million, or two percent, to \$1.5 billion in 2006 compared to 2005. Excluding the securitization offset, total revenue rose \$441 million to \$3.7 billion, primarily driven by increases in net interest income of \$1.1 billion, equity investment income of \$839 million and all other income of \$861 million partially offset by lower gains (losses) on sales of debt securities. The increase in net interest income was mainly due to the negative impact to 2005 results retained in *All Other* relating to funds transfer pricing that was not allocated to the businesses. The increase in equity investment income was due to favorable market conditions driving liquidity in the Principal Investing portfolio combined with a gain recorded on the liquidation of a strategic European investment. The increase in all other income was primarily related to the gain on the sale of our Brazilian operations of \$720 million. Gains (losses) on sales of debt securities decreased \$1.4 billion to \$(475) million resulting from a loss on the sale of mortgage-backed securities compared with gains recorded on the sales of mortgage-backed securities in 2005. Merger and restructuring charges increased \$393 million due to the MBNA merger whereas the 2005 charges primarily related to the FleetBoston Financial Corporation merger.

Statistical Tables

Table I Year-to-date Average Balances and Interest Rates FTE Basis

	Average	2007 Interest Income/			Average	006 ⁽¹⁾ Interest Income/			Average	2005 Interest Income/	Yield/
(Dollars in millions)	Balance	Expense	Rate		Balance	Expense	Rate		Balance	Expense	Rate
Earning assets											
Time deposits placed and other short-term	* * * * * * * * * *	A CO7	4 770/	•	45 044	• • • • •	4 4 40/	•	44.000	ф 470	0.000/
investments	\$ 13,152	\$ 627	4.77%	\$	15,611	\$ 646	4.14%	\$	14,286	\$ 472	3.30%
Federal funds sold and securities	155 000	7 700	4.00		175 004	7 000	4.40		100 100	F 010	0.00
purchased under agreements to resell	155,828	7,722	4.96 5.20		175,334	7,823 7.552	4.46 5.20		169,132	5,012 5.883	2.96 4.41
Trading account assets Debt securities ⁽²⁾	187,287 186,466	9,747 10,020	5.20 5.37		145,321 225,219	11,845	5.20 5.26		133,502 219,843	5,883 11,047	4.41 5.03
Loans and leases ⁽³⁾ :	100,400	10,020	5.57		225,219	11,040	5.20		219,043	11,047	5.05
Residential mortgage	264,650	15,112	5.71		207,879	11,608	5.58		173,773	9,424	5.42
Credit card domestic	204,050 57,883	,	12.48		63,838	8,638			53,997	,	11.58
Credit card foreign	12,359	,	12.40		9.141	,	12.55		55,997	0,200	11.00
Home equity ⁽⁴⁾	98,765	7,385	7.48		78,318	5,773	7.37		63,852	3,931	6.16
Direct/Indirect consumer ⁽⁵⁾	70,260	6,002	8.54		53.371	4.185	7.84		37,472	2,072	
Other consumer ⁽⁶⁾	4,259	389	9.14		7,317	,	10.78		6,854		
Total consumer	508,176	37,615	7.40		419,864	32,139	7.65		335,948	22,345	
Commercial domestic	180,102	12,884	7.15		151,231	10.897	7.21		128,034	8.266	
Commercial real estate ⁽⁷⁾	42,950	3,145	7.32		36,939	2,740	7.42		34,304	2,046	
Commercial lease financing	20,435	1,212	5.93		20.862	995	4.77		20.441	2,040	
Commercial foreign	24,491	1,452	5.93		23,521	1,674	7.12		18,491	1,292	
Total commercial	267,978	18,693	6.98		232,553	16,306	7.01		201,270	12,596	
Total loans and leases	776,154	56,308	7.25		652,417	48.445	7.43		537,218	34,941	6.50
Other earning assets	71,305	4,629	6.49		55,242	3,498	6.33		38.013	2,103	5.53
Total earning assets ⁽⁸⁾	1,390,192	89,053	6.41		1,269,144	79.809	6.29		1,111,994	59,458	
Cash and cash equivalents	33,091	,	••••		34,052	. 0,000	0.20		33,199		0.00
Other assets, less allowance for loan and					0.,002				00,100		
lease losses	178,790				163,485				124,699		
Total assets	\$ 1,602,073			\$	1,466,681			\$	1,269,892		
Interest-bearing liabilities								·			
Domestic interest-bearing deposits:											
Savings	\$ 32,316	\$ 188	0.58%	\$	34,608	\$ 269	0.78%	\$	36,602	\$ 211	0.58%
NOW and money market deposit accounts	220,207	4,361	1.98		218,077	3,923	1.80		227,722	2,839	1.25
Consumer CDs and IRAs	167,801	7,817	4.66		144,738	6,022	4.16		124,385	4,091	3.29
Negotiable CDs, public funds and other											
time deposits	20,557	974	4.74		12,195	483	3.97		6,865	250	3.65
Total domestic interest-bearing deposits	440,881	13,340	3.03		409,618	10,697	2.61		395,574	7,391	1.87
Foreign interest-bearing deposits:											
Banks located in foreign countries	42,788	2,174	5.08		34,985	1,982	5.67		22,945	1,202	
Governments and official institutions	16,523	812	4.91		12,674	586	4.63		7,418	238	-
Time, savings and other	43,443	1,767	4.07		38,544	1,215	3.15		31,603	661	2.09
Total foreign interest-bearing deposits	102,754	4,753	4.63		86,203	3,783	4.39		61,966	2,101	3.39
Total interest-bearing deposits	543,635	18,093	3.33		495,821	14,480	2.92		457,540	9,492	2.08
Federal funds purchased, securities sold											
under agreements to repurchase and											
other short-term borrowings	424,814	21,975	5.17		411,132	19,840	4.83		326,408	11,615	
Trading account liabilities	82,721	3,444	4.16		64,689	2,640	4.08		57,689	2,364	
Long-term debt	169,855	9,359	5.51		130,124	7,034	5.41		97,709	4,418	4.52
Total interest-bearing liabilities ⁽⁸⁾	1,221,025	52,871	4.33		1,101,766	43,994	3.99		939,346	27,889	2.97
Noninterest-bearing sources:											

Noninterest-bearing deposits	173,547	177,174	174,892	
Other liabilities	70,839	57,278	55,793	
Shareholders equity	136,662	130,463	99,861	
Total liabilities and shareholders e	quity \$1,602,073	\$ 1,466,681	\$ 1,269,892	
Net interest spread		2.08%	2.30%	2.38%
Impact of noninterest-bearing sources		0.52	0.52	0.46
Net interest income/yield on earning	1			

assets

\$ 36,182 2.60% \$ 35,815 2.82% \$ 31,569 2.84% ⁽¹⁾ Interest income (FTE basis) in 2006 does not include the cumulative tax charge resulting from a change in tax legislation relating to extraterritorial tax income and foreign sales corporation regimes. The FTE impact to net interest income and net interest yield on earning assets of this retroactive tax adjustment was a reduction of \$270 million and 2 bps, respectively, in 2006. Management has excluded this one-time impact to provide a more comparative basis of presentation for net interest income and net interest yield on earning assets on a FTE basis. The impact on any given future period is not expected to be material.

⁽²⁾ Yields on AFS debt securities are calculated based on fair value rather than historical cost balances. The use of fair value does not have a material impact on net interest yield.

⁽³⁾Nonperforming loans are included in the respective average loan balances. Income on these nonperforming loans is recognized on a cash basis. ⁽⁴⁾ Includes home equity loans of \$16.7 billion, \$9.7 billion and \$7.6 billion in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

(5) Includes foreign consumer loans of \$3.8 billion, \$3.4 billion, and \$53 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

(6) Includes consumer finance loans of \$3.2 billion, \$2.9 billion, \$3.1 billion in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively; and other foreign consumer loans of \$1.1 billion, \$4.4 billion and \$3.5 billion in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

(7) Includes domestic commercial real estate loans of \$42.1 billion, \$36.2 billion and \$33.8 billion in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

⁽⁸⁾ Interest income includes the impact of interest rate risk management contracts, which increased (decreased) interest income on the underlying assets \$(542) million, \$(372) million and \$704 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Interest expense includes the impact of interest rate risk management contracts, which increased interest expense on the underlying liabilities \$813 million, \$106 million and \$1.3 billion in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. For further information on interest rate contracts, see Interest Rate Risk Management for Nontrading Activities beginning on page 65.

Table II Analysis of Changes in Net Interest Income FTE Basis

	From Due to Cha	2006 to 2 nge in ⁽¹⁾			om 2005 to hange in ⁽¹⁾	
(Dollars in millions) Increase (decrease) in interest income	Volume	Rate	Change	Volume	Rate	Change
Time deposits placed and other short-term investments Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell Trading account assets	\$ (102) (873) 2,187	\$83 772 8	\$ (19) (101) 2,195		\$ 131 2,633 1,143	\$ 174 2,811 1,669
Debt securities	(2,037)	212				